
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
II. Approval of Agenda

III. Chairman's Remarks
IV. Message from the Executive Director
V. Consideration of the Minutes

VI. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports
VII. Monthly Procurement Report

VIII. Committee Reports
IX. Presentation and Consideration of the Project Reports and Resolutions
X. Reports and Resolutions

XI. Other Business
XII. Public Comment

XIII. Adjournment

9:30 a.m.
Michael A. Bilandic Building

160 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60601

AGENDA

Suite S-1000

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

August 11, 2016

BOARD MEETING

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 1



Call-In: 888-494-4032 2:00 PM
Passcode: 431 498 6139 172263

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

A) Blake and Allyson Marrs Paris Township (Edgar County) $401,000                         -                           -   PE/LK

B) Mason A. and Victoria L. Dehlinger German Township (Richland County) $83,750                         -                           -   PE/LK

$484,750                         -                           -   

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

2 DePaul University Chicago (Cook County) $125,000,000  N/A  N/A RF/BF

$125,000,000  N/A  N/A 

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

3 The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC Arlington Heights (Cook County) $70,000,000                        50                        85 PL

$70,000,000                        50                        85 

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs FM

4
State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving 
Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2016

Statewide $600,000,000  -  - RF/BF

$600,000,000                         -                           -   

$795,484,750                50                85 

HEALTHCARE PROJECTS

State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND GOVERNMENT PURPOSE PROJECTS

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Final 

TOTAL EDUCATIONAL, CULTURAL, AND NON-HEALTHCARE 501(c)(3) PROJECTS

TOTAL HEALTHCARE PROJECTS

EDUCATIONAL, CULTURAL AND NON-HEALTHCARE 501(c)(3) PROJECTS

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

Beginning Farmer Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

1

TOTAL AGRICULTURE PROJECTS

Board Meeting
August 11, 2016
Page 2

PROJECT REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS

AGRICULTURE PROJECTS

GRAND TOTAL

TOTAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT  AND GOVERNMENT PURPOSE PROJECTS

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 2



.

Tab Staff

5 PE

6 RF/BF

7 PL

8 CM

9 CM

Board Meeting

RESOLUTIONS

Resolution Authorizing Consent to a Deferral of Scheduled Payment and Waiver of Events of Default for a Loan Subject to an Agri-Debt Restructuring 
Guarantee  (Borrowers: Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho, each Individually)

Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to the Loan Agreement which Amends Certain Provisions of the 
Loan Agreement Dated as of March 1, 2004 under which the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Community 
Action Partnership of Lake County Project) (the “Bonds) were Issued and the Proceeds of the Bonds were Lent to Community Action Partnership of Lake 
County

Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel Recommendations of the Governance, Personnel, Legislation and Ethics Committee

PROJECT REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS

Resolution Confirming the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to Master Loan Agreement with the City of Chicago Providing for an Extension of a 
Final Principal Payment

August 11, 2016
Page 3

Resolutions

Action

Resolution Authorizing the Reissuance of the Swedish American Hospital Series 2010 Bonds

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  August 11, 2016  
   
To: R. Robert Funderburg, Jr., Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Eric Anderberg George Obernagel 
 Gila J. Bronner Terrence M. O’Brien 
 James J. Fuentes Roger Poole 
 Michael W. Goetz Beth Smoots 
 Robert Horne John Yonover 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
 
From:  Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
 
Subject: Message from the Executive Director 
 
 
Dear Member of the Authority: 
 

This month, we are proud to present the first financing since 2013 under the Clean Water 
Initiative for consideration by the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”).  Under the State Revolving 
Fund Program (“SRF Program”), the Authority maintains its longstanding and productive partnership 
with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”) to dramatically increase the availability of 
lowest possible cost financing to Illinois local governments for state-of-the-art wastewater and drinking 
water projects.  In a global economy with increasingly constrained natural resources, virtually unlimited 
access to clean, safe, fresh water is a major economic competitive advantage for our state.  The Authority 
welcomes newly appointed IEPA Director Alec Messina and looks forward to an ever more productive 
relationship with IEPA on behalf of the people of Illinois.  

What is SRF? 

The IEPA SRF Program currently has just over $3 billion in outstanding loans to 565 governmental 
entities.  The SRF Program is a federal-state program that funds direct loans to local governments for drinking 
water and sewer (clean) infrastructure projects at below market interest rates, costs and terms.  SRF Program 
loans may not be used for speculative or economic development-type activities.  IEPA originates and 
administers SRF Program loans. 

Annually, the federal government through the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(“USEPA”) gives $5 for every $1 (20%) state match (appropriated or since 2013, borrowed) to the SRF 
Program.   
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 4



 
 
SRF Program Benefits to Local Governments and Illinois Taxpayers 

Interest is generally 50% of what local governments would pay on their own as the interest rate is equal 
to 50% of the Bond Buyer’s 20-Bond General Obligation Index for the preceding State fiscal year and federal 
fiscal year.  In 2016, the current rate is 1.75% for clean (sewer) water projects and 1.86% for drinking water 
projects.  The interest rate subsidy is economical because the federal government provides most of the equity 
through capitalization grants to run the SRF Program. 

Additionally, SRF Program borrowers need not engage and pay bond counsel or underwriters or other 
costs as they would if they issued bonds on their own.  Overall, reduced interest and transaction costs mean less 
cost to local tax and rate payers who are also Illinois taxpayers.   

Why Borrow?  

USEPA encourages states to expand program capacity by borrowing additional funds on the capital 
markets (bonds) to be used as SRF Program loans by pledging the majority of their SRF Program loan 
portfolios.  Such borrowing (or leverage) allows the responsible expansion of SRF Program loan capacity well 
beyond the limitations of federal capitalization grants, state match and principal and interest from loan 
repayments.  SRF Program bond proceeds are used to make new loans that are in turn also pledged to repay the 
bonds.   

Moreover, capital markets generally favor this leveraged structure as evidenced by rating agencies 
often assigning “AAA” ratings.  The “AAA” ratings are indicative of the quality of the SRF Program loans 
being pledged to repay the bonds (local government water projects are generally regarded as essential purpose 
projects, have an established revenue stream, and rarely default on debt) as well as indicative of the approximate 
debt coverage (approximately 5x) provided by the pool of SRF Program loans collateralizing the bonds.  

Interest Rate Subsidy Increases SRF Program Demand 
 

As a pooled financing, the bonds are subject to the federal Tax Increase Prevention and 
Reconciliation Act of 2005 (“TIPRA”), which imposes additional requirements and conditions in order 
for the interest on the bonds to be and to remain exempt from federal income taxation.  TIPRA specifies 
that unless certain minimum percentages of the bond proceeds are originated (i.e., by IEPA) as loans for 
eligible projects within certain prescribed time periods (i.e., there are minimum origination requirements 
after years 1 and year 3), the bonds would become subject to mandatory redemption. 
 

Accordingly, the subsidized interest rate offered through the SRF Program is beneficial not only 
to local tax and rate payers who are also Illinois taxpayers but also the SRF Program itself because the 
subsidized interest rate increases demand, thereby helping assure compliance with the applicable TIPRA 
spend-down requirements.  For example, the subsidized interest rate has been sufficient to induce several 
investment grade local government borrowers to participate in the SRF Program, including Chicago, 
DeKalb, Evanston, Hanover Park, Libertyville, Mattoon, Skokie, Springfield, St. Charles, Sterling, and 
Wilmette. 

  
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 5



 
 
 The strong, experienced management teams of IEPA and the Authority remain focused on expanding 
the SRF Program for both investment grade and non-investment grade local government borrowers.  Once the 
financing considered by the Authority closes, the Clean Water Initiative will be positioned to borrow on a 
predictable, annual basis going forward (as opposed to bond issues in 2013, 2004, 2002).  Such predictability 
opens the door for IEPA to pursue a variety of SRF Program innovations successfully piloted in other states 
such as non-revenue/non-point source infrastructure projects and further reductions in the cost of borrowing for 
local governments.   
 
Thank you Mordecai Tessler; Welcome Beth Smoots 
 
            We thank Mordecai Tessler for his service to the state and to the Authority.  Mr. Tessler 
contributed his private sector development knowledge during his 3-year, 10-month tenure.  We 
also welcome Beth Smoots to the Authority.  Ms. Smoots was appointed on July 22 by Governor 
Rauner and brings deep knowledge of talent recruitment, development and retention as well as 
financial skill to the Authority.   

 
As always, I look forward to continuing to work with you in support of jobs and financing capital 

expansion projects throughout our state. 
 
Respectfully,  
 

 
___________________ 
Christopher B. Meister 
Executive Director   
 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  August 11, 2016  
   
To: R. Robert Funderburg, Jr., Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Eric Anderberg George Obernagel 
 Gila J. Bronner Terrence M. O’Brien 
 James J. Fuentes Roger Poole 
 Michael W. Goetz Beth Smoots 
 Robert Horne John Yonover 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
 
Subject: Minutes of the July 14, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Marzullo Reporting Agency, Inc. (the 
“Minutes”) in connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the 
“Authority”), begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-
1000, Chicago, Illinois 60601, on the second Thursday of July in the year 2016, pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. 
of the State of Illinois (the “Act”). 
 
To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING 
Thursday, July 14, 2016 

9:30 AM 
 

AGENDA: 
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 (page 3, line 1 through page 4, line 16 )  
II. Approval of Agenda 
 (page 4, line 17 through page 5, line 5) 
III. Presentation and Consideration of Item No. 15 of the Project Reports and Resolutions 

(page 5, line 6 through page 7, line 7) 
IV. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 7, line 8 through page 8, line 7) 
V. Message from the Executive Director 
 (page 8, line 8 through page 14, line 19) 
VI. Consideration of the Minutes 
 (page 14, line 20 through page 15, line 10) 
VII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 
 (page 15, line 11 through page 21, line 9) 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 7



 
 
VIII. Monthly Procurement Report 
 (page 21, line 10 through page 22, line 8) 
IX. Committee Reports 
 (page 22, line 9 through page 23, line 16) 
X. Presentation and Consideration of Item Nos. 1-14 of the Project Reports and Resolutions 
 (page 23, line 17 through page 72, line 8) 
XI. Other Business 
 (page 72, line 9 through 21) 
XII. Public Comment 
 (page 72, lines 22 through 23) 
XIII. Adjournment 
 (page 72, line 23 through page 73, line 9) 
 
The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 
enclosed. 
 
Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Brad R. Fletcher           
Assistant Vice President 
 
 
Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the July 14, 2016 Regular Meeting 
  2. Voting Record of the July 14, 2016 Regular Meeting 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 8



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
G
U
L
A
R
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
y
 
1
4
t
h
,
 
2
0
1
6
,
 
a
t
 
9
:
3
1
 
a
.
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
o
f
 
P
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
h
a
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
J
u
l
y
 
1
4
t
h
,
 
2
0
1
6
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
u
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
0
,
 
a
.
m
.
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
,
 
a
t
 
1
6
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
L
a
S
a
l
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
S
1
0
0
0
,
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
A
P
P
E
A
R
A
N
C
E
:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S

P
a
g
e
 
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
.
 
R
O
B
E
R
T
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
E
R
I
C
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
M
E
S
 
J
.
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
B
E
R
T
 
H
O
R
N
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
R
L
E
N
E
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
E
R
R
Y
 
K
N
O
X

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
G
I
L
A
 
J
.
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
W
.
 
G
O
E
T
Z
 
(
V
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
G
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
L
E
Y
 
A
.
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
Y
L
E
 
M
c
C
O
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
G
E
O
R
G
E
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
,
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
I
C
H
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
M
E
L
I
N
D
A
 
G
I
L
D
A
R
T
,
 
C
F
O

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
P
A
M
E
L
A
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
,
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
W
E
B
E
R
,
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
S
I
X
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
,
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
l
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
R
I
S
T
O
P
H
E
R
 
B
.
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
P
A
T
R
I
C
K
 
E
V
A
N
S
,
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 
B
a
n
k
e
r
,
 
(
V
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
l
c
o
m
e
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
.
 
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
o
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
,
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
9
:
3
1
 
a
.
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

P
a
g
e
 
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 9



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
a
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
a
r
e
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
b
y
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
M
i
k
e
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 
 
I
 
a
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
n
y
o
n
e
 
e
l
s
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
t
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
b
y
l
a
w
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
o
f

P
a
g
e
 
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
A
 
c
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
 
u
p
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
n
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
e
d
i
t
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
N
o
?
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
s
a
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
y
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
A
 
c
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
p
p
o
s
e
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 
 
N
e
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
I
t
e
m
 
3
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
s
k
i
p
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
5
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
G
i
l
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
s
e
r
v
e
d
 
a
s
 
V
i
c
e
-
C
h
a
i
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
h
a
s
 
d
o
n
e
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
v
e
r
y
 
g
o
o
d
 
j
o
b
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
i
m
e
 
o
f
 
y
e
a
r
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
i
t
'
s
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
e
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
 
V
i
c
e
-
C
h
a
i
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
s
u
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 
f
o
r
 
V
i
c
e
-
C
h
a
i
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
W
h
o
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
e
?

P
a
g
e
 
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 10



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
G
i
l
a
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
G
i
l
a
 
f
r
o
m
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
.
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
?
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
t
,
 
t
h
e
n
 
w
o
u
l
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
b
y
 
K
n
o
x
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
N
o
w
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
a
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
a
s
 
V
i
c
e
-
C
h
a
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
a
b
s
t
a
i
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
b
s
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
I
'
m
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

P
a
g
e
 
5

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
l
c
o
m
e
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
s
e
r
v
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
'
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
w
r
a
p
p
i
n
g
 
u
p
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
t
r
o
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
y
e
a
r
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
h
a
s
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
b
i
g
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
o
n
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
h
e
l
p
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
c
i
t
i
z
e
n
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
i
m
p
a
s
s
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
t
r
e
n
g
t
h
e
n
 
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
o
u
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
o
n
 
t
o
p
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
b
a
s
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
s
t
a
r
t
 
w
i
t
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
o
u
r
 
n
e
w
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
,
 
G
e
o
r
g
e
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
l
a
s
t
l
y
,
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
6

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 11



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
v
o
l
u
n
t
e
e
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
h
o
 
g
i
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
t
i
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
e
x
p
e
r
t
i
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
s
a
c
r
i
f
i
c
e
s
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
b
o
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
y
o
n
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
l
e
t
 
y
o
u

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
k
n
o
w
 
a
s
 
C
h
a
i
r
,
 
I
 
t
r
u
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
b
l
e
 
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
a
l
l
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
e
c
h
o
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
'
s
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
a
g
a
i
n
.
 
 
A
s
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
n
o
t
e
d
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
v
e
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
g
o
o
d
 
y
e
a
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
p
e
r
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
l
e
t
 
o
u
r
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
G
i
l
d
a
r
t
,
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
 
d
r
a
f
t
 
p
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
b
a
s
i
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
h
a
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
i
l
e
g
e
 
o
f
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
s
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
.
 
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
w
i
l
l
 
s
e
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
w
i
d
e
 
v
a
r
i
e
t
y
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
v
o
l
u
n
t
e
e
r
 
w
o
r
k
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d

P
a
g
e
 
7

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
n
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
1
2
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
 
o
r
 
s
o
,
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
'
s
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
i
m
p
a
s
s
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
m
y
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
i
n
 
p
a
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
t
o
 
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
t
e
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
w
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
r
e
s
o
l
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
,
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 
p
a
s
s
e
d
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
 
R
a
u
n
e
r
 
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
o
n
 
J
u
n
e
 
t
h
e
 
3
0
t
h
,
 
w
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
w
a
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
a
 
s
t
o
p
g
a
p
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
w
i
l
l
 
k
n
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
'
s
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
b
u
d
g
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
m
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
n
d
e
d
 
o
n
 
J
u
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
3
0
t
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
a
s
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
 
r
o
l
e
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
s
,
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
i
m
p
a
s
s
e
.
 
 
I
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
 
w
i
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g
.
 
 
I
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
f
o
r
 
v
o
t
e
s
 
i
n
 
o
p
e
n
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
t
o
o
k
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
 
l
a
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
p
o
w
e
r
s
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
o
 
o
u
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
r
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
f
o
c
u
s
,
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
c
o
u
n
t
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
t
r
o
 
e
a
s
t
 
r
e
g
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
;
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
a
g
o
,
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
1
9
9
0
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
a
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
t

P
a
g
e
 
8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 12



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
w
e
r
e
 
b
a
c
k
e
d
 
b
y
 
m
o
r
a
l
 
o
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
g
e
n
t
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
p
a
y
e
r
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
h
a
s
 
g
o
n
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
h
a
s
 
t
h
e
n
 
g
o
n
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
,
 
a
 
p
e
r
m
i
s
s
i
v
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
,
 
n
o
t
 
a
 
m
a
n
d
a
t
o
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
r
e
f
i
l
l
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
h
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p
a
i
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
.
 
 
W
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
a
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
l
a
s
t
 
J
u
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
l
a
s
t
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
d
u
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
,
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
d
e
p
l
o
y
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
S
W
I
D
A
,
 
i
t
s
 
t
r
u
s
t
e
e
,
 
u
l
t
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
t
o
 
i
t
s
 
b
o
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
h
o
l
d
e
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
d
i
d
 
s
o
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
d
e
 
a
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
l
a
s
t
 
A
u
g
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
1
s
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
a
d
v
i
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
r
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
p
r
e
v
e
n
t
 
a
 
d
o
w
n
g
r
a
d
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
'
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
,
 
i
n
 
m
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
v
i
e
w
,
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
s
i
l
l
y
 
d
o
w
n
g
r
a
d
e
 
o
v
e
r
 
$
1
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 
 
W
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
m
a
d
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
a
s
 
a
v
o
i
d
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
m
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
a
n
d

P
a
g
e
 
9

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
S
W
I
D
A
'
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
M
i
k
e
 
L
u
n
d
y
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
o
p
g
a
p
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
f
o
r
 
b
o
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
l
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 
S
W
I
D
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
i
t
s
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
 
1
s
t
,
 
2
0
1
6
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
2
 
w
a
s
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
s
t
 
r
e
c
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
i
t
e
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 
o
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
t
o
 
u
s
 
i
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
f
o
c
u
s
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 
 
I
t
 
t
a
k
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
m
 
o
f
 
g
r
a
n
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
o
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
C
h
a
r
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
a
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
h
u
m
a
n
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
v
o
u
c
h
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
5
0
0
 
m
e
n
t
a
l
l
y
-
i
l
l
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
b
y
 
k
e
e
p
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
m
 
i
n
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
e
l
i
g
i
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
 
a
r
r
a
y
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
k
e
e
p
s
 
t
h
e
m
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
h
e
 
e
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
r
o
o
m
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
j
a
i
l
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
r
e
e
t
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
w
e
 
d
e
p
l
o
y
e
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
6
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
v
o
u
c
h
e
r
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
m
a
i
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
Y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
I
 
w
a
s
 
i
n
 
t
o
u
c
h
 
w
i
t
h
 
D
H
S
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
D
i
m
a
s
'

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
o
f
 
S
t
a
f
f
,
 
F
r
e
d
 
F
l
a
t
h
e
r
.
 
 
H
e
 
c
o
n
v
e
y
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
e
p
 
g
r
a
t
i
t
u
d
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
e
 
M
r
.
 
L
u
n
d
y
 
o
f
 
S
W
I
D
A
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
l
y
 
g
r
a
t
e
f
u
l
,
 
a
s
 
i
s
 
h
i
s
 
c
h
a
i
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
l
a
t
h
e
r
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
m
e

P
a
g
e
 
1
0

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 13



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
l
i
n
e
 
i
t
e
m
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
c
o
m
b
i
n
g
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
o
p
g
a
p
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
l
a
r
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
a
s
i
c
a
l
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
l
i
n
e
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
f
o
r
t
h
c
o
m
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
$
6
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
f
o
r
 
D
H
S
,
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
l
i
f
e
-
s
a
f
e
t
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
d
,
 
I
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
n
o
t
 
t
a
k
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
o
r
 
f
e
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
S
i
m
i
l
a
r
l
y
,
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
g
r
a
v
e
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
m
i
s
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
S
W
I
D
A
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
l
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
l
y
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
d
e
 
m
i
n
i
m
i
s
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
,
 
$
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
o
r
 
$
1
4
,
0
0
0
 
t
o
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
o
u
r
 
f
e
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
w
o
 
i
t
e
m
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
h
i
r
d
 
i
t
e
m
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
n
a
l
y
s
i
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
l
a
s
t
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
o
r
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
n
d
e
d
 
u
p
 
i
n
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
i
n
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
F
e
b
r
u
a
r
y
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
a
b
l
e
s
,
 
b
a
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
s
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
d
 
n
o
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
b
e
e
n
 
p
a
i
d
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
e
s
s
e
n
t
i
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
s
t
e
p
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
h
o
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
e
l
i
g
i
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
t
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
o
n
e
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 
p
r
o
m
p
t
-
p
a
y
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
.

P
a
g
e
 
1
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
h
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
a
c
t
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
$
5
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
a
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
c
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
C
e
n
t
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
a
s
 
o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
C
M
S
,
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
d
e
a
l
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
,
 
M
i
k
e
 
K
a
u
f
m
a
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
y
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
m
e
n
t
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
i
t
e
m
s
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
W
I
D
A

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
.
4
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
;
 
D
H
S
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
6
0
0
,
0
0
0
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
a
b
l
e
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
r
e
 
m
a
i
n
l
y
 
f
o
r
 
f
o
o
d
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
e
i
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
C
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
'
 
h
o
m
e
s
,
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
j
a
n
i
t
o
r
i
a
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
d
i
s
a
d
v
a
n
t
a
g
e
d
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
l
e
a
n
s
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
c
a
u
s
e
,
 
o
f
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
r
k
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
a
r
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
u
r
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
p
a
i
d
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
a
l
l
 
g
o
o
d
 
n
e
w
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
l
e
a
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
A
l
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
-
-
 
w
o
u
l
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
a
y
 
2
4
t
h
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
J
u
n
e
 
9
t
h
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
t
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
1
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 14



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
B
y
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
.
 
 
W
a
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
w
h
e
r
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
s
a
y
 
a
y
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
A
 
c
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
p
p
o
s
e
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
 
u
p
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
I
L
D
A
R
T
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
M
y
 
n
a
m
e
 
i
s
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
G
i
l
d
a
r
t
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
i
s
 
a
s
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
s
:
 
 
F
o
r
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
2
0
1
6
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
f
u
n
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
t
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
o
f
 
$
5
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
l
o
s
i
n
g
s
 
f
e
e
s
 
y
e
a
r
-
t
o
-
d
a
t
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
$
3
.
4
7
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
1
2
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
N
e
t
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
y
e
a
r
 
s
t
a
n
d
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
$
1
4
9
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
J
u
n
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
$
4
7
9
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
h
i
g
h
e
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
1
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
l
y
 
2
0
1
6
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
$
1
3
0
,
0
0
0
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 
o
f
 
P
e
d
i
a
t
r
i
c
s
 
f
o
r
 
$
1
0
5
,
0
0
0
,
 
U
n
i
t
y
P
o
i
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
I
o
w
a
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
f
o
r
 
$
1
0
1
,
0
0
0
,
 
R
u
s
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
$
7
9
,
0
0
0
,
 
L
a
k
e
 
F
o
r
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 
f
o
r
 
$
5
2
,
0
0
0
,
 
a
n
d
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
a
g
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
o
f
 
$
4
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
$
4
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
$
7
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
1
4
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
b
e
l
o
w
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
O
u
r
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
y
e
a
r
-
t
o
-
d
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
,
 
a
t
 
$
1
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
2
4
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
t
 
$
1
.
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
1
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
c
a
s
h
 
t
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
f
u
n
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
i
n
g
 
f
u
n
d
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
a
r
e
 
j
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
o
v
e
r
 
$
5
,
0
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
r
e
d
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
u
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
D
A
C
A
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
6
 
o
f
 
$
1
.
2
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
J
u
n
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
o
f
 
$
4
6
6
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
4
1
9
,
0
0
0
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
y
e
a
r
-
e
n
d
 
a
c
c
r
u
a
l
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
m
a
d
e
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
'
1
4
-
'
1
5
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
.

P
a
g
e
 
1
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 15



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
$
1
0
4
,
0
0
0
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
d
r
i
v
e
n
 
b
y
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
f
e
e
s
.
 
 
O
u
r
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
i
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
$
1
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
f
o
r
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
6
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
j
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
d
r
i
v
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
-
l
i
n
e
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
o
v
e
r
a
l
l
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
o
f
 
s
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
1
4
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
b
e
l
o
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
c
o
m
b
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
u
n
f
i
l
l
e
d
 
v
a
c
a
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
t
e
 
I
T
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
,
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
 
t
h
a
n
 
l
a
s
t
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
 
s
h
e
e
t
 
i
s
 
a
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
M
a
y
 
3
1
s
t
,
 
2
0
1
6
.
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
 
$
1
2
1
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
$
2
6
7
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
i
n
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
w
h
e
n
 
y
o
u
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
$
2
4
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
d
e
b
t
.
 
 
I
n
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
f
u
n
d
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
n
e
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
$
5
4
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
m
o
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 
a
s
s
e
t
s
.
 
 
L
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
$
8
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
f
o
r
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
6
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
i
s
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
 
c
l
o
s
e
.
 
 
W
e
 
s
e
e
k
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
a
b
o
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
$
1
.
7
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
n
e
w
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
f
e
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
w
e
e
k
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
n
e
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
e
 
t
r
u
c
k
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
a
t
 
$
2
6
.
7
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
c
o
m
b
i
n
e
d
 
n
e
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
d
u
s
t
r
i
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t

P
a
g
e
 
1
5

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
,
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 
L
o
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
F
u
n
d
s
,
 
a
r
e
 
a
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
$
2
8
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
n
o
n
-
m
a
j
o
r
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
$
3
9
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
n
e
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
L
a
s
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
f
o
r
m
a
l
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
i
n
v
o
i
c
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
$
3
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
d
u
e
 
o
n
 
i
t
s
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
P
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
l
o
a
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
d
u
e
 
o
n
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
 
1
s
t
,
 
2
0
1
6
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 
d
e
b
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
a
b
l
e
s
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
m
a
n
i
l
a
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
 
t
h
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
t
 
a
l
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
4
B
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
a
l
l
y
-
h
e
l
d
 
F
i
r
e
 
T
r
u
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
A
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
F
u
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
s
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
L
a
r
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
M
a
t
k
a
i
t
i
s
.
 
 
H
e
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
m
e
r
 
F
i
r
e
 
M
a
r
s
h
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
H
i
s
 
f
u
n
e
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
i
m
 
c
l
o
s
e
l
y
,
 
a
l
o
n
g
 
w
i
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
 
E
d
d
i
e
 
J
a
c
k
s
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
R
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
 
D
o
n
 
M
o
f
f
i
t
t
,
 
t
o
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
a
g
o
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
e
n
d
e
d
 
u
p
 
i
n
 
l
o
c
a
l
l
y
-
h
e
l
d
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
l
l
o
w
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
r
e
 
M
a
r
s
h
a
l
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
I
F
A
 
t
o
 
d
e
p
l
o
y
 
f
i
r
e
 
t
r
u
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
l
o
a
n
s

P
a
g
e
 
1
6

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 16



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
I
F
A
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
 
s
h
e
e
t
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
i
m
p
a
s
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
w
a
s
 
m
a
d
e
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
e
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
o
f
 
L
a
r
r
y
'
s
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
 
w
e
 
l
o
s
t
 
h
i
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
w
e
e
k
e
n
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
n
e
w
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
n
e
w
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
s
o
 
f
a
r
,
 
G
e
o
r
g
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
i
t
'
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
l
w
a
y
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 
B
i
l
l
 
3
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
l
a
s
t
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
s
 
u
s
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
r
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
F
u
n
d
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
s
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
t
o
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
-
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
e
l
p
e
d
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
a
n
d
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
s
o
m
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
s
i
g
n
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
i
n
t
o
 
l
a
w
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
s
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
J
u
n
e
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
n
 
o
u
r
 
v
i
e
w
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
C
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
F
i
n
d
i
n
g
 
N
o
.
 
1
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
1
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
F
Y
1
5
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
F
Y
1
4
 
a
n
d
 
F
Y
1
5
 
a
u
d
i
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
o
t
h
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
a
 
n
e
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
,
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
a
i
d
 
f
o
r
 
f
r
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
l
y
-
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
d
 
f
u
n
d
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
l
o
o
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
L
e
r
r
y
 
K
n
o
x
,
 
a
 
N
a
v
y
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
w
h
o
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
o
n
 
a
n
 
A
d
v
i
s
o
r
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
i
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
o
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
e
n
a
t
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
B
u
r
t
i
n
o
-
T
e
r
r
a
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
 
N
a
t
a
l
i
e
 
M
a
n
l
e
y
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
w
h
o
 
h
e
l
p
e
d
 
p
a
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
i
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
v
e
r
y
 
g
r
a
t
e
f
u
l
 
t
o
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
R
a
u
n
e
r
,
 
w
h
o
 
p
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
h
i
g
h
 
o
n
 
h
i
s
 
s
i
g
n
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
a
n
d

P
a
g
e
 
1
7

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
i
n
t
o
 
l
a
w
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
M
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
A
n
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
t
 
a
l
l
?
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
t
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
'
s
 
o
r
 
a
c
c
e
p
t
 
t
h
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
m
o
n
t
h
'
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
s
a
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
a
y
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
A
 
c
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
p
p
o
s
e
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
P
l
e
a
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
I
L
D
A
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
'
s
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
r
e
n
e
w
a
l
s
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
y
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
c
a
c
i
a
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
G
r
o
u
p
 
a
n
d
 
S
y
c
a
m
o
r
e
 
A
d
v
i
s
o
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
a
n
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
U
.
S
.
 
B
a
n
k
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
y
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
c
u
s
t
o
d
i
a
n
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
p
o
o
l
,
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
I
T
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
f
u
r
n
i
t
u
r
e
,
 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
,
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
t
e
m
p
o
r
a
r
y
 
s
t
a
f
f
i
n
g
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
 
p
r
i
n
t
i
n
g
,
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
o
n
i
c
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
s
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
h
a
r
d
-
c
o
p
y
 
f
i
l
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
s
 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
s
e
e
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
w
a
r
d
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
1
8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 17



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
f
i
r
m
 
t
o
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
 
i
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
i
t
s
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
 
n
e
w
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
l
a
t
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
m
u
c
h
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
 
a
r
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
b
y
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
l
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 
a
f
t
e
r
n
o
o
n
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
7
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 
S
e
n
i
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
-
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
o
r
 
v
o
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
o
n
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
o
r
s
 
h
a
d
 
n
o
t
 
y
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
w
o
r
k
.
 
 
I
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
o
r
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
l
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
e
d
 
a
 
m
e
m
o
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
i
n
g
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
4
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
2
0
1
4
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
1
5
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
L
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
v
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
i
n

P
a
g
e
 
1
9

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
6
 
G
A
A
P
 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
.
 
 
I
'
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 
o
n
 
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
f
r
o
n
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
a
n
y
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
T
a
x
-
E
x
e
m
p
t
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
T
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
.
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
0
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
a
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
a
s
 
e
a
c
h
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
w
e
 
a
s
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
v
o
t
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
o
 
e
a
c
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
,
 
a
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
o
r
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
o
u
l
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
M
i
k
e
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 
 
I

P
a
g
e
 
2
0

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 18



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
m
a
y
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
'
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
n
o
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
G
o
e
t
z
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
y
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
2
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
;
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
8
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
;

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
2
,
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
s
 
a
t
 
a
l
l
?
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
n
o
t
,
 
t
h
e
n
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
a
h
e
a
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
t
r
i
c
k
 
a
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
?
 
 
P
a
t
r
i
c
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
V
A
N
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
P
a
t
r
i
c
k
 
E
v
a
n
s
 
w
i
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
T
o
d
a
y
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
r
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
f
a
r
m
e
r
 
b
o
n
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
b
a
n
k
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
.
 
 
F
a
r
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
a
l
s
o
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
F
S
A
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
i
n
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
a
n
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
s
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
l
l
a
t
e
r
a
l
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
 
b
a
n
k
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
t
w
o
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
w
o
 
s
i
s
t
e
r
s
,
 
T
r
a
c
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
H
e
u
e
r
m
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
M
i
c
h
e
l
l
e
 
M
e
l
l
e
n
d
o
r
f
,
 
f
o
r
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
e
q
u
a
l
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
4
8
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
.
 
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
N
e
w
t
o
n
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
f
a
r
m
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
e
a
c
h
 
l
o
a
n
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
a
c
h
 
l
o
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
l
o
a
n
 
t
e
r
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
E
a
c
h
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
n
e
-
h
a
l
f
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
4
0
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
$
6
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
$
4
0
0
 
p
e
r
 
a
c
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
C
l
a
y
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
 
i
n
 
S
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
n
 
F
S
A
 
5
/
4
5
/
5
0
 
l
o
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
E
a
c
h
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
i
n
t
e
r
j
e
c
t
 
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
e
q
u
i
t
y
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
S
A
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
4
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
b
a
n
k
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
5
0
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
r
 
$
4
8
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
$
4
8
,
0
0
0
 
l
o
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
n
 
I
F
A
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
l
o
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
 
3
0
-
y
e
a
r
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
3
.
2
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
1
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
d
j
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
e
v
e
r
y
 
1
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
a
t
 
2
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
b
e
l
o
w
 
p
r
i
m
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
f
l
o
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
o
f
 
3
.
2
5
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
c
a
p
 
o
f
 
1
2
.
9
9
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
n
o
t
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
3
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
a
t
 
a
n
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
r
a
t
e
-
a
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
l
o
a
n
 
i
s
 
B
r
e
n
t
 
M
c
C
l
u
r
e
.
 
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
N
e
w
t
o
n
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
f
a
r
m
e
r
 
b
o
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
B
r
e
n
t
 
M
c
C
l
u
r
e
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
4
0
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
$
2
4
4
,
8
0
0
 
o
r
 
$
6
,
1
2
0
 
p
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
a
c
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
J
a
s
p
e
r
 
C
o
u
n
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
i
n
 
S
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
l
o
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
t
e
 
v
i
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
5
0
/
5
0
/
 
F
S
A
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
F
S
A
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
2
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 19



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
5
0
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
b
a
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
5
0
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
r
 
$
1
2
2
,
4
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
l
o
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
F
S
A
 
b
o
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
3
0
-
y
e
a
r
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
3
.
2
5
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
1
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
 
e
v
e
r
y
 
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
a
f
t
e
r
 
a
t
 
2
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
b
e
l
o
w
 
W
a
l
l
 
S
t
r
e
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
p
r
i
m
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
f
l
o
o
r
 
o
f
 
3
.
2
5
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
c
a
p
 
a
t
 
1
2
.
9
9
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
b
e
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
.
 
 
E
x
c
u
s
e
 
m
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
n
o
t
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
3
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
a
n
y
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
h
e
n
 
M
r
.
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 
 
W
e
'
l
l
 
s
k
i
p
 
a
h
e
a
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
3
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
,
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
a
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
2
2
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
i
n
 
1
9
0
0
,
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
i
s
 
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
a
l
l
-
b
o
y
'
s
 
h
i
g
h
 
s
c
h
o
o
l
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
u
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
s
i
d
e
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
t
 
6
4
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
D
a
n
t
e
 
A
v
e
n
u
e
.
 
 
I
t
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
s
p
o
n
s
o
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
S
o
c
i
e
t
y
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
b
y
 
a
n
 
1
8
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
b
o
a
r
d
 
o
f
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
s
e
e
k
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
3
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
3
.
2
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
-
-
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
m
e
,
 
$
8
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f

P
a
g
e
 
2
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
6
 
b
o
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
d
i
r
e
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
b
y
 
W
i
n
t
r
u
s
t
 
B
a
n
k
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
u
r
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
d
d
l
e
 
o
f
 
p
a
g
e
 
5
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
W
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
a
n
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
b
r
e
a
k
d
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
c
o
s
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
2
0
1
6
 
b
o
n
d
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
d
e
m
o
l
i
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
s
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
m
a
s
o
n
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
r
p
e
n
t
r
y
 
c
o
s
t
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
H
V
A
C
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
a
l
,
 
p
l
u
m
b
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
r
e
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
s
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
n
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
 
a
r
e
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
o
o
l
'
s
 
o
v
e
r
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
$
5
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
n
e
w
 
c
a
m
p
a
i
g
n
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
m
e
,
 
a
 
c
a
m
p
a
i
g
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
N
e
w
 
C
e
n
t
u
r
y
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
E
x
c
e
l
l
e
n
c
e
 
F
u
n
d
r
a
i
s
i
n
g
 
C
a
m
p
a
i
g
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
b
e
g
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
i
n
 
2
0
0
8
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
i
s
 
a
 
n
o
n
-
r
a
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
,
 
w
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
a
 
c
o
n
f
i
d
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
p
a
g
e
 
8
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
'
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
 
s
u
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
c
a
s
h
 
f
l
o
w
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
6
 
b
o
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
o
u
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
E
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
n
c
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
c
h
o
o
l
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
l
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
c
i
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
3
 
b
o
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
e
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
6
 
b
o
n
d
,
 
i
s
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
C
h
a
s
e
,
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
n
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
t
o
p
 
o
f
 
p
a
g
e
 
8
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
i
s
c
o
u
n
t
e
d
 
o
u
r
 
f
e
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 20



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
i
c
a
l
 
p
r
a
c
t
i
c
e
.
 
 
I
 
c
a
n
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
N
o
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
4
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
b
o
o
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
4
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
2
0
0
7
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
r
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
a
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
r
e
a
s
:
 
 
S
t
.
 
J
o
h
n
 
C
h
a
p
e
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t
s
 
m
a
s
s
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
s
;
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
H
a
l
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
s
 
5
8
1
 
b
e
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
;
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
T
h
o
u
g
h
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
o
l
o
g
y
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
b
o
t
h
 
c
o
l
l
e
g
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
n
o
n
-
c
o
l
l
e
g
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
b
a
n
k
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
b
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
P
N
C
 
B
a
n
k
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
s
w
a
p
 
t
o
 
f
i
x
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
b
a
n
k
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
l
o
a
t
s
 
a
t
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
e
q
u
i
v
a
l
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
L
I
B
O
R
 
p
l
u
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
e
d
 
i
n
 
1
9
0
5
.
 
 
T
o
d
a
y
 
N
e
w
m
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
s
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
f
o
u
n
d
 
a
t
 
m
o
s
t
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
u
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
i
e
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
u
n
t
r
y
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
5

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
1
9
2
7
,
 
t
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
 
w
a
s
 
b
u
i
l
t
 
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
S
t
.
 
J
o
h
n
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
C
h
a
p
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
H
a
l
l
,
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
'
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
h
e
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
,
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
a
c
r
o
s
s
 
f
r
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
r
m
o
r
y
,
 
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
n
 
o
n
e
 
b
l
o
c
k
 
f
r
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
q
u
a
d
 
F
o
e
l
l
i
n
g
e
r
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
i
u
m
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
s
t
 
c
l
a
s
s
r
o
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
h
a
l
l
 
w
a
s
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
2
0
0
8
 
t
o
 
a
 
3
8
1
 
b
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
c
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
.
 
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
H
a
l
l
 
i
s
 
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
1
6
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
 
a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
'
s
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
P
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
m
e
e
t
s
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
 
s
e
t
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
l
l
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
f
r
e
s
h
m
e
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
i
n
 
a
n
y
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
2
7
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
t
e
r
i
n
g
 
f
r
e
s
h
m
e
n
 
c
l
a
s
s
 
c
h
o
o
s
e
s
 
t
o
 
l
i
v
e
 
i
n
 
o
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
e
s
h
m
e
n
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
w
a
s
 
7
,
2
2
2
;
 
u
n
d
e
r
g
r
a
d
u
a
t
e
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
m
e
n
t
,
 
3
2
,
8
7
8
;
 
a
n
d
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
 
o
f
 
4
3
,
1
2
3
.
 
 
F
r
e
s
h
m
e
n
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
s
p
e
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
3
0
 
a
c
a
d
e
m
i
c
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
r
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
m
a
y
 
t
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
 
t
o
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
H
a
l
l
 
w
h
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
p
e
n
a
l
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
'
s
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
 
t
o
 
m
e
e
t
 
f
o
r
 
-
-
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m
e
t
 
f
o
r
 
e
l
i
g
i
b
l
e
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
s
a
f
e
t
y
,
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
m
e
n
i
t
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
m
u
s
t
 
b
e
 
e
l
i
g
i
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
l
y
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
c
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
,
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
l
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
r
e
l
i
g
i
o
n
.

P
a
g
e
 
2
6

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 21



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
'
s
 
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
2
0
1
5
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
s
h
o
w
 
g
o
o
d
 
d
e
b
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
1
.
7
6
 
a
n
d
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
1
6
5
 
d
a
y
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
g
i
v
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
a
 
n
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
a
t
 
$
1
0
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
M
s
.
 
A
n
n
e
 
D
o
n
a
h
o
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
t
o
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
O
N
A
H
O
E
:
 
 
H
e
l
l
o
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
y
o
u
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
P
a
m
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
i
z
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
s
 
w
e
l
l
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
d
e
s
c
r
i
b
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
i
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
h
a
l
l
s
 
d
o
w
n
 
t
h
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
?
 
 
W
e
l
l
,
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
n
o
t
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
a
n
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
N
e
w
m
a
n
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
d
o
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
s
 
P
a
m
 
s
a
i
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
b
l
e
 
n
e
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
m
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
G
r
e
a
t
.
 
 
W
e
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
o
v
e
r
 
N
o
.
 
5
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
o
r
r
e
c
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
t
o
 
N
o
.
 
6
,
 
w
h
i
c
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
i
s
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
L
i
v
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
a
n
d
 
O
a
k
s
i
d
e
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
S
e
n
i
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
L
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
O
a
k
s
i
d
e
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a

P
a
g
e
 
2
7

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
$
9
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
,
 
t
o
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
2
0
0
6
C
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
o
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
o
r
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
9
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
a
c
q
u
i
r
i
n
g
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
n
g
,
 
r
e
n
o
v
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
r
e
m
o
d
e
l
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
9
7
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
j
o
b
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
o
r
k
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
w
o
 
n
e
w
 
j
o
b
s
 
a
t
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
f
a
r
 
s
o
u
t
h
e
r
n
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
m
e
t
r
o
p
o
l
i
t
a
n
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
h
e
a
d
q
u
a
r
t
e
r
e
d
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
K
a
n
k
a
k
e
e
.
 
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
o
w
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
K
a
n
k
a
k
e
e
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
3
1
2
 
b
e
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
i
n
 
K
a
n
k
a
k
e
e
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
,
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
v
e
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
M
a
n
t
e
n
o
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 
1
8
 
b
e
d
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
i
n
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
,
 
s
u
b
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
a
b
u
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
o
u
t
s
i
d
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
m
u
l
t
i
p
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
t
y
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
s
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
K
a
n
k
a
k
e
e
,
 
B
o
u
r
b
o
n
n
a
i
s
,
 
M
a
n
t
e
n
o
,
 
M
o
n
e
e
,
 
M
o
m
e
n
c
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
H
o
p
k
i
n
s
 
P
a
r
k
,
 
W
a
t
s
e
k
a
,
 
G
i
l
l
m
a
n
,
 
W
i
l
m
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 
P
e
o
t
o
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
a
l
 
C
i
t
y
.
 
 
L
o
t
s
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
w
a
y
,
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
o
w
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
s
 
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
W
e
s
t
w
o
o
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
O
a
k
,
 
9
6
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s

P
a
g
e
 
2
8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 22



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
B
u
t
t
e
r
f
i
e
l
d
 
C
o
u
r
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
2
1
 
r
a
n
c
h
-
s
t
y
l
e
 
f
a
m
i
l
y
 
h
o
m
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
W
e
s
t
w
o
o
d
 
E
s
t
a
t
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
1
6
0
 
b
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
n
u
r
s
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
a
c
r
o
s
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
K
a
n
k
a
k
e
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
L
i
v
i
n
g
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
a
l
s
o
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
a
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
 
i
n
 
B
o
u
r
b
o
n
n
a
i
s
,
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
4
8
 
s
t
u
d
i
o
 
u
n
i
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
3
3
 
-
-
 
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
o
m
 
g
r
o
w
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
e
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
,
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
h
a
s
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
3
3
1
 
n
e
w
 
j
o
b
s
 
s
i
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
J
u
n
e
 
2
0
,
 
2
0
1
2
.
 
 
R
i
v
e
r
s
i
d
e
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
y
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
t
r
o
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
m
a
r
g
i
n
 
a
n
d
 
f
a
v
o
r
a
b
l
e
 
l
i
q
u
i
d
i
t
y
 
r
a
t
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
e
t
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
3
7
9
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
t
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
2
0
0
6
C
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
t
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
i
s
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
$
6
.
1
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
7
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
N
o
.
 
7
,
 
S
m
i
t
h
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
S
m
i
t
h
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
3
5
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
 
t
o
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
5
A
 
b
o
n
d
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
5
B
-
2
 
b
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
y
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
-
-
 
p
a
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
m
i
t
h
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
i
s
 
a
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

P
a
g
e
 
2
9

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
n
o
t
-
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
'
s
 
B
e
v
e
r
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
n
e
i
g
h
b
o
r
h
o
o
d
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 
c
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
r
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
1
4
9
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
5
7
 
t
r
a
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
2
4
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
1
0
0
 
s
k
i
l
l
e
d
 
n
u
r
s
i
n
g
 
b
e
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
m
i
t
h
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
i
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
a
 
n
o
n
-
r
a
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
s
 
a
 
d
i
r
e
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
b
a
n
k
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
b
y
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
 
B
a
n
k
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
M
e
r
i
t
 
B
a
n
k
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
f
l
o
a
t
i
n
g
-
r
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
w
a
p
p
e
d
 
t
o
 
f
i
x
e
d
-
r
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
d
e
b
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
5
A
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
5
B
-
2
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
i
n
 
a
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
o
f
 
$
1
1
,
3
4
7
,
0
0
0
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
1
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
$
1
.
1
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
,
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
d
e
b
t
 
o
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
i
m
m
e
d
i
a
t
e
l
y
 
b
e
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 
b
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
$
2
,
6
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
2
0
1
5
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
i
s
 
2
.
0
5
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
2
0
4
 
d
a
y
s
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
n
o
t
e
 
S
m
i
t
h
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
'
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
T
o
m
 
S
t
a
r
s
h
a
k
,
 
i
s
 
h
e
r
e
.
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
R
S
H
A
K
:
 
 
N
o
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
r
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
o
f
 
8
 
-
-
 
9
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
3
0

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 23



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
h
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
G
o
t
 
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
M
o
o
r
i
n
g
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
A
r
l
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
H
e
i
g
h
t
s
 
i
s
 
s
e
e
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
p
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
-
-
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
P
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
7
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
F
e
l
l
o
w
s
h
i
p
 
H
a
l
l
,
 
a
 
2
7
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
s
q
u
a
r
e
-
f
o
o
t
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 
a
r
e
a
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
7
3
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
2
0
 
u
n
i
t
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
 
e
x
p
a
n
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
2
4
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
r
e
s
b
y
t
e
r
i
a
n
 
H
o
m
e
s
,
 
a
 
n
e
w
l
y
-
f
o
r
m
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
n
o
t
-
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
,
 
b
e
c
a
m
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
l
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
s
o
l
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
P
r
e
s
b
y
t
e
r
i
a
n
 
H
o
m
e
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
N
F
P
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
w
 
t
h
e
 
M
o
o
r
i
n
g
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
s
u
b
s
i
d
i
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
P
r
e
s
b
y
t
e
r
i
a
n
 
H
o
m
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
i
s
 
h
e
a
d
q
u
a
r
t
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
E
v
a
n
s
t
o
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
a
 
s
u
b
u
r
b
 
o
f
 
n
o
r
t
h
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
a
n
d
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
1
,
6
0
0
 
o
l
d
e
r
 
a
d
u
l
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
i
t
s
 
f
i
v
e
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
8
5
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
j
o
b
s
 
a
n
d
 
5
0
 
n
e
w
 
j
o
b
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
d
i
r
e
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
b
a
n
k
 
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
 
B
a
n
k
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
H
u
n
t
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
B
a
n
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
-
r
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
n
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
-
r
a
t
e
 
h
e
d
g
e
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
t
h
e
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
a
l
o
n
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
t
 
n
e
x
t

P
a
g
e
 
3
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
m
o
n
t
h
'
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
M
o
o
r
i
n
g
s
'
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
P
r
e
s
.
 
H
o
m
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
b
r
e
a
k
 
t
h
e
m
 
o
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
d
o
 
s
o
m
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
n
e
x
t
 
i
s
 
t
a
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
1
0
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
M
A
C
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
M
a
c
h
i
n
e
r
y
 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
s
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
e
,
 
5
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
T
o
w
e
r
 
B
o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d
,
 
L
L
C
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
2
0
0
6
,
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
C
h
a
s
e
 
B
a
n
k
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
b
o
n
d
 
a
t
 
a
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
J
u
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
2
0
1
6
.
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
s
k
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
n
k
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
g
r
e
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
t
o
 
f
i
x
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
t
 
a
 
r
e
s
e
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
f
i
v
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
,
 
I
F
A
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
t
o
m
o
r
r
o
w
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
l
y
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
h
a
r
g
i
n
g
 
a
 
$
5
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
f
e
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
j
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
a
s
 
b
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
,
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
i
n
 
1
9
9
9
 
w
e
r
e
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
'
s
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
i
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
o
u
t
 
i
n
 
C
a
r
o
l
 
S
t
r
e
a
m
.
 
 
I
 
c
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.

P
a
g
e
 
3
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 24



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
 
i
s
 
t
a
b
 
N
o
.
 
1
1
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
N
a
v
i
s
t
a
r
,
 
I
n
c
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
I
F
A
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
a
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 
b
o
n
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
A
c
t
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
;
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
s
i
m
p
l
y
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
s
c
r
i
v
e
n
e
r
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
e
r
r
o
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
d
e
f
i
n
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
d
i
s
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
s
t
o
c
k
.
 
 
I
F
A
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
s
 
c
u
s
t
o
m
e
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.
 
 
A
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
l
y
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
n
o
 
f
e
e
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
3
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
i
n
t
e
r
-
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
S
t
a
t
e
-
s
i
s
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
E
c
o
n
o
m
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
s
p
a
c
e
,
 
D
C
E
O
,
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
o
f
 
E
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
-
-
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
E
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
O
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
h
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
i
n
 
a
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
d
o
w
n
t
o
w
n
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
w
a
l
k
i
n
g
 
d
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
C
a
p
i
t
o
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
w
o
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
a
m
m
y
 
H
a
r
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
t
r
i
c
k
 
E
v
a
n
s
,
 
w
e
 
p
a
y
 
n
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
f
e
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
a
s
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
E
v
e
r
y
 
J
u
l
y
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
d
o
p
t
s
 
a
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
1
2
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
w
 
i
n
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
7
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

P
a
g
e
 
3
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
u
n
i
q
u
e
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
w
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
 
o
u
r
 
o
w
n
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
g
o
e
s
 
l
a
r
g
e
l
y
 
i
n
t
o
 
o
u
r
 
o
w
n
 
l
o
c
a
l
l
y
-
h
e
l
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
d
e
l
e
g
a
t
e
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
t
o
 
w
r
i
t
e
 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
p
e
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
d
o
,
 
i
n
 
t
a
b
 
N
o
.
 
1
5
,
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
i
t
 
b
y
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
'
s
 
m
a
n
i
l
a
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
p
a
g
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
p
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
p
a
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
a
k
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
p
a
g
e
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
b
o
o
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
s
t
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
e
v
e
r
 
s
u
b
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.
 
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
m
e
n
t
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
e
a
m
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
f
i
n
e
 
w
o
r
k
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
a
l
o
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
W
e
b
e
r
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
R
i
c
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
F
r
a
m
p
t
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
P
a
m
 
L
e
n
a
n
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
p
i
e
c
e
 
o
f
 
w
o
r
k
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
o
n
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
l
l
e
g
i
a
l
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
t
e
a
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
g
r
a
n
d
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
i
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
$
4
.
9
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
I
t
 
i
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
o
 
l
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
'
s
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
d
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
-
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
I
T
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
h
e
a
d
 
c
o
u
n
t
.
 
 
I
t
 
d
o
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
i
t
 
a
l
l
o
w
s
 
f
o
r
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
a
 
-
-
 
i
t
 
a
l
l
o
w
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
p
a
r
t
i
a
l
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
f
o
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
v
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
l
o
a
d
 
a
n
d

P
a
g
e
 
3
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 25



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
t
y
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
i
m
p
a
s
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
m
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
r
a
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
 
d
i
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
l
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
d
o
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
a
l
a
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
J
u
l
y
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
l
i
n
e
 
i
t
e
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
b
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
e
l
l
 
y
o
u
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
r
o
b
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
H
o
r
n
e
'
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
p
r
i
m
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
d
r
i
v
e
r
.
 
 
I
 
d
o
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
P
a
m
 
a
n
d
 
R
i
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
d
e
e
p

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
k
n
o
w
l
e
d
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
p
e
r
i
e
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
s
,
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
.
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
r
e
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
b
e
y
o
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
e
d
i
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
m
e
r
i
t
e
d
,
 
i
n
 
l
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
d
e
a
l
 
p
i
p
e
l
i
n
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
l
o
w
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
i
f
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
h
a
s
 
a
n
y
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
d
i
d
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
I
L
D
A
R
T
:
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
u
m
p
t
i
o
n
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
e
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
v
a
c
a
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
F
Y
1
6
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
d
e
b
t
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
s
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
F
Y
1
7
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
a
s
s
u
m
e
s
 
a
 
f
u
l
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
t
e
m
p
o
r
a
r
i
l
y

P
a
g
e
 
3
5

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
s
t
a
f
f
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
o
n
i
c
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
s
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
h
i
c
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
b
e
g
a
n
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
3
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
l
l
o
w
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
 
a
l
 
o
f
 
i
t
s
 
h
a
r
d
-
c
o
p
y
 
f
i
l
e
s
 
i
n
t
o
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
o
n
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
f
o
r
m
a
t
 
f
o
r
 
e
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
a
l
l
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
u
s
e
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
t
o
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
e
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
y
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
s
,
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
 
w
h
a
t
'
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
U
.
S
.
 
S
u
p
r
e
m
e
 
C
o
u
r
t
 
R
u
t
a
n
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
t
r
a
i
n
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
o
f
f
i
c
i
a
l
 
R
u
t
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
t
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
l
i
e
d
,
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
,
 
o
n
 
t
e
m
p
o
r
a
r
y
 
s
t
a
f
f
i
n
g
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
i
l
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
c
o
s
t
l
y
,
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
g
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
a
w
a
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
o
 
f
i
l
l
 
a
r
e
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
o
 
a
 
f
a
i
r
l
y
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
C
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
I
T
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
,
 
t
h
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
w
a
s
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
I
 
h
a
d
 
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
o
f
f
 
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
s
i
m
p
l
y
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
i
t
,
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
I
 
d
o
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
t
 
t
w
o
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
d
e
v
o
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
l
o
n
g
-
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
i
n
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
3
6

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 26



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
c
o
s
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
e
m
p
o
r
a
r
y
 
s
t
a
f
f
i
n
g
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
p
a
r
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
.
 
 
A
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
u
l
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
p
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
 
h
o
p
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
1
2
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
d
i
f
f
i
c
u
l
t
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
w
a
l
k
 
a
w
a
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
r
i
g
h
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
s
i
d
e
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
n
e
w
l
y
-
c
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
I
T
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
D
O
-
I
T
.
 
 
I
 
c
a
n
'
t
 
t
e
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
s
t
a
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
.
 
 
O
h
,
 
h
e
r
e
,
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
h
a
s
 
i
t
.
 
 
S
a
y
 
i
t
 
a
g
a
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
I
L
D
A
R
T
:
 
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
.
 
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
w
a
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
'
v
e
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
I
T
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
i
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
w
a
s
 
i
n
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
H
a
r
t
i
c
k
 
B
o
t
t
s
,
 
w
h
o
 
h
e
a
d
s
 
u
p
 
D
O
-
I
T
,
 
h
i
s
 
c
h
i
e
f
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
A
s
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
r
e
o
p
e
n
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
D
O
-
I
T
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
t
r
y
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
o
 
p
i
g
g
y
b
a
c
k
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
e
x
p
e
r
t
i
s
e
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
r
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
p
e
r
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
,
 
w
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
f
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
s
h
o
r
t
,
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
u
r
 
a
s
s
u
m
p
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
o
u
r
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
l
e
,
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
i
n

P
a
g
e
 
3
7

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
l
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
m
o
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
i
t
s
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
a
s
 
g
o
o
d
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
s
,
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
u
l
t
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
,
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
s
,
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
b
a
n
k
e
r
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
o
r
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
d
e
b
t
,
 
n
o
t
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
P
a
m
 
a
n
d
 
R
i
c
h
,
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
 
a
y
e
 
v
o
t
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
n
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
t
o
o
,
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
i
t
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
 
t
h
o
r
o
u
g
h
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
p
u
s
h
e
d
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
p
l
a
c
e
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
s
i
d
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
v
e
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
m
i
n
d
f
u
l
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
s
i
d
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
o
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
e
l
s
e
 
w
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
v
o
t
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
n
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
,
 
3
,
 
4
,
 
6
,
 
7
,
 
9
,
 
1
0
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
1
1
,
 
1
3
 
a
n
d
 
4
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
B
y
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
B
y
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

P
a
g
e
 
3
8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 27



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.
 
 
A
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
r
o
o
m
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
i
t
e
m
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
h
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
,
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
.
 
 
I
 
s
e
r
v
e
 
o
n
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
a
u
x
i
l
i
a
r
y
 
g
r
o
u
p
 
o
f
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
.
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
o
n
 
O
S
F
,
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d

P
a
g
e
 
3
9

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
s
;
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
s
i
d
e
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
m
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 
h
i
m
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
y
 
e
x
i
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
a
b
 
2
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
b
o
o
k
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 
a
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
4
7
,
5
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
9
A
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
2
0
0
8
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
9
A
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
$
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
i
l
y
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
f
o
r
 
p
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
'
s
 
m
o
d
e
r
n
 
w
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
G
o
n
z
a
l
e
s
 
H
a
l
l
,
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
g
a
l
l
e
r
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
a
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
i
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
2
0
0
9
A
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
b
e
a
r
 
a
 
f
i
x
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
6
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
f
i
n
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
 
d
a
t
e
 
i
s
 
M
a
r
c
h
 
1
,
 
2
0
3
8
.
 
 
I
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
 
d
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
m
a
i
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
,
 
b
u
t
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
r
i
d
e
 
d
o
w
n
 
t
h
e
 
y
i
e
l
d
 
c
u
r
v
e
 
t
o
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
m
a
r
k
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
r
e
.

P
a
g
e
 
4
0

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 28



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
2
0
-
y
e
a
r
 
r
a
t
e
s
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
M
M
D
 
i
n
d
e
x
 
i
s
,
 
i
s
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
2
-
a
n
d
-
a
-
h
a
l
f
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
r
 
s
o
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
a
l
s
o
,
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
e
g
i
n
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
6
 
b
o
n
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
y
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
r
a
t
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
y
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
l
y
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
t
t
a
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
d
e
-
l
e
v
e
r
a
g
i
n
g
 
o
b
j
e
c
t
i
v
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
,
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
 
u
p
g
r
a
d
e
d
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
'
s
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
o
u
t
l
o
o
k
 
f
r
o
m
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
o
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
f
f
i
r
m
e
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
A
1
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
.
 
 
A
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
 
n
o
t
e
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
o
u
t
l
o
o
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
c
a
s
h
 
f
l
o
w
,
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
o
n
g
o
i
n
g
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
r
e
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
o
c
c
u
r
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
a
d
v
e
r
s
e
l
y
 
a
f
f
e
c
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
'
s
 
l
i
q
u
i
d
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
m
y
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
O
W
D
E
N
:
 
 
A
l
i
s
o
n
 
S
o
w
d
e
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
A
l
i
s
o
n
 
S
o
w
d
e
n
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
o
f
 
T
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
O
W
D
E
N
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
l
o
n
g
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
I
F
A
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
r
a
t
e
f
u
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
i
s
s
u
i
n
g

P
a
g
e
 
4
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
1
9
7
8
 
w
h
e
n
 
n
o
t
-
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
s
 
w
e
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
a
l
l
o
w
e
d
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
s
o
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
u
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
t
o
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
b
l
e
 
n
e
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
p
r
o
u
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
s
,
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
o
p
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
d
e
a
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
l
l
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
c
a
n
 
h
e
l
p
 
y
o
u
,
 
b
u
t
 
I
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
a
g
a
i
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
N
o
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
F
r
a
m
p
t
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
a
b
 
N
o
.
 
8
.
 
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
F
i
n
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
1
2
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 
b
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
i
s
 
h
e
a
d
q
u
a
r
t
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
P
e
o
r
i
a
.
 
 
T
e
n
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
'
s
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
O
n
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
h
a
s
 
1
5
0
0
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 
b
e
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
'
s
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
P
e
o
r
i
a
,
 
i
s
 
a
 
6
0
9
 
b
e
d
 
t
e
r
t
i
a
r
y
 
c
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
e
a
c
h
i
n
g
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
n
u
m
e
r
o
u
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
t
y
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
v
e
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
c
y
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
r
r
a
y
 
o
f
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
4
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 29



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
b
y
 
O
S
F
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
4
4
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
-
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
2
4
8
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
s
;
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
o
f
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
d
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
s
,
 
s
i
x
 
h
o
m
e
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
v
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
s
 
1
5
,
2
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
.
 
 
O
S
F
 
i
s
 
r
a
t
e
d
 
A
2
 
b
y
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
 
a
n
d
 
A
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
f
i
x
e
d
-
r
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
b
e
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 
a
t
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
b
y
 
B
a
r
c
l
a
y
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
h
a
s
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
3
.
4
5
 
d
e
b
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
2
1
5
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
6
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
A
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
a
g
a
i
n
 
M
s
.
 
A
n
n
e
 
D
o
n
a
h
o
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
t
o
 
O
S
F
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
O
N
A
H
O
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
,
 
P
a
m
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
g
l
a
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
h
a
v
e
;
 
b
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
i
n
g
l
y
 
e
n
o
u
g
h
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
a
s
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
h
a
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
6
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
6
-
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
b
a
c
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
c
r
i
s
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
w
e
r
e
 
-
-
 
h
a
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
c
c
e
p
t
e
d
,
 
b
u
t
 
n
o
w
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
O
S
F
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
h
e
r
e
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
m
u
l
t
i
p
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
s
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
m
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
.
 
 
M
a
y
 
I
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y

P
a
g
e
 
4
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
y
o
u
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
h
a
v
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
N
o
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
O
N
A
H
O
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
O
S
F
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
P
a
m
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
n
o
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
w
e
 
m
o
v
e
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
2
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
-
-
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
2
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
m
e
m
o
r
a
n
d
u
m
,
 
a
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
d
 
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
'
s
 
m
a
n
i
l
a
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
W
a
i
t
.
 
 
N
o
t
 
y
e
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
f
o
u
r
 
i
t
e
m
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
i
t
e
m
 
i
s
 
w
e
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
s
e
e
k
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
r
e
n
e
w
a
l
;
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
p
a
i
d
 
h
o
u
r
l
y
 
a
r
e
 
A
c
a
c
i
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
G
r
o
u
p
 
o
f
 
a
n
d
 
S
y
c
a
m
o
r
e
 
A
d
v
i
s
o
r
s
.
 
 
B
o
t
h
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
w
o
m
e
n
-
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
r
e
l
y
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
m
 
f
o
r
 
t
w
o
 
f
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
s
:
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
;
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
a
n
 
u
p
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
v
e
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
s
 
t
o
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
o
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
e
x
p
e
r
t
i
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
'
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
n
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
f

P
a
g
e
 
4
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 30



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
t
h
e
s
e
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
w
o
r
k
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
n
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
l
i
n
e
 
o
u
t
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
d
 
m
e
m
o
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
m
o
 
w
a
s
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
b
o
o
k
s
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
d
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
'
s
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
o
o
k
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
o
n
 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
e
e
k
;
 
h
e
n
c
e
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
d
e
l
e
t
e
d
 
l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
2
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
-
-
 
a
l
s
o
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
w
o
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
m
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
m
o
r
e
 
a
k
i
n
 
o
f
 
I
F
A
 
a
n
d
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
r
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
;
 
w
h
e
r
e
a
s
,
 
f
o
r
 
a
s
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
O
S
F
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
,
 
O
S
F
 
a
n
d
 
T
h
e
 
A
r
t
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
i
s
s
u
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
2
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
f
a
i
r
l
y
 
l
e
n
g
t
h
y
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
u
l
t
i
m
a
t
e
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
f
o
u
r
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
o
k
a
y
,
 
f
o
u
r
 
s
e
n
i
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
c
o
-
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
g
r
a
d
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
u
t
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
u
l
t
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
i
n

P
a
g
e
 
4
5

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
3
,
 
w
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
$
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
 
M
e
r
r
i
l
l
 
L
y
n
c
h
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
w
h
o
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
t
w
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
c
o
-
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
:
 
 
R
a
m
i
r
e
z
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
o
p
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
w
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
a
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
l
a
r
g
e
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
$
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
a
l
s
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
n
o
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o
 
2
0
1
3
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
s
 
p
r
e
d
e
c
e
s
s
o
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 
b
o
n
d
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
i
n
 
2
0
0
4
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
2
0
0
2
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
2
0
1
3
 
d
e
a
l
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
$
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
w
o
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
w
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
a
s
 
A
A
A
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
r
i
c
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
 
n
o
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
p
e
n
a
l
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
q
u
i
t
e
 
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
a
c
c
o
m
p
l
i
s
h
m
e
n
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
s
o
m
e
 
w
e
e
k
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
p
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
w
 
b
e
e
n
 
o
v
e
r
t
u
r
n
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
S
u
p
r
e
m
e
 
C
o
u
r
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
s
o
m
e
 
w
e
e
k
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
p
a
s
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
t
i
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
w
a
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
w
i
t
h
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
w
e
 
f
r
e
e
d
 
u
p
 
s
o
m
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
w
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
d
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
o
f
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
m
a
t
c
h
.
 
 
S
o
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
i
n
 
e
s
s
e
n
c
e
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
i
s
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
i
n
 
e
s
s
e
n
c
e
,
 
w
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
d
 
$
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
t
o
o
k
 
a
 
$
4
0
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
a
n
d
 
t
u
r
n
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
i
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
a
 
n
e
a
r
l
y
 
$
8
0
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
S
o
 
w
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
 
w
a
s
 
w
e
 
t
o
o
k
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
d
i
s
c
r
e
p
a
n
c
y
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
h
e

P
a
g
e
 
4
6

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 31



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
s
o
l
i
c
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
a
 
s
c
r
i
v
e
n
e
r
'
s
 
e
r
r
o
r
,
 
d
i
d
 
n
o
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
i
m
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
o
f
f
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
o
n
e
-
y
e
a
r
 
t
e
r
m
.
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
m
 
a
s
k
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
t
w
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
,
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
y
e
a
r
 
t
e
r
m
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
e
x
p
i
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
l
a
t
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
;
 
a
n
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
b
y
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
w
e
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
i
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
t
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
,
 
w
e
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
i
n
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
r
o
b
u
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
v
e
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
e
x
p
e
d
i
t
e
d
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
l
i
c
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
m
o
n
g
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
i
n
d
e
e
d
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
 
s
i
t
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
a
s
s
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
o
n
e
 
p
a
g
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
e
a
m
,
 
w
h
o
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
n
a
m
e
 
i
n
 
o
p
e
n
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
o
n
e
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
l
e
a
d
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
t
y
 
R
e
n
a
l
d
i
 
f
r
o
m
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
d
i
d
 
a
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
e
x
t
r
a
o
r
d
i
n
a
r
y
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
w
o
r
k
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
j
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
a
m
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
w
o
r
k
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
l
i
c
i
t
a
t
i
o
n

P
a
g
e
 
4
7

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
o
n
e
 
o
r
 
m
o
r
e
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
s
k
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
M
e
r
r
i
l
l
 
L
y
n
c
h
,
 
P
i
e
r
c
e
,
 
F
e
n
n
e
r
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
S
m
i
t
h
,
 
I
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
d
,
 
s
o
m
e
t
i
m
e
s
 
r
e
f
e
r
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
s
 
B
a
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
o
f
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
 
M
e
r
r
i
l
l
 
L
y
n
c
h
,
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
s
o
l
e
 
b
o
o
k
 
r
u
n
n
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
u
p
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
i
t
i
g
r
o
u
p
 
G
l
o
b
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
 
a
s
 
c
o
-
s
e
n
i
o
r
,
 
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
z
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
a
 
c
o
-
s
e
n
i
o
r
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
-
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
i
x
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
t
s
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
f
i
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
c
o
-
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
a
d
 
t
h
e
m
 
i
n
 
a
l
p
h
a
b
e
t
i
c
a
l
,
 
n
o
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
c
r
i
t
e
r
i
a
 
o
r
d
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
e
f
f
e
r
i
e
s
 
&
 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
,
 
L
o
o
p
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
P
i
p
e
r
 
J
a
f
f
r
a
y
,
 
S
a
m
u
e
l
 
A
.
 
R
a
m
i
r
e
z
 
&
 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
S
i
e
b
e
r
t
 
B
r
a
d
f
o
r
d
 
S
h
a
n
k
 
a
s
 
c
o
-
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
r
o
b
u
s
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
p
r
e
s
s
 
m
y
 
d
e
e
p
 
g
r
a
t
i
t
u
d
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
o
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
c
a
t
e
d
,
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
h
i
g
h
l
y
-
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
e
d
 
t
a
s
k
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
g
r
a
t
e
f
u
l
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
t
i
m
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
a
n
d
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
,
 
e
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
w
i
d
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
r
r
a
y
 
o
f
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
i
m
e
-
s
e
n
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
d
u
t
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
s
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
a
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
a
t
.
 
 
M
y
 
d
a
u
g
h
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
w
o
r
k
s
 
f
o
r
,
 
s
u
m
m
e
r
 
j
o
b
,
 
b
u
t
 
s
h
e
 
d
o
e
s
 
w
o
r
k
 
f
o
r
 
o
n
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
h
o
s
e
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
f
 
w
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
v
o
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
W
e
b
e
r
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
4
8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 32



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
M
y
 
g
u
e
s
s
 
i
s
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
n
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t
 
y
o
u
 
l
e
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
m
e
n
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 
 
I
t
 
w
a
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
p
u
t
 
i
n
 
f
r
o
n
t
 
o
f
 
m
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
a
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
 
a
g
o
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
I
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
i
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
N
o
 
e
l
s
e
 
l
e
a
v
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
,
 
I
'
m
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
h
e
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
o
u
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
i
s
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
G
o
o
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
i
m
 
s
t
a
y
 
o
u
t
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
2
,
 
b
u
t
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
i
m
 
c
o
m
e
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
f
o
r
 
v
o
t
e
s
 
o
n
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
N
o
.
 
5
,
 
f
o
r
 
2
,
 
8
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
2
 
a
n
d
 
8
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
 
o
u
t
 
N
o
.
 
1
2
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
F
i
n
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
S
o
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
3
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
B
o
n
d
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
,
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
'
s
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
,
 
t
r
u
s
t
e
e
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
l
y
 
o
n
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
W
e
b
e
r

P
a
g
e
 
4
9

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
o
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
g
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
w
e
 
-
-
 
a
g
a
i
n
 
h
i
g
h
l
y
-
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 
w
e
 
s
o
l
i
c
i
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
 
p
o
o
l
 
o
f
 
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
l
a
w
 
f
i
r
m
s
 
f
o
r
 
b
o
n
d
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
 
r
o
b
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
a
t
t
e
n
 
M
u
c
h
i
n
 
w
a
s
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
e
d
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
W
e
b
e
r
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
D
e
p
u
t
y
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
D
e
n
i
s
e
 
B
u
r
n
,
 
D
e
n
i
s
e
,
 
r
a
i
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
y
o
u
r
 
h
a
n
d
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
e
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
f
o
r
m
e
r
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 
a
t
 
K
a
t
t
e
n
.
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
t
o
o
k
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
s
 
t
o
 
w
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
t
h
e
m
 
o
f
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
m
y
 
t
h
a
n
k
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
o
r
s
.
 
 
Y
o
u

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
y
 
g
r
a
t
i
t
u
d
e
.
 
 
G
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
-
s
e
n
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
n
a
t
u
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
I
 
h
a
d
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
K
a
t
t
e
n
 
M
u
c
h
i
n
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
o
u
l
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
b
e
g
i
n
 
w
o
r
k
,
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
o
u
r
 
t
i
g
h
t
 
t
i
m
e
l
i
n
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
 
I
 
a
s
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
r
o
b
u
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
v
e
r
y
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
i
v
e
n
 
o
u
r
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
t
w
o
 
l
a
w
y
e
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
o
n
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
I
 
d
i
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
 
m
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
e
n
g
a
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
S
c
h
i
f
f
 
H
a
r
d
i
n
,
 
B
r
u
c
e
 
W
e
i
s
e
n
t
h
a
l
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
a
 
t
r
u
s
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
p
o
o
l
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
e
r
'
s
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
'
s
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
r
'
s
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
h
i
s
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
M
s
.
 
W
e
b
e
r
,
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
I
 
m
a
y
 
b
e

P
a
g
e
 
5
0

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 33



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
m
i
s
s
i
n
g
 
s
o
m
e
 
n
u
a
n
c
e
s
 
h
e
r
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
o
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
'
s
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
,
 
t
r
u
s
t
e
e
,
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
g
o
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
g
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
e
n
t
i
t
i
e
s
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
i
n
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
m
e
t
h
o
d
o
l
o
g
y
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
h
i
g
h
l
y
-
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
m
a
y
 
w
e
l
l
 
e
n
d
 
u
p

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
s
o
l
e
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
a
s
k
 
-
-
 
I
'
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
N
o
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
4
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
s
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
e
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
s
e
n
s
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
a
c
t
o
r
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
,
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
h
i
g
h
l
y
-
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
e
d
,
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
,
 
r
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
-
i
n
t
e
n
s
i
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
w
e
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
v
o
l
u
n
t
e
e
r
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
t
h
e
 
v
a
s
t
 
m
a
j
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
d
e
b
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
b
y
 
i
t
s
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
h
a
s
 
l
i
t
t
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
,
 
o
r
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
l
i
t
t
l
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
e
x
p
o
s
u
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
w
e
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
v
o
l
u
n
t
e
e
r
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
o
p
l
e

P
a
g
e
 
5
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
a
l
l
 
h
a
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
r
e
p
u
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
r
e
p
u
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
a
s
s
e
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
p
a
i
n
s
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
f
e
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
g
g
r
e
s
s
i
v
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
s
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
l
a
s
t
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
b
e
 
a
g
g
r
e
s
s
i
v
e
 
o
n
 
o
b
t
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
'
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
r
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
l
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
s
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
e
a
m
 
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
s
 
a
 
w
h
o
l
e
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
,
 
o
u
r
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
b
r
o
k
e
r
a
g
e
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
a
l
s
o
 
w
a
s
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
m
a
s
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
;
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
o
p
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
d
i
d
 
n
o
t
 
f
u
l
l
y
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
w
i
t
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
t
h
e
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
m
u
l
t
a
n
e
o
u
s
l
y
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
b
r
o
k
e
r
.
 
 
I
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
w
a
s
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
,
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
h
a
s
 
s
i
n
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
e
x
p
i
r
e
d
.
 
 
P
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
w
e
 
w
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
e
x
p
l
a
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
s
o
m
e
t
i
m
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
s
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
o
p
e
n
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
s
t
a
k
e
h
o
l
d
e
r
s
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
b
r
o
k
e
r
a
g
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
i
v
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
w
a
s
 
p
u
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
n
o
 
s
t
a
k
e
h
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
a
m
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
e
f
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
u
s
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
w
i
t
h

P
a
g
e
 
5
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 34



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
v
e
r
y
 
g
o
o
d
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
n
e
x
t
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
r
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
 
o
f
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
s
,
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
b
u
t
 
I
'
m
 
a
s
k
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
a
s
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
d
e
t
a
i
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
i
n
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
'
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
i
n
g
l
y
 
e
n
o
u
g
h
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
i
s
 
n
e
v
e
r
 
s
i
m
p
l
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
l
w
a
y
s
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
s
h
o
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
d
r
o
p
,
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
 
i
s
 
s
e
l
l
i
n
g
 
i
t
s
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
b
r
o
k
e
r
a
g
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
o
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 
n
a
m
e
d
 
A
l
l
i
a
n
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
s
p
o
k
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
,
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
h
e
 
a
s
s
u
r
e
d
 
m
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
p
l
a
c
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
h
a
s
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
i
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
T
y
p
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
w
h
a
t
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
t
a
k
e
 
n
e
w
s
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
g
o
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
e
x
p
l
a
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
a
l
l
o
w
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
l
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
p
r
i
n
t
,
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
l
e
g
a
l
 
d
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
A
l
l
i
a
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
s
i
r
o
w
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
t
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
o
f
f
i
c
i
a
l
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
;
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
w
i
d
e
l
y
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
C
r
a
i
n
'
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
T
r
i
b
u
n
e
.
 
 
S
o
 
s
h
a
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
p
i
e
c
e
 
o
f
 
n
e
w
s
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
n

P
a
g
e
 
5
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
h
i
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
M
r
.
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
,
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
w
e
 
t
h
e
n
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
 
o
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
f
o
r
 
t
o
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
s
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
1
2
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
f
f
e
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
o
n
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
o
n
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
I
n
 
r
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
t
o
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
K
e
e
g
a
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
i
t
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
R
a
y
m
o
n
d
 
J
a
m
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
I
 
m
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
e
 
a
d
o
p
t
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
P
o
o
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 
b
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
H
o
r
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 
h
i
m
s
e
l
f
 
b
y
 
e
x
i
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
5
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 35



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
V
i
c
e
-
C
h
a
i
r
w
o
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
W
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
i
n
v
i
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
H
o
r
n
e
 
b
a
c
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
H
o
r
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
W
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
b
a
c
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
N
o
.
 
2
 
a
n
d
 
N
o
.
 
8
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e

P
a
g
e
 
5
5

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
'
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
o
n
 
p
h
o
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
V
i
c
e
-
C
h
a
i
r
w
o
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

P
a
g
e
 
5
6

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 36



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
W
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
w
 
i
n
v
i
t
e
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
.
 
 
D
o
 
I
 
n
e
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
w
h
y
 
I
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
a
g
a
i
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
I
'
m
 
r
e
c
u
s
i
n
g
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
o
n
 
i
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
m
y
 
s
o
n
 
w
o
r
k
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
c
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
n
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
d
o
 
I
 
a
l
s
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
e
x
p
l
a
i
n
 
w
h
y
 
I
'
m
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
h
o
n
e
 
r
a
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
n
o
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
n
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
h
e
l
p
f
u
l
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
c
o
n
f
l
i
c
t
 
a
t
 
n
o
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
t
o
d
a
y
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
f
t
e
r
n
o
o
n
,
 
I
'
v
e
 
g
o
t
 
a
 
b
o
a
r
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
C
o
u
n
c
i
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
I
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
c
h
a
i
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
I
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
T
r
a
d
e
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
W
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
,
 
y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
f
o
r
e
,
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
f
o
r
e
,
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
A
l
r
i
g
h
t
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
r
i
g
h
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
A
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
e
l
s
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
m
e
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

P
a
g
e
 
5
7

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
H
o
p
e
f
u
l
l
y
 
I
'
l
l
 
s
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
y
o
u
 
g
u
y
s
 
i
n
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
B
y
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
B
y
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
l
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
;
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
l
i
k
e
w
i
s
e
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 
h
i
m
s
e
l
f
 
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
y
 
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 
h
i
s
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
b
a
c
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
P
a
m
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
,
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
N
e
t
w
o
r
k
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
1
.
2
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
b
o
n
d
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
s
i
z
e
d
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
i
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
$
9
7
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
i
d
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
h
a
v
i
o
r
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
'
s
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
e
e
k
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
b
u
t
 
I
'
m
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
l
e
t
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
C
E
O
,
 
M
i
k
e
 
E
n
g
l
e
h
a
r
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
h
e
r
e
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
l
y
 
w
a
i
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
o
 
t
e
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
a
b
o
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
e
i
t
h
e
r
 
a
s
 
f
i
x
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
o
r
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
-
r
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
t
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
b
y
 
J
P

P
a
g
e
 
5
8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 37



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
t
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
t
o
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
b
y
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
$
5
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
g
r
e
a
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
M
i
k
e
 
E
n
g
l
e
h
a
r
t
,
 
C
F
O
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
C
E
O
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
G
L
E
H
A
R
T
:
 
 
I
'
m
 
n
o
t
 
s
m
a
r
t
 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
C
F
O
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
f
e
w
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
,
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
a
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
t
o
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
m
 
L
e
n
a
n
e
,
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
b
e
e
n
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
a
 
s
h
o
r
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
o
f
 
t
i
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
M
a
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
t
o
 
m
o
v
e
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
o
n
 
a
 
n
o
t
e
.
 
 
T
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
n
o
t
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
d
 
C
h
a
p
t
e
r
 
1
 
o
f
 
a
 
t
w
o
-
s
t
e
p
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.
 
 
I
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
c
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
K
a
u
f
m
a
n
 
H
a
l
l
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
w
 
r
e
a
d
y
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
o
u
t
,
 
a
s
 
P
a
m
 
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
t
e
d
,
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
o
u
r
 
e
n
t
i
r
e
 
d
e
b
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
d
 
a
 
f
i
x
,
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
a
n
d
 
g
r
o
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
s
t
r
a
t
e
g
y
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
k
e
y
 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
o
f
 
$
9
7
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
t
f
u
l
l
y
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
d
r
a
m
a
t
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
r
e
d
u
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
a
n
y
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
r
i
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
,
 
a
s
 
P
a
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
t
e
d
,
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
n
e
t
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
o
f
 
$
5
0
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
f
o
u
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
o
u
r
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
o
u
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
 
d
e
b
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
n
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y

P
a
g
e
 
5
9

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
$
9
2
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
t
o
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
b
o
u
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
$
7
3
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
S
o
 
a
n
 
o
n
g
o
i
n
g
 
s
t
e
a
d
y
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
u
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
s
t
e
r
 
t
r
u
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
i
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
b
o
o
k
l
e
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
.
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
l
a
c
e
d
 
u
s
 
a
t
 
B
B
B
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
n
e
g
a
t
i
v
e
 
o
u
t
l
o
o
k
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
h
a
s
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
s
w
i
f
t
l
y
 
i
n
 
a
 
s
h
o
r
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
o
f
 
t
i
m
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
t
o
 
s
t
a
b
i
l
i
z
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
f
e
e
l
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
o
c
c
u
r
r
e
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
f
e
e
l
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
k
e
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
s
t
e
p
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
,
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
m
o
v
e
 
u
p
 
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
d
d
e
r
 
a
s
 
f
a
r
 
a
s
 
g
r
a
d
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
c
o
n
c
e
r
n
e
d
,
 
w
h
i
c
h

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
a
b
o
u
t
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
k
e
y
 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
i
t
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
e
x
c
i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
l
e
t
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
d
 
o
u
r
 
P
O
S
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
l
o
o
k
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
J
u
l
y
 
2
6
t
h
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
c
l
o
s
e
 
d
a
t
e
 
o
f

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
 
1
6
t
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
M
a
y
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
y
o
u
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
h
e
a
d
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
l
o
o
k
 
t
o
 
b
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
J
u
n
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
s
h
o
r
t
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
o
p
t
i
m
i
s
t
i
c
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
y
o
u
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
6
0

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 38



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
G
L
E
H
A
R
T
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
:
 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
5
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
E
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?

P
a
g
e
 
6
1

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
 
u
p
 
i
s
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
c
o
m
e
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
t
,
 
t
h
e
n
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
 
 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
w
e
r
e
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
A
 
c
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
p
p
o
s
e
d
?

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
p
u
b
l
i
c

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
?
 
 
N
o
?
 
 
O
k
a
y
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
a
l
l
 
f
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
 
 
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
.
 
 
W
e
 
t
r
u
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
i
t
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
s
a
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
a
y
e
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
A
 
c
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
p
p
o
s
e
d
?

P
a
g
e
 
6
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 39



7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
F
U
N
D
E
R
B
U
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
r
i
g
h
t
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
(
W
H
I
C
H
 
W
E
R
E
 
A
L
L
 
T
H
E
 
P
R
O
C
E
E
D
I
N
G
S
 
H
A
D
 
a
t
 
1
1
:
0
2
 
a
.
m
.
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 
 
S
S
:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
O
F
 
C
 
O
 
O
 
K
 
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
M
E
L
A
 
A
.
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
,
 
C
.
S
.
R
.
,
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
d
u
l
y
 
s
w
o
r
n
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
 
 
 
s
a
y
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
h
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
c
o
u
r
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
;
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
h
a
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d
 
c
a
u
s
e
;
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
g
o
i
n
g
 
i
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
 
 
 
a
 
t
r
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
p
t
 
o
f
 
h
e
r
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
e
s
,
 
s
o

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
 
 
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
s
 
a
f
o
r
e
s
a
i
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
s
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
 
 
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
M
E
L
A
 
A
.
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O

P
a
g
e
 
6
3

7
-
1
4
-
1
6
f
-
2
.
t
x
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
N
o
.
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
1
6
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
R
Z
U
L
L
O
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
A
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
3
2
1
-
9
3
6
5

P
a
g
e
 
6
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 40



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE 
ADOPTED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
NV Goetz  

(VIA AUDIO  CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 41



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

JULY 14, 2016 AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 42



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AD15 
RESOLUTION FOR ELECTION OF A VICE CHAIR OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY 
ADOPTED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
A Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 43



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS AND  
JUNE 9, 2016 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 

ADOPTED 
 

 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 44



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
ACCEPTED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 45



NO. 1A 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AG1A 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – TRACY G. HEUERMAN 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 46



NO. 1B 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AG1B 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – MICHELLE MELLENDORF 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 47



NO. 1C 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AG1C 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – BRENT MCCLURE 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 48



NO. 02 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-NP02 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien NV Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 49



NO. 03 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-NP03 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – MOUNT CARMEL HIGH SCHOOL 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 50



NO. 04 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-NP04 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE NEWMAN FOUNDATION AT THE UNIVERSITY OF 

ILLINOIS 
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 51



NO. 05 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-HC05 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – PRESENCE HEALTH NETWORK 

FINAL 
PASSED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
NV Goetz Y Obernagel Y Zeller 
Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 52



NO. 06 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-HC06 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER, RIVERSIDE SENIOR 

LIVING CENTER AND OAKSIDE CORPORATION 
FINAL 

PASSED* 
 

 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 53



NO. 07 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-HC07 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – WASHINGTON AND JANE SMITH COMMUNITY – 

BEVERLY D/B/A SMITH VILLAGE 
FINAL 

PASSED* 
 

 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 54



NO. 08 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-HC08 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien NV Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 55



NO. 09 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-HC09 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE MOORINGS OF ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, LLC 

PRELIMINARY 
PASSED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 56



NO. 10 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AD10 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 

A FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED BOND AND LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS, WHICH AMENDS CERTAIN PROVISIONS 

OF THAT CERTAIN AMENDED AND RESTATED BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT 
DATED AS OF JUNE 1, 2011 UNDER WHICH THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

REVENUE BONDS (MAAC MACHINERY CO., INC. PROJECT), SERIES 2006 ISSUED BY 
THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “BONDS”) WERE AMENDED AND SOLD 

TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 57



NO. 11 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AD11 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY THE ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY OF A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 
RELATING TO THE RECOVERY ZONE FACILITY REVENUE BONDS (NAVISTAR 

INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION PROJECT) SERIES 2010, ALONG WITH RELATED 
DOCUMENTS 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 58



NO. 12 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AD12 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CONFIRMING VARIOUS CONTRACTS (INCLUDING 

CONTRACT EXTENSIONS AND AMENDMENTS) AND ENGAGEMENTS RELATING TO 
PROCUREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

CLEAN WATER INITIATIVE STATE REVOLVING FUND (“SRF”) AND THE REGULAR 
BUSINESS OF THE AUTHORITY, INCLUDING FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES (SRF 
AND REGULAR BUSINESS OF THE AUTHORITY), UNDERWRITERS (SRF), BOND AND 
ISSUER’S COUNSEL (SRF) AND INSURANCE SERVICES (REGULAR BUSINESS OF THE 

AUTHORITY, INCLUDING SRF) 
ADOPTED 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

NV Horne E O’Brien NV Mr. Chairman 
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 59



NO. 13 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AD13 
RESOLUTION CONFIRMING AN INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT WITH THE ILLINOIS 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY REGARDING LEASE 
OF OFFICE SPACE IN SPRINGFIELD 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 60



NO. 14 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2016-0714-AD14 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BUDGET 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
July 14, 2016 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Anderberg Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Bronner Y Knox  E Tessler 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy E Yonover 
Y Goetz  

 (VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Obernagel Y Zeller 

Y Horne E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 61



1 
 

 
     

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
             August 11, 2016 

 
V. PRESENTATION AND CONSIDERATION OF THE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

MONTHLY AND ANNUAL SUMMARY AS OF JUNE 30, 2016* 
           *All information is preliminary and unaudited. 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-UNAUDITED 
 

1. GENERAL OPERATING FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME_____________________ 
 

a. Total Unaudited Annual Revenues equal $5.3 million and are $368 thousand or 7% higher than budget. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Total Unaudited Annual Expenses of $4.4 million, which is $573 thousand or 12% lower than budget.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL 60601 
312-651-1300 
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 62

http://www.il-fa.com/


2 
 

 
 
V. PRESENTATION AND CONSIDERATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MONTHLY AND ANNUAL SUMMARY AS OF JUNE 30, 2016 CONT’D* 
 

c. Total Unaudited Annual Net Income is $954 thousand. The major drivers of the annual positive bottom 
line in fiscal year 2016 were the level of overall spending at 12% below budget, as well as higher closing fees 
and other fees as compared to fiscal year 2015.  
 

2. ALL FUNDS-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION_______________________________________ 
The Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet) represents results as of June 30, 2016. As of this date, the 
Authority is a $125 million dollar agency which also currently accounts for $271 million in total activity 
(including the Other State of Illinois Debt Fund) and maintains compliance for $25 billion in outstanding debt. 
 

3. GENERAL OPERATING FUND-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION_____________________ 
In the General Fund, the Authority continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with total net position of $53.5 
million. The total assets in the General Fund are $54.4 million (consisting mostly of cash, investments, and 
receivables). Unrestricted cash and investments total $25.2 million (with $8.5 million in liquidated securities to 
purchase State of Illinois receivables). Notes receivables from the former IRBB local governments total $17.2 
million. Participation, DACA and other loans/government receivables are at $3.7 million. Restricted cash and 
investments in the DACA Loan Fund-Programs FY15 and FY16 total $1.9 million. Funds in the amount of $1.3 
million were allocated in the Local Government Borrowing Fund for the City of Blue Island. Liabilities (current 
and non-current) total just $826 thousand. 
 

4. YEAR TO DATE ACTIVITY FOR ALL OTHER FUNDS _________________________________________ 
a. In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the “Other State of Illinois Debt Fund” is comprised 

of bond activity for the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA), the Illinois Medical District 
Commission (IMDC) and Northern Illinois University Foundation (NIUF). The majority of the activity in this 
fund derives from the Clean Water Initiative (CWI) bonds for IEPA. Total assets and liabilities in this fund 
each total $145.8 million.  
 

b. The Locally Held Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving Loan Funds have total year to date receipts of $434 
thousand, with the funds earning an additional $43 thousand in net investment income. In FY16, 28 new Fire 
Truck revolving loans were issued totaling $7.5 million. Additional loans are pending the Authority’s final 
administrative review. In conjunction with the Office of the State Fire Marshal, 13 new Ambulance loans 
totaling $1.7 million will be tentatively disbursed in August 2016. Net position of $22.6 million for Fire 
Truck and $4.2 million for Ambulance, are reported on the Authority’s balance sheet.  
 

c. In accordance with the Master Loan Agreement for the Authority’s Illinois Housing Partnership Fund, the 
Authority has formally invoiced the City of the Chicago for the remaining $3,000,000 payment, which was 
due on or before August 1, 2016. Both parties have agreed to extend the due date of the remaining payment 
until winter of 2017.  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-UNAUDITED 
Financial information for July and August 2016 will be presented at the September 2016 board meeting.  
 
July 2016 Closings/Admin Fees 
a. In July, the Authority generated $172 thousand in closing fees. Closing fees were received from: Illinois 

Wesleyan University for $112 thousand; Lindran/Better Housing for $56 thousand; and Agriculture-
relating closings for $4 thousand. The Authority also collected an administrative service fee of $150 
thousand on behalf of the 1985 Pool/Revolving Fund.  

 
 
 
 

 
 IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 63



3 
 

 
V. PRESENTATION AND CONSIDERATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MONTHLY AND ANNUAL SUMMARY AS OF JUNE 30, 2016 CONT’D* 
 
5. AUTHORITY AUDITS AND REGULATORY UPDATES_________________________________________  

a. Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) accounting and financial reporting issues 
critical to the Authority’s financial presentation in FY2016/FY2017 include changes in investment reporting, 
fiduciary activities, leases, grants, nonexchange transaction compliance and indirectly, new guidance on tax 
abatements for local governments. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has also (in response 
to GASB’s initiative), submitted a proposal for all private sector entities to also disclose assistance received 
from governmental entities.  
 

b. The Authority is in the preliminary/planning stage of its FY2016 Financial Audit and testing is ongoing.  
 

6. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION______________________________________  
a. The Schedule of Debt, State of Illinois Receivables Summary and other documents are being presented as 

supplementary financial information, immediately following the financial reports in your Board package.   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 64



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
YEAR OVER YEAR COMPARISON OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FISCAL YEAR 2015 VS. FISCAL YEAR 2016
AS OF AUGUST 4, 2016

2015 2016 2015 VS 2016 2015 2016 2015 VS 2016 2016 2016

 YEAR TO DATE 
ACTUAL 

 YEAR TO DATE 
ACTUAL 

 ACTUAL 
VARIANCE 

 YEAR TO 
DATE BUDGET 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

BUDGET 
 BUDGET 
VARIANCE 

 BUDGET TO 
ACTUAL 

VARIANCE ($) 

BUDGET TO 
ACTUAL 

VARIANCE (%)
Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 2,330,601$              3,707,376$            1,376,776$      2,487,000$           3,307,945$         (156,399)$           399,431$              12.1%
Annual Fees 365,391                   341,544                 (23,847)           337,500                357,702              27,891                (16,158)                 -4.5%
Administrative Service Fees 136,000                   114,429                 (21,571)           115,000                15,000                21,000                99,429                  662.9%
Application Fees 44,778                     54,350                   9,572               41,005                  30,900                3,773                  23,450                  75.9%
Miscellaneous Fees 19,792                     20,266                   474                  60,000                  5,500                  (40,208)               14,766                  268.5%
Interest Income-Loans 1,070,688                922,248                 (148,439)         1,159,831             1,023,931           (89,143)               (101,683)               -9.9%
Other Revenue 126,581                   7,499                     (119,082)         4,800                    44,000                121,781              (36,501)                 -83.0%
Total Operating Revenue: 4,093,831$              5,167,712$            1,073,883$      4,205,136$           4,784,978$         (111,305)$           382,734$              

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 1,702,215$              1,798,679$            96,464$           2,171,075$           2,335,229$         (468,860)$           (536,550)$             -23.0%
Professional Services 1,503,161                1,896,302              393,142           1,504,980             1,788,077           (1,819)                 108,225                6.1%
Occupancy Costs 271,431                   244,745                 (26,687)           291,648                250,415              (20,217)               (5,670)                   -2.3%
General & Administrative 381,828                   397,540                 15,711             334,300                396,377              47,528                1,163                    0.3%
Depreciation and Amortization 52,854                     47,775                   (5,079)             80,000                  188,083              (27,146)               (140,308)               -74.6%
Total Operating Expense 3,911,489$              4,385,041$            473,551$         4,382,003$           4,958,181$         (470,514)$           (573,140)$             -11.6%

Operating Income(Loss) 182,342$                 782,671$               600,331$         (176,867)$             (173,203)$          359,209$            955,874$              -551.9%

Nonoperating Revenue(Expenses):

Bad Debt Recoveries 10,537$                   15,634$                 5,097$             15,000$                10,000$              (4,463)$               5,634$                  56.3%
Bad Debt Adjustment/(Expense) (65,658)                    (40,136)                  25,522             -                            -                         (65,658)               (40,136)                 
Interest and Investment Income 336,322                   257,260                 (79,061)           500,600                326,200              (164,278)             (68,940)                 -21.1%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investment (8,496)                      6,033                     14,529             (50,000)                 (13,000)              41,504                19,033                  -146.4%
Net Appreciation (Depr) in fair value of Inves (127,445)                  (67,393)                  60,053             (250,000)               (137,000)            122,555              69,607                  -50.8%
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 145,260$                 171,398$               26,140$           215,600$              186,200$            (70,340)$             (14,802)$               -7.9%

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers 327,602$                 954,069$               626,471$         38,733$                12,997$              288,869$            941,072$              7240.7%

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds 2,556,996$              6,402,109$            3,845,113$      -$                      -$                   -$                    -$                      
Transfers out to other funds (2,263,041)               (6,402,091)             (4,139,050)      -                            -                         -                          -                            
Total Transfers In (Out) 293,955$                 18$                        (293,937)$       -$                      -$                   -$                    -$                      

Net Income (Loss) 621,557$                 954,087$               332,534$         38,733$                12,997$              288,869$            941,072$              7240.7%

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 65



1 of 4

 JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUNE 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

BUDGET 

  
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
($) 

 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
(%)

Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 177,507$ 292,080$     792,030$  447,890$    163,066$    114,611$      227,594$    155,443$    84,991$         448,515$   324,200$     479,450$   3,707,377$  3,307,945$  399,432$     12.1%
Annual Fees 16,990     11,752         14,204      76,691       -                 40,004          34,357        10,152        14,089           71,141       23,351         28,943      341,674       357,702       (16,028)       -4.5%
Administrative Service Fees -               15,000         10,000      -                 -                 43,429          25,000        -                  -                    -                 20,500         500           114,429       15,000        99,429         662.9%
Application Fees 3,000       4,800           6,100        11,100       4,900          2,400            1,200          4,200          1,500             3,750         6,100           5,300        54,350         30,900        23,450         75.9%
Miscellaneous Fees 139          1,213           -                341            -                 -                   94               -                  24                  -                 -                  18,462      20,273         5,500          14,773         268.6%
Interest Income-Loans 83,318     82,857         82,675      82,712       82,661        84,109          81,346        62,392        70,355           70,298       69,817         69,707      922,247       1,023,931    (101,684)      -9.9%
Other Revenue -               973              169           207            206             207               200             4,748          198                198            197              196           7,499           44,000        (36,501)       -83.0%
Total Operating Revenue: 280,954$ 408,675$     905,178$  618,941$    250,833$    284,760$      369,791$    236,935$    171,157$       593,902$   444,165$     602,558$   5,167,849$  4,784,978$  382,871$     8.0%

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 141,053$ 142,455$     148,939$  148,049$    140,690$    140,655$      159,303$    156,660$    157,852$       154,182$   145,556$     163,285$   1,798,679$  2,335,229$  (536,550)$    -23.0%
Professional Services 106,155   59,247         135,606    191,582     161,386      202,640        111,720      89,371        227,276         105,421     151,061       354,838     1,896,303    1,788,077    108,226       6.1%
Occupancy Costs 19,832     23,793         11,217      42,809       13,219        15,474          14,647        17,006        25,543           14,664       14,606         31,934      244,744       250,415       (5,671)         -2.3%
General & Administrative 29,890     28,028         30,407      27,060       35,013        35,370          36,173        57,653        28,268           27,953       28,169         33,693      397,677       396,377       1,300           0.3%
Depreciation and Amortization 6,078       6,120           6,120        3,942         3,942          3,942            3,942          3,942          2,892             2,481         2,209           2,166        47,776         188,083       (140,307)      -74.6%
Total Operating Expense 303,008$ 259,643$     332,289$  413,442$    354,250$    398,081$      325,785$    324,632$    441,831$       304,701$   341,601$     585,916$   4,385,179$  4,958,181$  (573,002)$    -11.6%

Operating Income(Loss) (22,054)$  149,032$     572,889$  205,499$    (103,417)$   (113,321)$     44,006$      (87,697)$     (270,674)$      289,201$   102,564$     16,642$     782,670$     (173,203)$   955,873$     551.9%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous Non-Opertg Rev/(Exp) -$         -$            -$          -$           (610)$          -$             -$            -$            -$              -$           -$            610$         -$             (500)$          500$            -100.0%
Bad Debt Recoveries/Adjustments -               -                  -                -                 -                 -                   -                 -                  -                    -                 -                  15,634      15,634         10,000        5,634           56.3%
Bad Debt (Expense) -               -                  -                -                 -                 -                   -                 -                  -                    -                 -                  (40,136)     (40,136)        -                  (40,136)       #DIV/0!
Interest and Investment Income* 25,941     26,361         26,202      21,742       27,014        20,166          16,590        23,642        18,976           13,377       19,582         17,668      257,261       326,200       (68,939)       -21.1%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Invests (473)         (1,332)          (442)          (502)           (9,686)         (9)                 14,798        (51)              3,237             (57)             (248)            799           6,034           (13,000)       19,034         -146.4%
Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Invests (12,645)    (26,167)        32,129      (35,752)      (58,174)       (32,358)         56,645        (4,113)         10,081           (5,872)        (18,592)        27,426      (67,392)        (137,000)     69,608         -50.8%
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp) 12,823$   (1,138)$        57,889$    (14,512)$    (41,456)$     (12,201)$       88,033$      19,478$      32,294$         7,448$       742$            22,001$     171,401$     185,700$     (14,299)$      -7.7%

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers (9,231)$    147,894$     630,778$  190,987$    (144,873)$   (125,522)$     132,039$    (68,219)$     (238,380)$      296,649$   103,306$     38,643$     954,071$     12,497$       941,574$     7534.4%

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds -$         -$            -$          -$           251,683$    2,076,383$   72,226$      124,479$    3,389,347$    153,087$   151,827$     108,076$   6,402,109$  -$            -$            0.0%
Transfers out to other funds -               -                  -                -                 (251,665)     (2,076,383)    (72,226)       (124,479)     (3,389,347)     (153,087)    (151,827)      (108,076)   (6,402,091)   -                  -                  0.0%
Total Transfers In (Out) -$         -$            -$          -$           18$             -$             -$            -$            -$              -$           -$            -$          18$              -$            -$            0.0%

Net Income (Loss) (9,231)$    147,894$     630,778$  190,987$    (144,855)$   (125,522)$     132,039$    (68,219)$     (238,380)$      296,649$   103,306$     38,643$     954,089$     12,497$       941,592$     7534.5%

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

GENERAL OPERATING FUND

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 66



2 of 4

LOCALLY HELD LOCALLY HELD
FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL

GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL AGENCY
FUND* FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS

Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 3,707,377$           -$                     -$                        -$                 3,707,377$        -$                           3,707,377$        -$                 
Annual Fees 341,674                -                           -                              -                       341,674             -                                 341,674             -                       
Administrative Service Fees 114,429                -                           -                              -                       114,429             -                                 114,429             -                       
Application Fees 54,350                  -                           -                              -                       54,350               -                                 54,350               -                       
Miscellaneous Fees 20,273                  425,846               -                              213                  446,332             -                                 446,332             -                       
Interest Income-Loans 922,247                7,735                   -                              36,521             966,503             3,836,468                  4,802,971          -                       
Other Revenue 7,499                    -                           -                              541                  8,040                 -                                 8,040                 -                       
Total Operating Revenue: 5,167,849$           433,581$             -$                        37,275$           5,638,705$        3,836,468$                9,475,173$        -$                 

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 1,798,679$           -$                     -$                        -$                 1,798,679$        -$                           1,798,679$        -$                 
Professional Services 1,896,303             1,514                   1,879                      32,564             1,932,260          -                                 1,932,260          -                       
Occupancy Costs 244,744                -                           -                              -                       244,744             -                                 244,744             -                       
General & Administrative 397,677                -                           -                              7,089               404,766             -                                 404,766             -                       
Interest Expense -                            -                           -                              3,291               3,291                 3,999,345                  4,002,636          -                       
Depreciation and Amortization 47,776                  -                           -                              -                       47,776               -                                 47,776               -                       
Total Operating Expense 4,385,179$           1,514$                 1,879$                    42,944$           4,431,516$        3,999,345$                8,430,861$        -$                 

Operating Income(Loss) 782,670$              432,067$             (1,879)$                   (5,669)$            1,207,189$        (162,877)$                  1,044,312$        -$                 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous non-opertg rev/(exp) -$                      -$                     -$                        -$                 -$                   -$                           -$                   -$                 
Bad Debt Recoveries/Adjustments 15,634                  -                           -                              1,313               16,947               -                                 16,947               -                       
Bad Debt (Expense) (40,136)                 -                           -                              -                       (40,136)              -                                 (40,136)              -                       
Interest and invesment income* 257,261                30,910                 25,481                    248,878           562,530             162,877                     725,407             25                    
Realized Gain (Loss) on sale of investment* 6,034                    1,496                   1,160                      (1,367)              7,323                 -                                 7,323                 -                       
Net Appreciation (Depr) in fair value of investments* (67,392)                 (3,541)                  (12,210)                   (27,689)            (110,832)            -                                 (110,832)            -                       
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 171,401$              28,865$               14,431$                  221,135$         435,832$           162,877$                   598,709$           25$                  

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers 954,071$              460,932$             12,552$                  215,466$         1,643,021$        -$                           1,643,021$        25$                  

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds 6,402,109$           -$                     -$                        -$                 6,402,109$        -$                           6,402,109$        -$                 
Transfers out to other funds (6,402,091)            -                           -                              (18)                   (6,402,109)         -                                 (6,402,109)         -                       
Total Transfers In (Out) 18$                       -$                     -$                        (18)$                 -$                   -$                           -$                   -$                 

Net Income (Loss) 954,089$              460,932$             12,552$                  215,448$         1,643,021$        -$                           1,643,021$        25$                  

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 67



3 of 4

LOCALLY HELD LOCALLY HELD
FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL METRO EAST

GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL POLICE DISTRICT
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS COMMISSION

Assets and Deferred Outflows:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted:
Cash & cash equivalents 8,547,963$           -$                      -$                      35,079$                8,583,042$            -$                           8,583,042$            -$                        
Deposits in transit 55,930                  -                            -                            -                            55,930                   -                                 55,930                   -                              
Investments 10,305,420           -                            -                            879,323                11,184,743            -                                 11,184,743            -                              
Accounts receivable, Net 4,967,542             -                            -                            -                            4,967,542              -                                 4,967,542              -                              
Loans receivables, Net 2,153,349             -                            -                            -                            2,153,349              -                                 2,153,349              -                              
Accrued interest receivable 387,868                -                            -                            5,121                    392,989                 -                                 392,989                 -                              
Bonds and notes receivable 1,722,600             -                            -                            -                            1,722,600              -                                 1,722,600              -                              
Due from other funds 25,450                  -                            -                            -                            25,450                   -                                 25,450                   -                              
Due from other local government agencies -                            -                            -                            3,000,000             3,000,000              -                                 3,000,000              -                              
Prepaid Expenses 37,331                  -                            -                            -                            37,331                   -                                 37,331                   -                              
Total Current Unrestricted Assets 28,203,453$         -$                      -$                      3,919,523$           32,122,976$          -$                           32,122,976$          -$                        

Restricted:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,084,395$           1,043,823$           3,939,396$           2,647,294$           8,714,908$            75,867,439$              84,582,347$          18,959$                  
Investments 1,720,728             85,240                  35,074                  6,290,044             8,131,086              -                                 8,131,086              -                              
Securities lending collateral equity with the Treasurer -                            -                            -                            4,744,000             4,744,000              -                                 4,744,000              -                              
Accrued interest receivable 1,399                    7,949                    49                         36,902                  46,299                   28,798                       75,097                   -                              
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             243,273                     243,273                 -                              
Loans receivables, Net -                            1,816,438             74,320                  120,450                2,011,208              -                                 2,011,208              -                              
Total Current Restricted Assets 2,806,522$           2,953,450$           4,048,839$           13,838,690$         23,647,501$          76,139,510$              99,787,011$          18,959$                  
Total Current Assets 31,009,975$         2,953,450$           4,048,839$           17,758,213$         55,770,477$          76,139,510$              131,909,987$        18,959$                  

Non-current Assets:
Unrestricted:
Investments 6,301,855$           -$                      -$                      972,139$              7,273,994$            -$                           7,273,994$            -$                        
Loans receivables, net 483,805                -                            -                            -                            483,805                 -                                 483,805                 -                              
Bonds and notes receivable 15,457,337           -                            -                            -                            15,457,337            -                                 15,457,337            -                              
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 28,885$                -$                      -$                      -$                      28,885$                 -$                           28,885$                 -$                        
Total Noncurrent Unrestricted Assets 22,271,882$         -$                      -$                      972,139$              23,244,021$          -$                           23,244,021$          -$                        

Restricted:
Cash & Cash Equivalents -$                      -$                      -$                      600,000$              600,000$               -$                           600,000$               -$                        
Investments 50,293                  -                            -                            5,802,333             5,852,626              3,349,693                  9,202,319              -                              
Funds in the custody of the Treasurer -                            164,051                -                            17,931,781           18,095,832            -                                 18,095,832            -                              
Accrued interest receivable -                            -                            -                            9,000                    9,000                     -                                 9,000                     -                              
Loans receivables, net 1,025,333             19,449,126           172,960                1,260,235             21,907,654            -                                 21,907,654            -                              
Bonds and notes receivable from primary government -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             34,778,530                34,778,530            -                              
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             30,956,855                30,956,855            -                              
Total Noncurrent Restricted Assets 1,075,626$           19,613,177$         172,960$              25,603,349$         46,465,112$          69,085,078$              115,550,190$        -$                        

Total Noncurrent Assets 23,347,508$         19,613,177$         172,960$              26,575,488$         69,709,133$          69,085,078$              138,794,211$        -$                        

Total Assets 54,357,483$         22,566,627$         4,221,799$           44,333,701$         125,479,610$        145,224,588$            270,704,198$        18,959$                  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred loss on debt refunding -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                       577,011$                   577,011$               -$                        
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                       577,011$                   577,011$               -$                        

TOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 54,357,483$         22,566,627$         4,221,799$           44,333,701$         125,479,610$        145,801,599$            271,281,209$        18,959$                  

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY
June 30, 2016

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 68



4 of 4

LOCALLY HELD LOCALLY HELD
FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL METRO EAST

GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL POLICE DISTRICT
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS COMMISSION

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY
June 30, 2016

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payable from unrestricted current assets:
Accounts payable 212,926$              -$                      -$                      297$                     213,223$               -$                           213,223$               -$                        
Payables from pending investment purchases 149,584                -                            -                            30,137                  179,721                 -                                 179,721                 -                              
Accrued liabilities 184,046                -                            -                            -                            184,046                 -                                 184,046                 -                              
Due to employees 117,956                -                            -                            -                            117,956                 -                                 117,956                 -                              
Due to primary government 85,001                  -                            -                            -                            85,001                   -                                 85,001                   -                              
Other liabilities -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             -                                 -                             18,934                    
Unearned revenue, net of accumulated amortization 76,000                  -                            -                            -                            76,000                   -                                 76,000                   -                              
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Current Assets 825,513$              -$                      -$                      30,434$                855,947$               -$                           855,947$               18,934$                  

Payable from restricted current assets:
Accounts payable 255                       32                         55                         11,971                  12,313                   -                                 12,313                   -                              
Due to other funds -                            -                            -                            25,450                  25,450                   -                                 25,450                   -                              
Obligation under securites lending of the State Treasurer -                            -                            -                            4,744,000             4,744,000              -                                 4,744,000              -                              
Accrued interest payable -                            -                            -                            1,803                    1,803                     3,053,675                  3,055,478              -                              
Bonds and notes payable from primary government -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             22,883,716                22,883,716            -                              
Bonds and notes payable from State component units -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             1,460,000                  1,460,000              -                              
Current portion of long term debt -                            -                            -                            60,584                  60,584                   -                                 60,584                   -                              
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Current Assets 255$                     32$                       55$                       4,843,808$           4,844,150$            27,397,391$              32,241,541$          -$                        
Total Current Liabilties 825,768$              32$                       55$                       4,874,242$           5,700,097$            27,397,391$              33,097,488$          18,934$                  

Noncurrent Liabilities
Payable from unrestricted noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent payables 585$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      585$                      -$                           585$                      -$                               
Assets 585$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      585$                      -$                           585$                      -$                        

Payable from restricted noncurrent assets:
Bonds and notes payable from primary government -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                       82,716,001$              82,716,001$          -$                        
Bonds and notes payable from State component units -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             35,688,207                35,688,207            -                              
Noncurrent portion of long term debt -                            -                            -                            248,512                248,512                 -                                 248,512                 -                              
Noncurrent loan reserve -                            -                            -                            562,675                562,675                 -                                 562,675                 -                              
Total Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Noncurrent -$                      -$                      -$                      811,187$              811,187$               118,404,208$            119,215,395$        -$                        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 585$                     -$                      -$                      811,187$              811,772$               118,404,208$            119,215,980$        -$                        

Total Liabilities 826,353$              32$                       55$                       5,685,429$           6,511,869$            145,801,599$            152,313,468$        18,934$                  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue 55,930                  -                            -                            -                            55,930                   -                                 55,930                   -                              
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 55,930$                -$                      -$                      -$                      55,930$                 -$                           55,930$                 -$                        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 882,283$              32$                       55$                       5,685,429$           6,567,799$            145,801,599$            152,369,398$        18,934$                  

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 28,885$                -$                      -$                      -$                      28,885$                 -$                           28,885$                 -$                        
Restricted for Locally Held Agricultural Guarantees -                            -                            -                            11,762,065           11,762,065            -                                 11,762,065            -                              
Restricted for Public Safety Loans -                            22,105,663           4,209,192             -                            26,314,855            -                                 26,314,855            -                              
Restricted for Agricultural Guarantees and Rural Development Loans -                            -                            -                            18,976,270           18,976,270            -                                 18,976,270            -                              
Restricted for Renewable Energy Development -                            -                            -                            2,225,833             2,225,833              -                                 2,225,833              -                              
Restricted for Credit Enhancement -                            -                            -                            600,000                600,000                 -                                 600,000                 -                              
Restricted for Low Income Community Investments -                            -                            -                            24,495                  24,495                   -                                 24,495                   -                              
Unrestricted 52,492,226           -                            -                            4,844,161             57,336,387            -                                 57,336,387            -                              
Current Change in Net Position 954,089                460,932                12,552                  215,448                1,643,021              -                                 1,643,021              25                           
Total Net Position 53,475,200$         22,566,595$         4,221,744$           38,648,272$         118,911,811$        -$                           118,911,811$        25$                         

Total Liabilities & Net Position 54,357,483$         22,566,627$         4,221,799$           44,333,701$         125,479,610$        145,801,599$            271,281,209$        18,959$                  
IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 69



 

 

 

     
 

STATE of ILLINOIS 

DETAILED RECEIVABLES SUMMARY (UNAUDITED) 

AS OF AUGUST 3, 2016 

 

As of August 3, 2016 the Illinois Finance Authority has purchased the following receivables on behalf 

of the State of Illinois, pursuant to Resolutions 2015-1112-AD11 and 2016-0211-AD07: 

   Vendor Payment dates Amount  

Cosgrove Distributors Inc.   12/21/15  $                          9,225.92  
      
Grayboy Building Maintenance 12/16/15  $                       15,790.36  
      
M. J. Kellner Co. Inc. 12/28/15  $                  1,806,912.20  
M. J. Kellner Co. Inc. 3/31/16                      1,929,224.10  

  Total M.J. Kellner  $                  3,736,136.30  

   Smith Maintenance Company 11/25/15  $                     251,665.26  
Smith Maintenance Company 12/29/15                         125,832.63  
Smith Maintenance Company 2/10/16                         129,811.11  
Smith Maintenance Company 3/21/16                         151,826.83  
Smith Maintenance Company 4/14/16                         151,826.83  
Smith Maintenance Company 5/19/16                         151,826.83  
Smith Maintenance Company 6/23/16                         107,795.38  
Smith Maintenance Company 7/21/16                         107,795.38  

  Total Smith Maintenance  $                    1,178,380.25  

   Sysco St. Louis LLC 12/16/15  $                       32,418.85  

   

 

Total State of Illinois 
Assigned/Purchased Receivables  $                  4,971,951.68  

    

 

 
 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 70



100,000,000

Local Government

Agriculture - Beginner Farmer
Education

14
10

3,762,495
692,515,000

9 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit

Bonds Issued - Fiscal Year Comparison
for the Period Ending July 31, 2016

Healthcare - Hospital
6 381,762,000

14,540,000

1,869,903,00013

1

Industrial Revenue1

Fiscal Year 2017

# Market Sector Principal Issued

1 Education 56,775,000
1 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 13,560,000

2 $70,335,000

Fiscal Year 2015

# Market Sector Principal Issued

15 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 4,154,742
4 Education 788,149,000

236,986,075

11 Healthcare - Hospital 1,416,385,000
1 Healthcare - CCRC 39,640,000

Local Government 12,000,000

45

Fiscal Year 2016

2,511,314,817$         

2 Industrial Revenue 14,000,000
11 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit

717,050,000

54 $3,779,532,495

Principal Issued# Market Sector

Healthcare - CCRC

1

A-BFB 0.2%
E-PC 28.6%
HO 60.8%
CCRC 1.4%
IRB 0.5%
501(c)(3) 8.1%
Others 0.4%
Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2015

A-BFB 0.0%
E-PC 80.7%
501(c)(3) 19.3%
Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2017

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 71



Total Bonds Issued as of July 31, 2016 70,335,000$       56,775,000$      

Legend: Fixed Rate Bonds as shown
DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond
      VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Variable Rate Bond that does not include the cost of the LOC arrangement.        
Beginner Farmer Bonds interest rates are shown in section below.

501(c)(3) Better Housing Foundation 07/29/2016 Variable 13,560,000 0

E-PC Illinois Wesleyan University 07/13/2016 Fixed at Schedule 56,775,000 56,775,000

Initial Interest 
Rate

Bonds 
RefundedBond Issue Date Issued Principal Issued

Bonds Issued between July 01, 2016 and July 31, 2016

Bonds Issued and Outstanding 
as of 

July 31, 2016

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 72



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Finance Authority  "IFA" [ b ]

Agriculture 4
Education 5
Healthcare 6
Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwest Disaster] 11
Local Government 17
Multifamily/Senior Housing 18

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 19
Exempt Facilities Bonds 20

1          Total IFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA" [ b ]

Education 25
Healthcare 26
Industrial Development 27
Local Government 31
Multifamily/Senior Housing 32
501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 33
Exempt Facilities Bonds 34

Total IDFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB" [ b ]

50

Total IRBB Principal Outstanding

Illinois Health Facilities Authority "IHFA" 45
Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA" 43

Illinois Farm Development Authority "IFDA" [ f ] 48

General Purpose Moral Obligations

* Issued through IRBB - Local Government Pools 50
*Issued through IFA - Local Government Pools 12
Issued through IFA - Illinois Medical District Commission 15

Total General Moral Obligations

* All the Local Government bonds were defeased as of August 1, 2014.

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligations

Issued through IFA 14
Issued through IDFA 30

Total Financially Distressed Cities

State Component Unit Bonds [ c ]

Issued through IDFA [ i ] 29

Issued through IFA [ i ] 13

Total State Component Unit Bonds

Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds [Flood Relief] 10

Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds**
Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds** 9

Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds***

** Programs expired as of 12/31/2010. There have been no new issues subsequent to the expiration date of these Federal programs.

***

June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

Conduit debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)] which does not constitute an indebtedness or an obligation, either general or moral, or a pledge of the full faith or 
a loan of the Authority, the State of Illinois or any Political Subdivision of the State within the purview of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provisions with special limited obligations of the 
Authority secured under provisions of the individual Bond Indentures and Loan Agreements with the exception of the bonds identified below in Section I (b) -- General Purpose Moral Obligation/State 
Component Parts -- which are subject to the $28.15B cap in Section 845-5(a).

Section I (a) Principal Outstanding**  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity 

52,075,647$                   52,341,147$                  
4,498,937,420                4,544,208,969               

157,016,668                   

23,064,489,484$            

83,679,117                     83,639,117                    
609,285,369                   607,352,499                  

15,445,649,941              

305,550,000                  

22,832,217,175$             

496,388                          496,388                         

15,226,974,812             
776,578,781                   773,180,158                  
315,810,000                   

1,204,290,968$              

-$                                -$                               

208,243,080                  
225,377,285                   225,377,285                  

156,928,705                  
1,618,506,027                1,623,118,384               

199,915,000                   149,915,000                  

77,000,000                     77,000,000                    
208,452,809                   

1,202,108,369$             

627,152,426$                 625,642,427$                
570,443,000$                 568,447,000$                

July 31, 2016

15,587,111$                   15,587,111$                  

Total Illinois Finance Authority Debt 25,481,962,989$            25,244,002,082$           2,905,997,918$                    

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]

Section I (b) Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2016

28,150,000,000$    

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]

34,885,000                     34,885,000                    

34,885,000$                   34,885,000$                  150,000,000$         115,115,000$                       

Designated exclusive Issuer by the Governor of the State of Illinois to issue Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds in Illinois. This Federal program expired as of December 31, 2012.

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]

-$                                -$                               
-                                  -                                 

-$                                -$                               50,000,000$           50,000,000$                         

-                                  -                                 
99,938,207                     89,678,207                    

99,938,207$                   89,678,207$                  

Section I (c) Principal Outstanding  Remaining MDAB 
Volume Cap  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

64,515,158$                  64,444,357$                 N/A 41,530,000$                        

 Designated by the Governor of the State of Illinois to manage and coordinate the re-allocation of Federal ARRA Volume Cap and the issuance of Recovery Zone 
Bonds in the State of Illinois to fully utilize RZBs before December 31, 2010. 

Section I (d) ARRA Act of 2009 Volume 
Cap Allocated [ h ]

 City/Counties Ceded 
Voluntarily to/(by) IFA 

Bonds issued as of 
December 31, 2014

Remaining ARRA Volume Cap 
for each Program as of 

December 31, 2014

666,972,000$                 16,940,000$                  12,900,000$           
1,000,457,000$              204,058,967$                214,849,804$         N/A

133,846,000$                 (17,865,000)$                 82,795,000$           
IFA Cap:  $4,755,783
Cities/Counties Cap:  

$46,295,717 

N/A

The IFA manages the QECB allocation for the entire State of Illinois. All QECB's to date have been issued by local governments or state universities. The QECB 
program currently has no set expiration date under Federal law.  IFA's remaining QECB allocation of $4,755,783 has been reserved for use by state universities.

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\Aug 2016\03- Schedule of Debt July 2016.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2016
8/4/2016  12:41 PM        Page 1

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 73



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Power Agency

Agri Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt]
Fund # 994 - Fund Balance $10,050,319* 83 72

AG Loan Guarantee Program
Fund # 205 - Fund Balance  $7,881,462* 84 [ e ]

Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program 64 75
Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 67 78
Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 63 74
Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 66 77

Total State Guarantees

132 Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program          Fund # 572 117 * 113

8 Ambulance Revolving Loan Program          Fund # 334 116 * 112

Environmental [Large Business]
Issued through IFA 22
Issued through IDFA 37

Total Environmental [Large Business]

Environmental [Small Business]

Participation Loans
Business & Industry 86 
Agriculture 98 

Participation Loans excluding Defaults & Allowances 99 

##
##

Local Government Direct Loans ##
Rural Bond Bank Local Government Note Receivable *
FmHA Loans ##
Renewable Energy [RED Fund] ##

Total Loans Outstanding

[ a ] Total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.
[ b ] State Component Unit Bonds included in balance.
[ c ] Does not include Unamortized issuance premium as reported in Audited Financials.
[ d ] Program Limitation reflects the increase to $3 billion effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ e ] Program Limitation reflects the increase from $75 million to $225 million effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ f ] Beginner Farmer Bonds are currently updated annually; new bonds will be added under the Illinois Finance Authority when the bond closes.

[ g ]

[ h ]

[ i ] Includes EPA Clean Water Revolving Fund
* Balances as of June 30, 2016.
** Conduit balances are unaudited as of June 30, 2016.

 Statutory Debt 
Limitation Remaining HELA Debt LimitationJune 30, 2015 July 31, 2016

Midwestern University Foundation - Student Loan Program Revenue 
Bonds

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(b)]

Section II Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

-$                                -$                                       4,000,000,000$      4,000,000,000$                    

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Section 825-65(f); 825-70 and 825-75] - see also P.A. 96-103 effective 01/01/2010

Section III Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

Clean Coal, Coal, Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency Projects -$                                -$                                       3,000,000,000$      [ d ] 3,000,000,000$                    

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 830-25 (see also P.A.96-103); 830-30; 830-35; 830-45 and 830-50]

Section IV Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

 Remaining 
Capacity  State Exposure June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

6,824,437$      6,789,829$                 160,000,000$   153,210,171$   5,771,354$                   

7,111,930$      6,969,961$                 225,000,000$   218,030,039$   5,924,467$                   

3,693,098$      3,551,128$                 3,018,459                     
886,805           886,805                      753,785                        

1,681,563        1,681,563                   1,429,329                     
850,464           850,464                      722,895                        

13,936,368$    13,759,790$               385,000,000$   371,240,210$   11,695,821$                 

14,575,000$                  
113,710,000                   113,710,000                  

420,468                         

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 825-80 and 825-85 

Section V Principal Outstanding  Cash and Investment
 Balance  June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

Issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]

3,974,470$             
21,265,564$          1,293,113$             

247,280$         247,280$               

6,079,859               

Illinois Finance Authority Funds at Risk

Section VII
 Original Amount 

Principal Outstanding
June 30, 2016

23,020,158             422,129                          

July 31, 2016

29,100,017             422,129                          420,468                         

Plus:  Legacy IDFA Loans in Default 843,173                          843,173                         

34,353,017             18,963,713                     18,969,609                    

Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 960,726                          960,726                         
Total Participation Loans 288,943                          302,915                         

Higher Education Loan Act (110 ILCS 945 or “HELA”)

Recovery Zone Facility Revenue Bonds - Federal government allocated volume cap directly to all 102 Illinois counties and 8 municipalities with population of 100,000 or more. [Public Act 96-1020]

963,250                  185,778                          185,778                         
2,000,000               1,206,055                       

1,289,750               103,000                          103,000                         

1,197,980                      

17,179,937                    17,179,937                     

IRBB funds were defeased and transferred into a note receivable with the IFA.

Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds - Illinois Counties eligible for Midwest Disaster Bonds included Adams, Calhoun, Clark, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Hancock, Henderson, Jasper, 
Jersey, Lake, Lawrence, Mercer, Rock Island, Whiteside and Winnebago.

Section VIII Principal Outstanding

15,000,000$                   15,000,000$                           200,000,000$         [ d ] 185,000,000$                       

129,245,000$                 128,285,000$                2,425,000,000$      

15,535,000$                   

Total Environment Bonds Issued under Act 129,245,000$                 128,285,000$                2,500,000,000$      2,371,715,000$                    

Section VI Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2016 July 31, 2016

Note:  Due to deposits in transit, the Fund Balance at the IOC may differ from the IFA General Ledger. In May, 2014 the OSF transferred the Fund Balance to a Locally Held Fund by the IFA.

21,265,564$    

2,296,715,000$                    

-$                                -$                               75,000,000$           75,000,000$                         

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\Aug 2016\03- Schedule of Debt July 2016.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2016
8/4/2016  12:41 PM        Page 2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 74



1 of 3

To: Illinois Finance Authority Board of Directors
From: Melinda M. Gildart, Chief Financial Officer
Date: August 11, 2016
Re: Monthly Procurement Report 

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Initial Term 

(Yrs)
Estimated              
Start/End

 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small Purchases
Virtual Web Hosting GoDaddy 1 07/16-06/17  $            150  $                   -    $                -    $              -   

IFA Exemption for Professional and Artistic, Legal or Financial Services-Competitive Bids/Proposals
GASB 72 Implementation and Financial Reporting Services Kerber, Eck & Braeckel LLP 7 mos 07/16-01/17           17,300                         -                      -                    - 

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Initial Term 

(Yrs)
Estimated              
Start/End

 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

Illinois Procurement Code-Competitive Bids/Proposals
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Siebert Brandford Shank & Co. 1 08/16-07/17 -$             -$                 -$              -$            
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Bank Of America/Merrill Lynch Inc. 1 07/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services J.P. Morgan Securities LLC 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Loop Capital Markets LLC 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Citigroup 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Piper Jaffray & Co. 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Ramirez & Co., Inc. 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Jeffries LLC 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Raymond James 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC 1 08/16-07/17 -                   -                       -                    -                  

AMENDMENTS EXECUTED

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED
Amounts are estimated and unaudited

CONTRACTS EXECUTED

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 75



2 of 3

To: Illinois Finance Authority Board of Directors
From: Melinda M. Gildart, Chief Financial Officer
Date: August 11, 2016
Re: Monthly Procurement Report 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED
Amounts are estimated and unaudited

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Initial Term 

(Yrs)
Estimated              
Start/End

 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

Illinois Procurement Code-Competitive Bids/Proposals
Debt Management Software Application Technology Partnership Group, Inc. 3 07/16-06/19 552,250$     N/A N/A N/A

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Initial Term 

(Yrs)
Estimated              
Start/End

 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

Illinois Procurement Code-Sole Source Award (Upon CPO Approval)
Insurance Brokering Services-Director's/Officers; Property/Casualty Mesirow Insurance Services, Inc. 1 06/16-06/17 300,000$     22,900$           22,900$        22,900$      

EXPIRED AND EXPIRING CONTRACTS

Services Provided Vendor
Previous 

Term (Yrs) Start/End
 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

Illinois Procurement Code-Competitive Bids/Proposals
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Wells Fargo Bank 3 08/13-07/16 -                   -                       -                    -                  
State of Illinois Revolving Fund Program Financing - Underwriting Services Barclays 3 08/13-07/16 -                   -                       -                    -                  
Financing for energy effiency projects Noresco, LLC 5 11/11-11/16 -                   -                       -                    -                  
Temporary Finance/Procurement/Compliance Staffing Accounting Principals, Inc. 6 mos 04/16-10/16 302,724       71,103             71,103          605,448      
IT Network Consulting Services Catalyst Consulting, Inc. 9 mos 03/16-12/16 67,500         30,000             30,000          60,000        
Loan Management Services Mabsco, Inc. 9 mos 03/16-12/16 75,000         25,000             25,000          100,000      

Illinois Procurement Code-Small Purchases
Bloomberg Anywhere License for Remote Access to Services Bloomberg Finance L.P. 2 12/16-12/18 37,538$       42,000$           18,769$        18,769$      

CONTRACT AWARDS TO BE CANCELLED

CONTRACTS PENDING EXECUTION

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 76



3 of 3

To: Illinois Finance Authority Board of Directors
From: Melinda M. Gildart, Chief Financial Officer
Date: August 11, 2016
Re: Monthly Procurement Report 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED
Amounts are estimated and unaudited

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Renewal 

Term (Yrs) Start/End
 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

IFA Exemption for Professional and Artistic, Legal or Financial Services-Competitive Bids/Proposals
Trustee/Custodial Services for State Revolving Fund and the Authority Amalgamated Bank of Chicago 2 11/16-11/18 32,000$       32,000$           32,000$        16,000$      
Investment Management Services for the Locally Held funds Clear Arc Capital, Inc. 2 12/16-12/18 N/A -                       -                    33,014        

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Initial Term 

(Yrs) Start/End
 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

IFA Exemption for Professional and Artistic, Legal or Financial Services-Competitive Bids/Proposals
Specialty Accounting/Audit Services TBD 2 08/16-07/18 N/A -$                 -$              -$            

Services Provided Vendor

Proposed 
Initial Term 

(Yrs) Start/End
 Estimated 
NTE Value 

 Prior Contract  
NTE Value 

 Prior 
Contract 
Expense 

 Avg Yrly 
Expense 

Illinois Procurement Code-Competitive Bids/Proposals
Temporary Finance/Procurement/Compliance/IT Staffing Anticipated award Oct 2016 2 11/16-10/18 N/A 302,724$         302,724$      605,448$    
IT Network Consulting Services Anticipated award Nov 2016 3 01/17-12/19 N/A 67,500             30,000          30,000        
Typesetting and Printing Services Anticipated award Nov 2016 3 11/16-10/19 N/A 40,000             40,000          40,000        
Employee Benefits and Payroll Services Anticipated award Apr 2017 5 06/17-05/22 N/A 353,518           353,518        353,518      
Insurance Brokering Services Anticipated award May 2017 3 06/17-06/20 N/A 300,000           300,000        300,000      

IFA Exemption for Professional and Artistic, Legal or Financial Services-Competitive Bids/Proposals
Loan Management and Paying Agent/Custodian Services Anticipated award Oct 2016 3 01/17-12/19 N/A 93,000$           93,000$        116,250$    
Financial Deposit Institution/Cash Management Anticipated award Nov 2016 5 01/17-12/21 N/A 105,000           105,000        105,000      

For comparison purposes only. Includes only the initial term, not renewals.

UPCOMING RENEWALS

ACTIVE SOLICITATIONS

UPCOMING SOLICITATIONS

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 77



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 

From:  Lorrie Karcher and Patrick Evans 
 

Date:  August 11, 2016 
 

Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 
 

• Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

• Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

• Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for the attached projects 
 

• Amount:  Up to $520,000 maximum of new money for each project 
 

• Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 
• Total Requested: $484,750 
 
• Calendar Year Summary: (as of August 11, 2016) 

– Volume Cap:  $10,000,000 
– Volume Cap Committed:  $2,427,370 
– Volume Cap Remaining:   $7,572,630 
– Average Farm Acreage:  64 
– Number of Farms Financed:  13 

 
• IFA Benefits: 

–  Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct IFA or State funds at risk 
–  New Money Bonds:   

– Convey tax-exempt status  
– Will use dedicated 2016 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer Bond transactions  

 

• IFA Fees:   
• One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project  
 

• Structure/Ratings:  
• Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s bank (the 

“Bank”) 
• The Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan 
• Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Bank, just as with any 

commercial loan 
• Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured commercial loan 

 

• Bond Counsel: Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. 
Stephen F. Welcome, Esq. 

 Three First National Plaza, Suite 4300 
 Chicago, IL  60602 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 78



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2 August 11, 2016 
 Lorrie Karcher and Patrick Evans 
 
A. Project Number:  30373 
Borrower(s): Marrs, Blake & Allyson 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Paris, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $401,000.00 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 45 acres of farmland 
Purchase Price: $422,137 / $9,381 per acre 
%Borrower Equity 5% 
%IFA 95% 
%Other 0% 
Township: Paris 
Counties/Regions: Edgar / Southeastern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: First Bank & Trust / John Brinkerhoff 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional:    15 

State Senate:        51 
State House:      102 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin on January 31, 2017. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid 
annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on January 31, 2017 with the thirtieth and final payment of all 
outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 
 
B. Project Number:  30374 
Borrower(s): Dehlinger, Mason A. & Victoria L. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Olney, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $83,750.00 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 45 acres of farmland 
Purchase Price: $108,000 / $2,400 per acre 
%Borrower Equity 0% 
% USDA Farm Service Agency 50% (Subordinate Financing) 
%IFA 50% 
Township: German 
Counties/Regions: Richland / Southeastern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: First Financial Bank / Jeff Wilson 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional:    15 

State Senate:        55 
State House:      109 
 

Principal shall be paid monthly in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty year amortization schedule, with the 
first principal payment date to begin one month from the date of closing. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof 
shall be paid monthly, with the first interest payment date to begin one month from the date of closing with the two 
hundred fortieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty years from the date of closing. 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 79



 CONDUIT 
  

 $125,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)  
August 11, 2016 DePaul University 

 
 

 

REQUEST 
  

Purpose: The proposed financing will enable DePaul University (the “University” or the “Borrower”) to 
issue one or more series of Revenue Refunding Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not-to-exceed 
$125,000,000 in order to provide all or some of the all or some of the funds necessary to do the following:  
(i) advance refund all or a portion of the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, DePaul University, 
Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A Bonds”) and (ii) pay certain costs relating to the issuance of the Series 
2016A Bonds and the refunding of the Series 2011A Bonds, if deemed desirable by the University.  
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Refunding Bonds (Advance Refunding) 
Extraordinary Conditions: None.  

BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution (One-time consideration)  
 
This is the first time this project has been considered by the IFA Board of Directors 

MATERIAL 

CHANGES 
None. 

JOB DATA  3,743  
 

Current 
jobs 

N/A New Jobs (Refunding Bonds) 

  N/A Retained 
jobs 

N/A Construction Jobs (Refunding Bonds) 

DESCRIPTION ● Location:  Chicago (Cook County/Northeast Region) 

 ● DePaul’s original predecessor was founded in 1898 by the Congregation of the Mission and was known as St. 
Vincent’s College. 

 ● The proposed Series 2016A Bonds will enable DePaul to advance refund the University’s IFA Series 2011A 
Bonds.   

CREDIT 

INDICATORS 
● DePaul is currently rated “A2”/ “A”/“A” long-term by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch (assigned in connection with the 
University’s Series 2016 Bonds in March 2016).  All three rating agencies also affirmed these ratings (along 
with Stable outlooks) on all of the University’s outstanding debt in March 2016.  The University will apply for 
ratings in connection with this issue and on its outstanding debt and expects to be awarded ratings from all 
three rating agencies by mid-August (as of 7/29/2016). 

PROPOSED 

STRUCTURE 
 The Bonds will be underwritten by Goldman Sachs & Company (Senior Manager) and sold based on the 

direct, underlying ratings of DePaul University.  RBC Capital Markets LLC and Samuel A. Ramirez & Co., 
Inc. will be Co-Managers.  The not-to-exceed maturity in the Bond Resolution provides for a maximum 
maturity parameter of 40-years (while the anticipated final maturity date will remain 2040 as on the IFA 
Series 2011A Bonds that would be Advanced Refunded with the IFA Series 2016A Bonds).     

  Estimated all-in interest costs of between 3.25% to 3.75% based on market conditions based on the 
anticipated maturity schedule (which will maintain the maturity date on the existing Series 2011A Bonds of 
10/1/2040). 

 
SOURCES AND USES 
(*PRELIMINARY, 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE) 

Sources:  Uses:  

 
 IFA Bonds  $115,820,000 Refunding Escrow $143,321,585  
 Premium 24,327,050 *Costs of Issuance       1,158,200  
 Borrower Equity             4,332,735    
 Total  $144,479,785 Total $144,479,785 

 

  
 

  
*Costs of Issuance to be 
paid with borrower funds 
(equity)-  

 

RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 80



DePaul University  Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Refunding Bonds  August 11, 2016 
Page 2  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
BOARD SUMMARY 

August 11, 2016 
 
Project: DePaul University 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

STATISTICS 
 

Project Number: 12358 Amount: Not to exceed $125,000,000  
Type: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  IFA Staff: Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
Location: Chicago County/ 
  Region: Cook County/Northeast  
  

BOARD ACTION 
 
Final Bond Resolution (One-time consideration)   
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds (Advance Refunding) No IFA funds at risk 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval No extraordinary conditions 
 

PURPOSE 
 
The proposed financing will enable DePaul University (the “University” or the “Borrower”) to issue one or more series 
of Revenue Refunding Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not-to-exceed $125,000,000 in order to provide all or 
some of the all or some of the funds necessary to do the following:  (i) advance refund all or a portion of the Illinois 
Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, DePaul University, Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A Bonds”) and (ii) pay certain 
costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2016A Bonds and the refunding of the Series 2011A Bonds, if deemed 
desirable by the University. 
 

IFA CONTRIBUTION AND PROGRAM 
 
IFA will convey federal tax-exempt status on interest paid to investors on the Bonds, thereby resulting in a lower interest 
rate that will be passed through to the Borrower. 
 

VOTING RECORD 
 
This is the first time this Project has been considered by the IFA Board of Directors. 
 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS  
(Note:  the preliminary estimates reported below are subject to change until pricing) 

 
Sources: IFA Refunding Bonds $115,820,000 Uses: Refunding Escrow           $143,321,585 
 Premium 24,327,050  *Costs of Issuance               1,158,200 
 Equity  4,332,735    
 Total $144,479,785  Total  $144,479,785 
 
Notes:   
 
All amounts reported above are preliminary estimates that will be subject to change until pricing and will be superseded 
by amounts reported in the Official Statement when posted.   
 
*The University will contribute its own funds to pay Costs of Issuance on the Series 2016A Bonds. 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 81



DePaul University  Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Refunding Bonds  August 11, 2016 
Page 3  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
 
 

JOBS 
 
Current employment:    3,743 Projected new jobs: N/A (Refunding Bonds) 
Jobs retained:     N/A Construction jobs: N/A (Refunding Bonds) 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 
Security/ 
Ratings: The Bonds will be sold based on the direct, underlying rating of DePaul University.  DePaul long-term 

debt is currently rated ‘A2’/ ‘A-’/ ‘A’ long-term by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch as assigned to the University’s 
Series 2016 Bonds and affirmed on the University’s existing debt in March 2016.  (Each of the rating 
agencies also assigned a Stable outlook in March 2016.)    

 
 DePaul has applied for ratings from Moody’s/S&P/Fitch on the Series 2016A Bonds and expects ratings 

to be awarded in mid-August (currently anticipated during the week of 8/15/2016 as of 7/28/2016). 
 
Structure: The Bonds will be underwritten by Goldman Sachs & Co. (Senior Manager) and sold on the basis of the 

University’s long-term debt ratings.   
 
Interest Rate: Estimated all-in interest rates of between 3.25% and 3.75% based on current market rates and 

anticipated maturities. 
 
Maturity: Although the Bond Resolution will enable the Series 2016A Bonds to mature in up to 40 years, the 

financing team presently contemplates (as of 8/1/2016) that the Bonds will maintain the existing 
10/1/2040 final maturity date currently on the Series 2011A Bonds (which will be refunded with the 
Series 2016A Bonds).      

 
Anticipated  
Closing Date:  September 2016 
 
Rationale:  This advance refunding will be undertaken to reduce interest expense and reduce payments (although 

there may be a slight acceleration of principal repayments compared to the Series 2011A Bonds).    
 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 
 
Background: DePaul University is a 501(c)(3) organization incorporated under Illinois law.  DePaul’s original 

predecessor was founded in 1898 by the Congregation of the Mission and originally known as St. 
Vincent’s College.   

 
 The University is governed by a two-tiered governance committee consisting of (1) the Members of the 

Corporation, a self-perpetuating body comprised of 12 individuals (of which at least two-thirds are 
representatives of the Congregation of the Mission (C.M.), the religious community that sponsors the 
University), and (2) the Board of Trustees. 

 
 The Members of the Corporation is to elect trustees to serve on the University’s Board of Trustees. 
 
 The Board of Trustees oversees the functions of the University, and elects specific officers, including 

the president, provost, executive vice president, and secretary.  The president appoints other officers.  
Currently, there are 41 Trustees of the University elected to serve staggered 3-year terms (40 to 45 
trustees are required under the University’s By-Laws).  A list of the University’s current Board of 
Trustees is presented on page 7 of this report. 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 82



DePaul University  Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Refunding Bonds  August 11, 2016 
Page 4  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
 
 
Description: The University’s mission is to provide education in liberal and professional studies.  DePaul has 

evolved into a major urban institution serving metropolitan Chicago.  As of fall 2015, the University 
remains the largest Catholic university in the nation and among the nation’s largest private universities.  
In fall 2015, the University posted total enrollment of 23,539 students, including 15,961 undergraduate 
students and 7,578 graduate and professional students.   

 
 The University is comprised of four campuses, including two core campuses in Chicago, and satellite 

campuses in (1) Chicago (near O’Hare) and (2) Naperville.   
 
 DePaul’s Lincoln Park and Loop Campuses in Chicago form the core of the University’s academic and 

administrative activities.  The Lincoln Park campus is a residential campus located on approximately 45 
acres approximately 3 miles north of downtown Chicago.  The Lincoln Park campus now consists of 
more than 47 buildings comprising approximately 3.0 million square feet used for academic instruction, 
residential housing, student services, and recreational purposes.  The Loop Campus, located in the 
Chicago’s downtown business district at the corner of S. State St. and E. Jackson Blvd., consists of 3 
interconnected and 2 adjacent buildings of over 1.9 million SF and provides facilities for the College of 
Law, Graduate Programs, and undergraduate programs, and administrative functions.   

 
 The University also owns, and The Theatre School operates, the historic Merle Reskin Theatre located 

on E. Balbo Drive between S. Michigan Ave. and S. Wabash Ave.   
 
 In addition to its owned properties, the University leases 162,124 SF of space in the Loop that houses 

core administrative functions, and 30,801 SF elsewhere in Chicago for academic and operational 
functions. 

 
 DePaul’s two satellite campus locations were established and have expanded to satisfy a growing 

demand for higher education in suburban Chicago.  DePaul’s two satellite facilities include:  (1) The 
DePaul O’Hare Campus (near Cumberland Ave. [Illinois Hwy. 171] and the Kennedy Expressway [I-
90]) in Chicago, Illinois (occupying 38,942 SF of leased space), and (2) its Naperville Campus (located 
in a portion of the BP Research Center facility adjacent to the Ronald Reagan East-West Tollway [I-88] 
and occupying 63,802 SF of leased space). 

 
 The University offers 132 undergraduate and over 183 graduate and professional graduate degree 

programs, including six degree programs offered by the College of Law. 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FROM FINAL BOND RESOLUTION) 
 
The Bonds will be issued in an amount not-to-exceed $125,000,000 in one or more series for the purpose of providing 
DePaul University, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “University”), with all or a portion of the funds necessary to 
The proposed financing will enable DePaul University (the “University” or the “Borrower”) to issue one or more series 
of Revenue Refunding Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not-to-exceed $125,000,000 in order to provide all or 
some of the all or some of the funds necessary to do the following:  (i) advance refund all or a portion of the Illinois 
Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, DePaul University, Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A Bonds”) and (ii) pay certain 
costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2016A Bonds and the refunding of the Series 2011A Bonds, if deemed 
desirable by the University. 
 
Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to refinance various individual buildings located on the University’s Lincoln Park 
main campus (the “Lincoln Park Main Campus”) have the address commonly known as 2400 N. Sheffield Ave., Chicago, 
IL 60614.  It is anticipated that not more than $87,000,000 of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used, directly or 
indirectly, to refinance assets located at the University’s Lincoln Park Main Campus. 
 
Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to refinance various individual buildings located on the University’s Downtown 
Chicago Campus, in Chicago, Illinois (the “Downtown Campus”), which includes but is not limited to t, the following 
addresses in Chicago, Illinois:  1 E. Jackson Blvd., 14 E. Jackson Blvd., and 25 E. Jackson Blvd.  It is expected that not 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 83



DePaul University  Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Refunding Bonds  August 11, 2016 
Page 5  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
 
more than $38,000,000 of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used, directly or indirectly, to refinance assets located at the 
University’s Downtown Campus.  
 
(More specifically, refinanced properties include the following properties:  (1) Theatre Building, 2350 N. Racine Ave., 
Chicago, IL 60614; (2) Arts & Letters Academic Building, 2315 N. Kenmore Ave., Chicago, IL 60614; (3) Richard M. 
and Maggie C. Dales Building, 14 E. Jackson Blvd., Chicago, IL 60604; (4) DePaul Art Museum, 935 W. Fullerton Ave., 
Chicago, IL 60614; (5) College of Education, 2247 N. Halsted St., Chicago, IL 60614; (6) Corcoran Hall/Wish Field, 800-
910 W. Belden Ave., Chicago, IL 60614; (7) Richards Library, 2350 N. Kenmore Ave., Chicago, IL 60614; (8) DePaul 
Center, 1 E. Jackson Blvd., Chicago, IL 60604, and (9) Lewis Center, 25 W. Jackson Blvd., Chicago, IL 60604.   
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 
Applicant/ DePaul University, 55 East Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604-4101; www.depaul.edu  
Contacts: (1) Jeffrey J. Bethke, Executive Vice President, Ph.: 312.362.6715; jbethke@depaul.edu 
  (2) Peter Harris, Associate Vice President of Treasury Operations, Ph. 312.362.8456; 

pharris@depaul.edu  
  (3) Doug Stanford, Manager of Banking, Liquidity, and Capital Resources, Ph.: 312.362.6714; 

dstanford@depaul.edu 
Project name: DePaul University Series 2016A Revenue Refunding Bonds (Advance Refunding) 
Locations:      DePaul’s Lincoln Park Main Campus, 2550 N. Sheffield Ave., Chicago, IL 60614-3298 and  
   DePaul’s Downtown Campus, 55 East Jackson Blvd., Chicago, IL 60604  
Organization: Illinois 501(c)(3) organization 
Board   
Membership: For list of Board of Trustees, see page 7.  
 

PROFESSIONAL AND FINANCIAL 
 
Borrower’s Counsel: Perkins Coie LLP Chicago, IL Daniel Coyne, 
      Christine Biebel  
Auditor: KPMG, LLP  Chicago, IL Jason Rosheisen 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Nancy Burke, 
      Kristin Walsh 
Borrower’s Financial 
  Advisor: William Blair & Company, LLC Chicago, IL Ajay Thomas, 
      Mike McIntyre 
Senior Manager: Goldman Sachs & Co. New York, NY Ritu Kalra, 
      John Stevenson 
Co-Managers: RBC Capital Markets, LLC Chicago, IL Kevin Hoecker   
  Samuel A. Ramirez & Co., Inc. Chicago, IL Phillip Culpepper 
Underwriter’s  
  Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP Chicago, IL Janet Hoffman, 
      Chad Doobay 
Trustee: BNY Mellon Corporate Trust Chicago, IL Kathy Cokic     
Architect: Antunovich Associates Chicago, IL Scott Ferguson 
General Contractor: Bulley & Andrews Chicago, IL Mark Evans 
 
Rating Agencies: Moody’s Investors Service New York, NY Diane Viacava 
  Standard & Poor’s  Chicago, IL Nick Waugh 
  Fitch Ratings  Chicago, IL Susan Carlson 
IFA Counsel: Burke Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. Chicago, IL Steve Welcome 
IFA Financial 
  Advisor:  Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL Phoebe Selden, 
      Siamac Afshar 
  
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 84



DePaul University  Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Refunding Bonds  August 11, 2016 
Page 6  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
 
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
 

 Loop Campus Lincoln Park Campus 
Congressional:    7    5 
State Senate:   3    6 
State House:   5  11 

DePaul University Board of Trustees 
(* Members of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees) 

Name Affiliation 

Joseph Adams 
Rev. Thomas Anslow, C.M. 
Peter C. Argianas*  
Karen M. Atwood * 

CEO and Managing Partner, McGladrey & Pullen  
Canonical Vicar, Archdiocese of Los Angeles  
Chairman, President and CEO, Gold Coast Bank  
Executive Vice President, Service and Technology, Health Care Service Corp.  

Gerald A. Beeson  
William E. Bennett*  

COO, Citadel Investment Group, LLC  

Stephen B. Bowman 
John L. Brennan 
Ruth W. Brinkley  
Gery Chico  

EVP and Chief Financial Officer, Northern Trust 
Head of Private Wealth Management, William Blair & Co. 
President and CEO, KentuckyOne Health  
Senior Partner, Chico & Nunes P.C.  

Frank M. Clark 
Sebastian S. Cualoping*  

Retired Chairman & CEO, ComEd 
CEO & President, AMPAC International, Inc.  

Mary A. Dempsey*  President, Philip H. Corboy Foundation  

Sister Margaret M. Fitzpatrick, D.C.  President, St. Thomas Aquinas College  

Sasha L. Gerritson  Director of Opera Programs, Northeastern Illinois University 

Arnold T. Grisham  President and CEO, Peer Review Solutions  

Harry J. Harczak                                              Private Investor, Sawdust Investment Management, Retired EVP, CDW 

William E. Hay  
Donald H. Heller* 

President, William E. Hay & Co.  
Dean, College of Education, Michigan State University 

Roberto Herencia  President and CEO, BXM Holdings, Inc.  

Lori Holland*  Managing Director, Neuberger Berman  

Kerrie Holley VP & CTO, Analytics for Automation Platform, Cisco Systems 

Rev. Dennis H. Holtschneider, C.M.*  President, DePaul University  

Stacy Janiak*  Audit and Enterprise Risk Services National Managing Partner – Central Region, 
Deloitte  

James M. Jenness  Retired Chairman, Kellogg Company  

Timothy Knight CEO, Wrapports LLC 

Jeffrey J. Kroll  
William Kusack 

Partner, Salve, Schostok & Pritchard P.C.  
Retired Managing Director, JP Morgan Capital Corporation 

Rev. James Maher, C.M.* President, Niagara University 

Carla Michelotti*  Executive VP/General Counsel, Leo Burnett Company, Inc.  

Anne R. Pramaggiore President and CEO, ComEd  

Rev. Mark Pranaitis, C.M. Assistant Provincial, Congregation of the Mission, Western Province  

Larry R. Rogers*  Partner, Powers Rogers & Smith, P.C.  

George Ruff  Senior Principal, Trinity Hotel Investors, LLC  

James Ryan*  President, CEO and Chairman of the Board, W.W. Grainger, Inc.  
Jessica Sarowitz Owner, Paylocity Corporation 

Kristi Savacool CEO, Aon Hewitt 

John Sheehy President and CEO, Navistar International Corporation 

Renee Togher President, Azteca Foods 

Daniel C. Ustian  Retired Chairman and CEO, Navistar 

Rev. Raymond Van Dorpe, C.M. Provincial, Western Province of the Congregation of the Mission 

Dia S. Weil  Retired CFO and COO, Verizon Airfone  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 85



 

 
 

 
August 11, 2016 

  
 
 
 

                                                           CONDUIT 
  
$70,000,000 
The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC  

 
REQUEST                                                     

 
 
 

Purpose:  Bond proceeds, together with other available funds, will be used by The Moorings 
of Arlington Heights, LLC (“Borrower”) to: (i) fund the construction of Fellowship Hall, a 
27,000 sq. ft. resident commons area, (ii) fund the construction of a 73-unit assisted living 
expansion, (iii) fund the construction of a 20-unit Memory Care expansion (collectively “the 
Project”), (iv) fund interest on the Bonds for a period of approximately 24 months, and (v) 
pay costs of issuance.  
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 

Extraordinary Conditions: None. 

BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution 
Voting Record (July 14, 2016 – Preliminary Bond Resolution – 12 Yeas; 0 Nays; 0 Abstain;   
3 Absent (O’Brien, Tessler, Yonover); 0 Vacancies 

MATERIAL CHANGES Projections for 2017 through 2020 
JOB DATA 315 Current jobs 50 New jobs projected  

 (FOR THE MOORINGS ONLY) N/A Retained jobs 85 Construction jobs projected 
(30 months) 

 

DESCRIPTION  Location: Arlington Heights 
 ● On December 1, 2015 Presbyterian Homes, a newly formed Illinois not-for-profit 

corporation formerly named PH Transition NFP  (the “Corporation”) became the sole 
member directly or indirectly of  six subsidiaries, one of which is the Borrower, (collectively 
with the Corporation, the "System"), which together provide residential and health care 
programs for older adults in Illinois.  The System is headquartered in Evanston, Illinois, a 
suburb north of Chicago, and currently serves approximately 1,600 older adults through its 
five facilities and various programs in the Chicago Metropolitan Area.  
 
● Presbyterian Homes traces its history back to 1904 when the Chicago Presbytery created a 
senior living community—one of the oldest in Illinois. The System has expanded significantly 
since 1922 to the present day. 
 

CREDIT INDICATORS ● The Bonds will be a direct bank purchase by First Midwest Bank and Huntington Bank. 

SECURITY ● Gross revenue pledge, mortgage and master notes under a master indenture.  Covenants and 
other legal provisions are expected to be consistent with those in use for similar financings.  

MATURITY ● Bonds will mature no later than 2046. 

SOURCES AND USES Sources:  Uses:  

 2016 IFA Bonds *$68,380,000 Project Fund $76,592,262 

 
Foundation Capital   
Campaign 

 
$3,500,000 

Funded Interest (24 
Months) 

 
$3,310,012 

 Borrower Equity $9,376,933 Costs of Issuance $1,354,659 

 Total $81,256,933 Total $81,256,933 

     

 *Estimated    

RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 86



The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   August 11, 2016 
Page 2   Pam Lenane 
 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
July 14, 2016 

 
Project:  The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC 

STATISTICS 

Project Number:  12353 Amount:  $70,000,000 (not-to-exceed) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds IFA Staff:  Pam Lenane 
Locations:   Arlington Heights County/Region:  Cook County/Northeast Region 

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds No IFA funds at risk 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval No extraordinary conditions 

VOTING RECORD 

Final Bond Resolution 
Voting Record (July 14, 2016 – Preliminary Bond Resolution – 12 Yeas; 0 Nays; 0 Abstain; 3 Absent (O’Brien, 
Tessler, Yonover); 0 Vacancies 

PURPOSE 

The proceeds will be used by The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC (“Borrower”) to: (i) fund the construction 
of Fellowship Hall, a 27,000 sq. ft. resident commons area, (ii) fund the construction of a 73-unit assisted living 
expansion, (iii) fund the construction of a 20-unit Memory Care expansion (collectively “the Project”), (iv) fund 
interest on the Bonds for a period of approximately 24 months, and (v) pay costs of issuance.  

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bonds that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital projects that 
will be used to further their charitable mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal tax-exempt status on interest 
paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense.  

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources:  Uses:  
2016 IFA Bonds *$68,380,000 Project Fund $76,592,262 
Foundation Capital 
Campaign 

 
$3,500,000 Funded Interest (24 Months) 

 
$3,310,012 

Borrower Equity $9,376,933 Costs of Issuance $1,354,659 
Total $81,256,933 Total $81,256,933 
    
*Estimated    

JOBS (for The Moorings only) 

Current employment:    315 Projected new jobs:  50 
Jobs retained:                N/A Construction jobs:        85 (30 months) 
              
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 87



The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   August 11, 2016 
Page 3   Pam Lenane 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 

Credit Enhancement:   None 
 
Structure:    Bank direct purchase with First Midwest Bank and Huntington Bank. 
 
Interest Rate:   To be determined on the day of pricing. 
 
Interest Rate Modes:   Variable rate debt with an interest rate hedge. 
 
Underlying Ratings:  The Borrower is a non-rated entity. The Bonds will be sold in $100,000 denominations. 
 
Maturity:   No later than 2046 
  
Estimated Closing Date:   Third quarter of 2016. 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION) 

The proceeds will be used by The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC (“Borrower”) to: (i) fund the construction 
of Fellowship Hall, a 27,000 SF resident commons area, (ii) fund the construction of a 73-unit assisted living 
expansion, (iii) fund the construction of a 20-unit Memory Care expansion (collectively “the Project”), (iv) fund 
interest on the Bonds for a period of approximately 24 months, and (v) pay costs of issuance.  

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Background: On December 1, 2015 Presbyterian Homes, a newly formed Illinois not-for-profit corporation 
formerly named PH Transition NFP  (the “Corporation”) became the sole member directly or indirectly of  six 
subsidiaries (the "System"), which together provide residential and health care programs for older adults in Illinois.  
The System is headquartered in Evanston, Illinois, a suburb north of Chicago, and currently serves approximately 
1,600 older adults through its five facilities and various programs in the Chicago Metropolitan Area. Presbyterian 
Homes traces its history back to 1904 when the Chicago Presbytery created a senior living community—one of the 
oldest in Illinois. The System has expanded significantly since 1922 to the present day.  
 
The Borrower for this financing is listed below. 
 
The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC 
The Borrower owns and operates the Project, which is a Life Plan Community located in Arlington Heights, Illinois, 
a northwest suburb of Chicago, occupies a 45-acre parcel of land at 811 E. Central Rd. just east of Northwest 
Community Hospital.  The Moorings of Arlington Heights consists of independent living, assisted living, memory 
care and short- and long-term nursing care.  
 
Independent living consists of 273 apartments and villas, ranging in size from 530 square feet to more than 2,000 
square feet.  Additionally, some villas have full basements, two car garages and patios.  
 
Common area amenities include formal and casual dining rooms,  living rooms, a lecture hall, fitness and 
therapeutic center with exercise equipment, swimming pool and whirlpool, a library, computer and business center, 
gift shop and beauty salon.  Services include flexible dining options, housekeeping and complete maintenance 
services, transportation as well as planned social and educational activities and programs.   The property features 
two small lakes, winding walking paths, a large community garden and a historic round barn. 
 
Assisted living consists of 42 studio and one-bedroom apartments.  Assisted living/sheltered care is licensed by the 
State of Illinois.  Assisted living services and amenities are similar to, but separate from, independent living because 
proximity to amenities is important to frail assisted living residents.   
 
The balance of the continuum of care includes 60 skilled, Medicare licensed, nursing care beds for those who need 
skilled nursing care or short-term rehabilitation services, 39 intermediate and memory care beds for those needing 
less intense nursing care or memory support for cognitive impairments like Alzheimer’s disease.  Nursing care beds 
not occupied by contractual residents are marketed to the outside community. 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 88



The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   August 11, 2016 
Page 4   Pam Lenane 
 

 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Applicant: The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC 
  811 E. Central Rd.  

Arlington Heights, IL 60005 
 
Contact:  Todd Swortzel, President & CEO 
 
Website:  www.presbyterianhomes.org 
 
Project name:  The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC, Series 2016 
 
Organization: 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation 
 
State:  Illinois 
 
Ownership/2016 Board Members (501(c)(3)):  
 

 
  

MEMBERS 
YEARS 

SERVED PROFESSION 

Elected Directors   

Ms. Frances Carroll ** Health care, Law 
Mr. Mark Dennis ** Business, Not for Profit 
Mr. Charles Denison 2 Finance; Investment 
Mr. George T. Drost 5 Law 
Ms. Monica Heenan 1 Health care Administration 
Mr. Gregory W. Hummel 8 Real Estate; Law 
Mr. Leland E. Hutchinson, Chair* 17 Law (retired)  
Rev. Michael Kirby ** Religion; Law 
Mr. Dennis R. Marx 2 Accounting; Investment 
Dr. E. Dennis Murphy 6 Medicine (retired)  
Ms. Elizabeth Nichols 2 Data Scientist  
Ms. Paula Noble, Secretary* 1 Accounting; Finance; Audit (retired) 
Mr. J. Marshall Peck, Treasurer* 8 Real Estate; Finance 
Mr. Harlan F. Stanley 6 Real Estate; Development 
Mr. Mark F. Toledo 7 Finance; Investment 
Ms. Jane Western 2 Investment 
   
Ex-Officio Directors   
Mr. Todd F. Swortzel* 5 President and CEO, Presbyterian Homes 
   
* Members of the Executive Committee  ** New members of the Board effective April 1, 2016 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 89



The Moorings of Arlington Heights, LLC     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   August 11, 2016 
Page 5   Pam Lenane 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel:   Dentons US LLP Chicago, IL Mary Wilson 
Bond Counsel:   Chapman and Cutler LLP  Chicago, IL John Bibby  
 Auditor:  CliftonLarsonAllen LLP Oak Brook, IL Jim Thomas   
Borrower’s Financial Advisor:  
Placement Agent:   B.C. Ziegler and Company Chicago, IL Will Carney 
 Banks:  First Midwest Bank Itasca, IL Mike Taylor 
   Huntington Bank Grand Rapids, MI Tom Gibbons  
Bank Counsel:  Polsinelli PC Chicago, IL Lisa Katz 
Paying Agent:  Huntington Bank Grand Rapids, MI Patrick O’Donnell 
IFA Counsel:   Burke Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. Chicago, IL Stephen Welcome 
 IFA Financial Advisor:  Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL Phoebe S. Selden 

 LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
Congressional:       9 
State Senate:     27 
State House:     53 

SERVICE AREA 

Arlington Heights, Illinois     
 

 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 90



                   
  $600,000,000 (Not-to-exceed amount)  

August 11, 2016 State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 
 

REQUEST Purpose:  Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to (i) fund loans (including certain amounts of the State Match Portion as 
defined below) made by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”) to units of local government in the 
State of Illinois (“State”) to finance eligible wastewater treatment and sanitary sewerage facilities and drinking water
facilities and (ii) to pay costs of issuance. 
Program: IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds  
Volume Cap:  None required (all underlying project borrowers will be Illinois units of local government)   

Extraordinary Conditions:  None 
BOARD ACTION Authorizing Resolution (i.e., Final Bond Resolution) One-time consideration.  

 
The accompanying Authorizing Resolution will also authorize execution of a Second Amendment to Memorandum of 
Agreement between the IFA and IEPA (“Second Amendment to MOA”).  IFA and IEPA entered into the existing 
Memorandum of Agreement dated as of November 1, 2013 as amended by the First Amendment to Memorandum of 
Agreement dated as of June 30, 2014 (the “Memorandum of Agreement”) to specify IFA and IEPA’s respective roles 
including, but not limited to, originating and managing the loan program (IEPA), reporting on the performance of the 
State Revolving Fund (“SRF”) Program loan portfolio (IEPA) to external parties, issuance of the Bonds (IFA), and 
specifying collaboration and roles to enable IFA to comply with material event and other required reporting in 
connection with a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (“CDU”).  The Second Amendment further clarifies certain of 
these roles and responsibilities. 

MATERIAL 

CHANGES 
None.  This is the first time this matter has been presented to the IFA Board of Directors.  No prior voting record. 

DESCRIPTION ● Project Locations:  Statewide 
 ● Pursuant to the Federal Clean Water Act,  IEPA established a clean water state revolving fund as part of its Water 

Pollution Control Loan Program (the “Clean Water Program”) and, pursuant to the Federal Drinking Water Act, has 
established a safe drinking water state revolving fund as part of its Public Water Supply Loan Program (the “Drinking 
Water Program”). 

 ● IFA is issuing the State of Illinois Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 (the “Bonds”) on behalf of the 
IEPA (See Proposed Structure below).  
● The Bonds will be structured to enable IEPA to leverage existing SRF Program assets, thereby enabling additional 
loan financing to Illinois local governmental units (e.g., municipalities and public sanitary districts) to finance capital 
improvements designed to improve both wastewater and drinking water quality to assure compliance with USEPA 
requirements. 

 ● A portion of the proceeds from the Bonds will be used to fund the State match required to obtain United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) grants (the “State Match Portion”).  Based on the proposed $45.38 
million of Bond proceeds anticipated to fund the State Match Portion, the USEPA will initially provide $131.79 
million in anticipated aggregate funding (“Federal Receipts”) with an additional $95.2 million to be received within 
the next 24 months.  As a result, the combined funds initially totaling $177.2 million will be available to be loaned by 
IEPA immediately to various local government capital projects throughout Illinois, designed to improve drinking 
water and wastewater quality (and, prospectively, other projects authorized by the USEPA). 

 ● IEPA currently lends funds to municipalities according to administrative rules that set the fixed interest rate at a rate 
equal to 50% of the The Bond Buyer’s 20-Bond General Obligation Index for the preceding State fiscal year and 
federal fiscal year for the Clean Water and Drinking Water Programs, respectively.  The current rates are 1.75% for 
the Clean Water and 1.86% for the Drinking Water Programs.    

CREDIT 
INDICATORS 

● The Bonds are expected to be rated ‘AAA’ by both Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings. In general, payments 
from the pledged loans will be used to credit enhance the Bonds (to potentially service debt payments associated with 
the Bonds). 
● The IDFA Series 2002, IFA Series 2004 and IFA Series 2013 State Revolving Fund Bonds (the “Prior Bonds”) were 
rated ‘AAA’ by the applicable rating agencies. 

PROPOSED 

STRUCTURE 
● The Bonds to be issued are the second series of bonds issued under and secured by a Master Trust Agreement dated 
as of November 1, 2013 (collectively, with all supplements and amendments thereto, including a Second 
Supplemental Master Trust Agreement providing for the issuance of the Bonds, the “Master Trust Agreement”).  The 
Bonds will be secured on a parity basis with the currently outstanding $87.415 million aggregate principal amount of 
Series 2013 Bonds, which refunded the IDFA 2002 State Revolving Fund Bonds and IFA 2004 State Revolving Fund 
Bonds. 
● Bonds to be sold and rated as a structured financing, secured solely on the basis of the pledged loans (or assigned 
loans) by IEPA under the Master Trust Agreement.  The Bonds will not be a direct, indirect, moral or contingent 
obligation of IFA, IEPA or the State.   

 ●Bond Interest Rates:  The Bonds will be priced based upon market conditions and the SRF Program’s anticipated 
‘AAA’ ratings.   

 ●Maturity: Not to exceed 30 years (i.e. July 1, 2046) 
RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval. IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 91



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 2  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
BOARD SUMMARY 

August 11, 2016 
  

STATISTICS 
 
IFA Project: 12361    Amount: $600,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount) 
Type: State Revolving Fund  
  Revenue Bonds   IFA Staff: Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
Locations: Statewide   County/ 
         Region: All counties in Illinois 
 

BOARD ACTION 
 
Authorizing Resolution (Final Bond Resolution)   

 
Bond proceeds will leverage the existing Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”) loan portfolio and be used by 
IEPA to fund loans under its Clean Water and Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs, including the State Match Portion 
that will enable IEPA to receive Federal Receipts from the USEPA.   
 
No extraordinary conditions 
 
Notes:   The current outstanding principal amount of the Illinois Finance Authority Series 2013 Bonds is $87.415 

million. 
 
 The combined bond funded State Match Portion of approximately $45.38 million for the Clean Water 

Program for Federal fiscal years 2016 and 2017 and Drinking Water Program for Federal fiscal years 
2015, 2015 and 2017 will result in Federal Receipts from the USEPA under separate Capitalization Grant 
Agreements (the “Capitalization Agreements) in the initial anticipated aggregate amount of $131.79 
million.   

 
 An additional $95.2 million in Federal Receipts will be received within the next 24 months.  The 

combined State Match Portion and associated Federal Receipts will be deposited in IEPA accounts and 
enable IEPA to fund new loans under its Clean Water and Drinking Water Loan Programs. 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 92



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 3  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

FINANCING SUMMARY – IFA SERIES 2016 BONDS 
 

Structure: Bonds to be underwritten by Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (“Bank of 
America Merrill Lynch Securities”) and Citigroup, each as Co-Senior Managers. 
 
Jeffries, Loop Capital Markets, Piper Jaffray, Ramirez & Co. Inc., and Siebert Brandford 
Shank & Co. LLC have been engaged as Co-Managers. 
 
The Bonds will be sold by the Co-Senior Managers and Co-Managers based on the expected 
‘AAA’/‘AAA’ (S&P/Fitch) ratings resulting from the program security described below. 
 

Bondholder Security: The Bonds will be secured by the following (subject to exceptions that will be detailed in the 
Official Statement for the Series 2016 State Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds): 
 

1. All Local Obligations and Pledged Agreements (i.e., IEPA loans to local 
governments) which may be, from time to time assigned by IEPA to the Master 
(Bond) Trustee or held by the Master Trustee under the terms of the Master Trust 
Agreement. 

2. All moneys, securities and earnings thereon in all funds, sub-funds, accounts and sub-
accounts established under the Master Trust Agreement and any Supplemental 
Master Trust Agreement. 
 Exceptions:  moneys deposited in the Rebate Fund and moneys deposited with 

or paid to the Master Trustee for the redemption of Bonds and any other 
exceptions specified in the Master Trust Agreement.  

3. Any and all other moneys and securities furnished from time to time to the Master 
Trustee under terms of the Master Trust Agreement. 

 
The Bonds and the interest thereon do not constitute an indebtedness or an obligation, general 
or moral, or a pledge of the faith or a loan of credit of the Authority, IEPA, the State, or any 
political subdivision thereof, within the purview of any constitutional limitation or provision.  
Only revenues (i.e., from IEPA local government loans) pledged pursuant to the Master Trust 
Agreement may be used to pay principal and interest on the Bonds. 
 

Credit Ratings: The anticipated long-term credit rating on the subject Bonds is ‘AAA’/‘AAA’ (S&P/Fitch) 
based on discussions with the financing team. 
 

Estimated Interest Rate: Fixed interest rate to be determined based on market conditions at pricing based on the 
anticipated ‘AAA’/‘AAA’ (S&P/Fitch) ratings. 
 

Amortization: Serial and Term Bonds with various maturities. 
 

Final Maturity Date: Not to exceed 30 years (i.e. July 1, 2046) 
  
Anticipated Closing Date: September 2016 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 93



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 4  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

COMMENTS ON TERMS OF IEPA’S LOANS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT BORROWERS  
(ORIGINATED FROM IFA SERIES 2016 BOND PROCEEDS): 

 

 
 

  

Origination Requirements 
of IFA Series SRF 2016 
Bond Proceeds under 
federal law (due to  
undesignated pool 
structure): 

The IFA State Revolving Fund Revenues Bonds are being issued to enable IEPA to originate 
loans to (an undesignated) pool of local government borrowers (i.e., as a “pooled financing”).   
 
As a pooled financing, the Series 2016 Bonds will be subject to the federal Tax Increase 
Prevention and Reconciliation Act (“TIPRA”) of 2005, which imposes additional requirements 
and conditions in order for the interest on the Series 2016 Bonds to be and to remain exempt 
from federal income taxation.   
 
TIPRA specifies that unless certain minimum percentages of the Bond proceeds are originated 
(i.e., by IEPA) as loans for eligible projects within certain prescribed time periods (i.e., there 
are minimum origination requirements after years 1 and 3 detailed below), the IFA Series 
2016 Bonds would be subject to mandatory redemption. 
 
In particular, TIPRA requires: 
 

1. The issuer (i.e., IFA based on reliance on a loan demand assessment provided by the 
IEPA) reasonably expects (a) within the one-year period beginning on the date of 
issue that at least 30 percent of the net proceeds of the issue will be originated as 
loans by IEPA, and (b) within the three-year period beginning on the date of issue, 
that at least 95% of the net proceeds will be originated as loans by IEPA. 

2. The issuer (i.e., IFA) shall redeem outstanding bonds to the extent required if the 
spend-down requirements under TIPRA are not attained.   

  
IEPA Deeply Subsidizes  
the Interest Rate to  
Underlying Borrowers to  
Minimize Risk of  
Redemption due to a 
violation 
of TIPRA: 

IEPA subsidizes the interest rate provided to each underlying borrower to an amount equal to 
50% of The Bond Buyer’s 20-Bond General Obligation Index for the preceding State fiscal 
year and federal fiscal year for the Clean Water and Drinking Water Programs, respectively.  
The current rates are 1.75% for the Clean Water Program and 1.86% for the Drinking Water 
Program.  IEPA’s procedures for determining this subsidized rate (which is reset annually are 
established pursuant to administrative rules (i.e., Title 35 Part 65 for the Clean Water Program 
and Title 35 Part 662 for the Drinking Water Program).  Prior to TIPRA, the IDFA Series 
2002, IFA Series 2004 and IFA Series 2013 State Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds were 
subject to existing IRS spend-down requirements given the undesignated pooled financing 
structure.  Significantly, the drawdown of both Prior Bond issues would have satisfied the 
TIPRA origination requirements now in effect. 
 
The deep, below-market interest rate offered by IEPA under the SRF Programs: 
 

 helps drive SRF Program demand, thereby helping assure compliance with the 
applicable TIPRA spend-down requirements for the bond proceeds (as noted in the 
preceding section), and 

 has been sufficient to induce several investment grade local government borrowers to 
participate in the SRF Programs (examples include: Chicago, DeKalb, Evanston, 
Hanover Park, Libertyville, Mattoon, Skokie, Springfield, St. Charles, Sterling, and 
Wilmette).   

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 94



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 5  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION –  
SUMMARY OF PLAN OF FINANCE AND AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION  

 
The proceeds of the Bonds shall be used to (i) fund loans made by IEPA to units of local government to finance eligible (a) 
wastewater treatment and sanitary sewerage facilities and (b) drinking water facilities pursuant to the funding of the State 
Match Portion for Federal fiscal years 2015, 2016, and 2017 and (ii) pay for costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.  
 
The Authorizing Resolution will also authorize the execution of (i) the Second Amendment to the MOA between the 
Authority and IEPA dated November 1, 2013 as amended by the First Amendment to the MOA dated June 30, 2014 and 
related transaction documents including, (i) the Second Supplemental Master Trust Agreement, (ii) the Bond Purchase 
Agreement, (iv) the Preliminary Official Statement, (v) the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and (vi) the Bonds. 
 
A portion of the Bond proceeds used to fund new loans shall be further apportioned as (i) a State Match Clean Water Portion; 
and (ii) a State Match Drinking Water Portion.   
 
The State Match Portion of the Bond proceeds along with other available funds will meet the State match requirement of 
approximately $45.38 million for (i) the Clean Water Program for Federal fiscal years 2016 and 2017 and (ii) the Drinking 
Water Program for Federal fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017, which will enable Federal Receipts to be received for the Clean 
Water Program and Drinking Water Program under Capitalization Grant Agreements (the “Capitalization Agreements”) in the 
initial anticipated aggregate amount of $131.79 million.  An additional $95.2 million in Federal Receipts will be received 
within the next 24 months.   

This Summary of the Plan of Finance is summarized and preliminary.  The final, comprehensive version of the Plan of 
Finance will be contained in the Official Statement for the Bonds when posted. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON IEPA’S STATE REVOLVING FUND (“SRF”) PROGRAMS 
 

Federal Statutory 
Framework:   

1. For Clean Water (i.e., sewage and wastewater treatment):  The federal Clean Water Act 
provides for the establishment of state revolving fund programs, the funds of which are to be 
used to provide financial assistance to various entities in connection with the construction of 
systems for the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of sewage and certain other 
qualified water pollution control projects. 

  
2. For Safe Drinking Water (i.e., drinking water supply):  The federal Safe Drinking Water Act 

Amendments of 1996 amended existing Safe Drinking Water Act requirements to provide 
for the establishment of state revolving fund loan programs, the funds of which are used to 
provide financial assistance to various community water systems in connection with the 
construction of qualified drinking water projects. 

 
Each state created a separate state revolving loan fund to receive federal capitalization grants and 
receipts (from USEPA), and for each, states are required to provide state matching funds equal to 
at least twenty percent (20%) of each federal (USEPA) capitalization grant or receipt under the 
Clean Water Act and Drinking Water Act.   
 
IEPA entered into separate Capitalization Grants Agreements with the USEPA to administer the 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund (“CWSRF”) and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
(“DWSRF”). 
 
The federal Clean Water Act and Drinking Water Act currently authorize the federal government 
(through USEPA) to continue to provide annual capitalization funding (subject to the minimum 
required state matching requirement) for both Clean Water State Revolving Funds (“CWSRF”) 
and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (“DWSRF”). 
 
Although USEPA annual capitalization grant funding for both state revolving fund programs 
have a long history (since 1988 for Clean Water projects and 1996 for Drinking Water projects), 
there can be no assurance that these programs will continue to be funded at current levels.   

  
IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 95



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 6  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

USEPA has Encouraged 
States to Undertake 
Bond Issues to Leverage  
Existing Grant Funded  
Assets: Since the late 1990’s, the USEPA has encouraged states to further leverage existing CWSRF and 

DWSRF program assets by using existing cash flows from each state’s respective loan portfolios 
(and principal and interest payments thereon, to the extent permitted by USEPA) to securitize 
bond issues, the proceeds of which would be used by the states (e.g., through state-level EPA’s) 
to originate additional loans to local governments under the SRF Program. 

 
These leveraged bond issues enable state-level EPAs to increase loan volume dedicated to Clean 
Water and Drinking Water projects, thereby enabling funding beyond levels funded directly by 
USEPA through its annual capitalization funding (and required State Matching Funds) for the 
Clean Water and Drinking Water Programs.   
 
Consistent with this policy objective, the Illinois EPA successfully completed Leveraged State 
Revolving Bond issues through the Illinois Development Finance Authority in 2002 ($150.0 
million) and through IFA in 2004 ($130.0 million) and in 2013 ($141.7 million), (collectively, 
the “Prior Bonds”).  Proceeds of the Prior Bonds enabled IEPA to originate additional loans (by 
pledging payments from a portion of its existing loan portfolio to secure payments on the Prior 
Bonds). 

 
IEPA’s Management of the  
Clean Water & Drinking  
Water  SRF Programs: Pursuant to authority granted in the federal Clean Water Act, the State (through the IEPA) 

created the Clean Water Program in 1988 to implement the provisions of Title VI of the Clean 
Water Act.  Similarly, the State created the Drinking Water Program in 1996 to implement the 
Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996. 

 
 Under both the Clean Water and Drinking Water Programs, IEPA has utilized both federal 

capitalization receipts and the required twenty percent (20%) state match for the purpose of 
making low interest loans for Clean Water and Drinking Water projects to units of local 
government to finance the construction of wastewater treatment and sanitary sewerage facility 
projects (CWSRF Projects) and drinking water supply projects (DWSRF Projects), respectively. 

 
 IEPA annually prepares an Intended Use Plan to USEPA, which is presented in public hearings.  

These Intended Use Plans identify projects eligible for assistance under the Clean Water Program 
(i.e., wastewater treatment projects) and the Drinking Water Program (i.e., drinking water 
projects).   

 
IEPA SRF Programs – 
Loan  Originations to Date:  

IEPA has closed and funded 827 Clean Water Program Loans to Clean Water participants 
totaling approximately $4.269 billion since inception in 1988 to June 30, 2016, of which 
approximately $2.397 billion are outstanding.  No payment defaults have occurred with respect to 
any of the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans. 

  
IEPA has closed and funded 536 Drinking Water Program Loans to Drinking Water participants 
totaling approximately $1.174 billion since inception in 1996, of which approximately $755 
million are outstanding.  No payment defaults have occurred with respect to any of the Drinking 
Water Program State Revolving Fund Loans. 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 96



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 7  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

IEPA is Responsible for 
Originating, Reviewing 
Applications, Closing,  
Servicing, and Reporting  
on all Loans: IEPA is responsible for the overall technical and financial management of the SRF Programs, 

including ongoing financial reporting on the underlying Loan Program Portfolios to the USEPA and 
other external parties, review and approval of planning documents, plans and specifications, legal 
authority, dedicated sources of revenue, fund management, and disbursement requests.   

  
Memorandum of Agreement  
between IEPA and IFA: The accompanying Authorizing Resolution will also authorize execution of a Second 

Amendment to Memorandum of Agreement between the IFA and IEPA (“Second Amendment to 
MOA”).  IFA and IEPA entered into the existing Memorandum of Agreement dated as of 
November 1, 2013 as amended by the First Amendment to Memorandum of Agreement dated as 
of June 30, 2014 (the “Memorandum of Agreement”) to specify IFA and IEPA’s respective roles 
including, but not limited to, originating and managing the loan program (IEPA), reporting on the 
performance of the SRF loan portfolio (IEPA) to external parties, issuance of the Bonds (IFA), 
and specifying collaboration and roles to enable IFA to comply with material event and other 
required reporting in connection with a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (“CDU”).  The 
Second Amendment further clarifies certain of these roles and responsibilities. 

 
 Pursuant to the MOA and Master Trust Agreement, IEPA will continue to administer, structure, 

and monitor the SRF Programs.  IEPA will have primary responsibility for filing financial reports 
as required by USEPA, and for providing external financial reports on its loan portfolio as 
required by the underlying bond documents and to help ensure prompt and comprehensive 
reporting to assure compliance with continuing disclosure requirements on the Bonds and for 
maintenance of ratings on the Bonds.  IEPA’s responsibilities will include (but not be limited to) 
promptly notifying the Authority to request any changes in pledged loans, promptly notifying the 
Authority regarding any underlying Borrower that exceeds the 20% loan concentration threshold 
requiring EMMA filings under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, advising IFA regarding 
the origination of loans from Bond Proceeds relating to TIPRA spend-down requirements, and 
for any other consent or notice specified under the Master Trust Agreement, or any related 
documents necessary to comply with regulatory requirements in effect.  

 
 Effective with execution of the MOA, the Authority assumed certain responsibilities (including, 

for example, procurement of certain professionals and advisors and continuing disclosure on the 
Bonds based on reports and filings provided by IEPA) and other information required under the 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.    

 
The Authority, as Issuer, will continue to undertake such actions as necessary to facilitate 
issuance of Bonds on behalf of IEPA as with issuance of the Prior Bonds. 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 97



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 8  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 

Initial 
Beneficiary of Bond  
Proceeds – IEPA’s SRF 
Programs:   Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, 1021 North Grand Avenue East, P.O. Box 19276, 

Springfield, IL 62794-9276; Phone:  (217) 782-3397  
 
Web site for IEPA’s  
Bureau Of Water and  
Loan Programs:   Illinois EPA:  
    www.epa.state.il.us 
 

IEPA Bureau of Water – Clean Water Initiative: 
    www.epa.state.il.us/water/financial-assistance/clean-water-initiative/index.html.com  

Project name:   IFA State Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 
 
 
Underlying Borrowers/ 
Locations:   IEPA will use the Bond proceeds (i.e., associated with the 2017 State Match) to originate new 

loans to finance local government clean water and drinking water systems located statewide. 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Illinois EPA: Alec Messina, Director Springfield, IL 
 

 
 

Bond Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP Chicago, IL Lew Greenbaum 
Renee Friedman 
 

Financial Advisors (for SRF 
Revenue Bond Program): 

Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL 
New York, NY 

Phoebe Selden  
Noreen White 

 Sycamore Advisors, LLC Chicago, IL 
Indianapolis, IN 

Melanie Shaker 
Diana Hamilton 

Book-running Co-Senior 
Manager: 
 

Bank of America Merrill Lynch  
Securities 

New York, NY 
Chicago, IL 

Thomas Liu 
Eric Rockhold 
Phil Rooney 

Co-Senior Manager: Citigroup Chicago, IL 
Chicago, IL 

Samantha Costanzo 
Robert Mellinger 

Co-Managers: Jefferies 
Loop Capital Markets 
Piper Jaffray  
Ramirez & Co., Inc. 
Siebert Brandford Shank & Co., LLC 

Boston, MA 
Chicago, IL 
Chicago, IL 
Chicago, IL 
Chicago, IL 

Guy K. Nagahama 
Clarence Bourne 
Neil A. Pritz 
Phil Culpepper 
Karen Walker 

Co-Underwriter’s Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP 
Pugh, Jones & Johnson, P.C.  

Chicago, IL 
Chicago, IL 

William Corbin 
Rich Tomei 
Stephen Pugh 
Glenn Weinstein 

Trustee/Fiscal Agent: Amalgamated Bank of Chicago Chicago, IL  

Rating Agencies: Standard & Poor’s  
Fitch Ratings 

Chicago, IL 
Chicago, IL 

 

IFA Counsel: Schiff Hardin LLP Chicago, IL Bruce Weisenthal 
Victoria Pool 

    

  
IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 98



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 9  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS  
  

Available to local governments for wastewater treatment and drinking water projects statewide. 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 99



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 10  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

DISCLAIMER: 
 
All information provided in this report is preliminary based on information available as of 8/4/2016 
and subject to change.   
 
All information regarding the proposed IFA Series 2016 State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative 
Revenue Bonds as contained herein will be superseded by information posted in the Preliminary 
Official Statement and Final Official Statement, respectively, immediately upon dissemination. 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 100



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 11  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

RESOLUTION 2016 _____ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$600,000,000 IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF STATE OF ILLINOIS CLEAN 

WATER INITIATIVE REVOLVING FUND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016, OF THE 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY; AUTHORIZING THE SALE THEREOF; AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS; APPROVING THE DISTRIBUTION 

OF A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND 

RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a political subdivision and a body politic and corporate 
duly organized and validly existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Authority”), 
including without limitation, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq., (the “Act”), is 
authorized by the laws of the State of Illinois, including without limitation the Act, to issue its revenue bonds 
for the purposes set forth in the Act and to permit the expenditure of the proceeds thereof to finance or 
refinance, among other things, the costs of “public purpose projects,” as defined in the Act, “industrial 
projects,” as defined in the Act, and to finance the costs of “environmental facilities,” as referenced in the Act; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Water Quality Act of 1987, 33 U.S.C., Section 1381 et seq., as supplemented and 
amended (the “Federal Clean Water Act”), and the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 300f et seq., as 
supplemented and amended (the “Federal Drinking Water Act”), authorize the Administrator of the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) to make capitalization grants to states for deposit in state 
revolving funds to provide assistance for constructing publicly owned wastewater treatment facilities and 
publicly and privately owned drinking water treatment facilities and for certain other eligible purposes; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title IV of the Environmental Protection Act, 415 ILCS 5/19.1 et seq., as 
supplemented and amended, there has been established a “Water Pollution Control Loan Program,” and a 
“Public Water Supply Loan Program” (collectively, the “SRF Program”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Federal Clean Water Act, the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
(“IEPA”) has established a clean water state revolving fund in the State as part of its Water Pollution Control 
Loan Program (the “Clean Water Program”) and, pursuant to the Federal Drinking Water Act, has established a 
safe drinking water state revolving fund in the State as part of its Public Water Supply Loan Program (the 
“Drinking Water Program”); and 

WHEREAS, the Departments of Veteran Affairs and Housing and Urban Development, and 
Independent Agencies Appropriations Act, Public Act 105-65, as supplemented and amended, authorizes each 
state to cross-collateralize the assets of such state revolving funds established under the Federal Clean Water 
Act and the Federal Drinking Water Act as security for bond issues to enhance the lending capacity of one or 
both state revolving funds; and 

WHEREAS, IEPA has made loans from the revolving funds as part of the Clean Water Program and as 
part of the Drinking Water Program, which loans are currently outstanding (collectively, the “Loans”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore issued its State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving 
Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Series 2013 Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of 
$141,700,000, of which $87,415,000 in aggregate principal amount is outstanding under the Master Trust 
Agreement dated as of November 1, 2013, as supplemented by the First Supplemental Master Trust Agreement 
dated as of November 1, 2013 (the “Master Trust Agreement”), between the Authority and  Amalgamated Bank 
of Chicago, as Master Trustee (the “Master Trustee”); and  

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 101



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 12  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to provide funds to be used for loans for the SRF Program, 
including the funding of a portion of the State Match required under the Clean Water Program for Federal fiscal 
years 2016 and 2017 and the Drinking Water Program for Federal fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017 (the 
“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is necessary and desirable to issue its revenue bonds 
to finance the Project which constitutes a “public purpose project” under the Act in connection with the SRF 
Program, and to pay costs of issuance; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes set forth in the Act, the Authority wishes to provide for the 
financing of the Project by the sale and issuance of its revenue bonds, and by authorizing such actions as might 
be required to implement such stated intention; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Authority is now 
prepared to issue and sell its State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016, (or such other series designations as the officers of the Authority executing the Authority Documents (as 
defined below) shall provide) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $600,000,000 (the “Bonds”) in 
order to finance the Project, such Bonds to be secured by the Master Trust Agreement on a parity with the 
Series 2013 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, it may be necessary, desirable and in the best interests of the Authority to issue the Bonds 
in one or more series and to allow each series of the Bonds to be sold at public or private sale; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the Loans have heretofore been assigned by the IEPA to the Authority 
pursuant to an Assignment of Loans dated as of December 5, 2013 (the “Initial Pledged Agreements”) to 
provide security for the payment of the Series 2013 Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, additional Loans (the “Additional Pledged Agreements” and with the Initial Pledged 
Agreements, the “Pledged Agreements”) are anticipated to be assigned from the IEPA to the Authority in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the Bonds shall be payable solely from the Pledged Agreements and all moneys, 
securities and earnings in all funds and accounts established under the Master Trust Agreement, except as set 
forth in the Master Trust Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary, desirable and in the best interests of the Authority to authorize the 
execution and delivery of one or more supplements to the Master Trust Agreement (the “Supplements”), 
between the Authority and the Master Trustee in connection with the issuance of each series of Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the IEPA entered into that certain Memorandum of Agreement dated as 
of November 1, 2013 as amended by the First Amendment to Memorandum of Agreement dated as of June 30, 
2014, between the Authority and the IEPA (the “Memorandum of Agreement”) describing the duties and 
obligations of such entities in connection with the Clean Water Program and Drinking Water Program; and  

WHEREAS, the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director of the Authority may 
determine that it is necessary, desirable and in the best interests of the Authority to authorize the execution and 
delivery of a Second Amendment to Memorandum of Agreement between the Authority and the IEPA (the 
“Second Amendment to MOA”); and  

WHEREAS, it is now necessary, desirable and in the best interests of the Authority to authorize the 
execution and delivery of one or more Bond Purchase Agreements (the “Purchase Contracts”) with respect to 
the sale of and delivery of each series of the Bonds, by and among the Authority, the IEPA and Merrill Lynch, 
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and, with respect to the public 
sale of the Bonds, those other underwriters set forth on the cover of the hereinafter defined Preliminary Official 
Statement (collectively, the “Underwriters”); and IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 102



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 13  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary, desirable and in the best interests of the Authority to authorize the 
execution and delivery of one or more Tax Exemption Certificates and Agreements dated the date of issuance of 
each series of the Bonds, by and among the Authority, the IEPA and the Master Trustee (the “Tax Exemption 
Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary, desirable and in the best interests of the Authority to approve the 
distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) and an official statement 
(the “Official Statement”) in connection with the issuance of the public sale of the Bonds and a Private Offering 
Memorandum (the “POM”) in connection with a private sale of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary, desirable and in the best interest of the Authority to authorize the 
execution and delivery of one or more Continuing Disclosure Undertakings dated the date of issuance of each 
series of Bonds, by the Authority (the “Undertakings”) in order to meet its continuing disclosure obligations to 
the Underwriters under Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has caused to be prepared and presented to its Members forms of the 
following documents which the Members of the Authority propose to approve the terms of or enter into: 

(i) a Supplement, 

(ii) a Purchase Contract, 

(iii) a Preliminary Official Statement, 

(iv) a Second Amendment to MOA 

(v) an Undertaking, and 

(vi) the Bonds; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority, as 
follows: 

That the Authority hereby finds that all of the recitals contained in the preambles to this Resolution are 
full, true and correct, and does incorporate them into this Resolution by this reference; that the Project 
constitutes a “public purpose project” under the Act; and that the financing of the Project through the issuance 
of the Bonds will accomplish valid public purposes as set forth and in accordance with the Act. 

That the Authority is hereby authorized to enter into the Supplements, the Second Amendment to MOA 
and the Undertakings (the “Authority Documents”) in substantially the same forms now before the Authority; 
that the forms, terms and provisions of the Authority Documents be, and they hereby are, in all respects 
approved; that the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director of the Authority be, and each of 
them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver, and the Secretary or any Assistant 
Secretary of the Authority be and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to attest and to 
affix the official seal of the Authority to, the Authority Documents (as applicable) in the name, for and on 
behalf of the Authority, and thereupon to cause the Authority Documents to be executed, acknowledged and 
delivered in substantially the forms now before the Authority or with such changes therein as the individual 
executing each Authority Document on behalf of the Authority shall approve, his or her execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the forms of 
Authority Documents now before the Members of the Authority; that when the Authority Documents are 
executed, attested, sealed and delivered on behalf of the Authority as hereinabove provided, such Authority 
Documents shall be binding on the Authority; that from and after the execution and delivery of the Authority 
Documents, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and directed 
to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply 
with the provisions of the Authority Documents as executed; and a copy of the Authority Documents shall be 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 103



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 14  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

placed in the official records of the Authority, and shall be available for public inspection at the office of the 
Authority. 

That the form of the Bonds now before the Authority, be, and the same hereby is approved; that the 
Bonds may be issued as separate series pursuant to separate Supplements; that each series of the Bonds may be 
sold at either public or private sale; that each series of the Bonds may be given such series designations deemed 
necessary and appropriate by the offices of the Authority executing the Authority Documents; that the Bonds 
shall be executed in the name, for and on behalf of the Authority with the manual or facsimile signature of its 
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Executive Director and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of its 
Secretary or Assistant Secretary and the seal of the Authority or a facsimile thereof shall be affixed, impressed, 
imprinted or otherwise reproduced thereon and any officer of the Authority shall cause the Bonds, as so 
executed and attested, to be delivered to the Master Trustee for authentication; and that when the Bonds shall be 
executed on behalf of the Authority in the manner contemplated by the Master Trust Agreement and related 
Supplements and this Resolution, they shall represent the approved forms of Bonds of the Authority; provided 
that the Bonds shall mature in such amount or amounts payable on such date or dates not later than July 1, 2046, 
and shall bear interest at such rate or rates not to exceed seven percent (7%) per annum, and produce an 
arbitrage yield of not to exceed seven percent (7%) per annum, payable on such date or dates as provided in the 
related Supplements, and subject to redemption as provided in the Master Trust Agreement and related 
Supplement; provided further, that the Authority deems it proper to delegate to the Chairperson, the Vice 
Chairperson or the Executive Director of the Authority, as the case may be, the power to approve any and all 
changes to any Supplement, any Purchase Contract, the Second Amendment to MOA, the Bonds, the 
Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and any POM as he or she shall, on behalf of the 
Authority, determine, subject to the preceding proviso. 

That one or more sales by series of the Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$600,000,000 to the Underwriters (or in the case of a private sale of Bonds, to the Representative), at a purchase 
price of not less than 98% of the aggregate principal amount thereof being sold (exclusive of original issue 
discount and premium) and accrued interest, if any, to the date of delivery, is hereby approved and confirmed; 
that the Authority is hereby authorized to enter into one or more Purchase Contracts in substantially the same 
form as presented to the Members of the Authority; that the form, terms and provisions of the Purchase 
Contracts be, and they hereby are, in all respects approved; that the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the 
Executive Director of the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to 
execute and deliver the Purchase Contracts, such Purchase Contracts to provide for the issuance and sale of a 
series of Bonds of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount not exceeding that maximum principal 
amount set forth above, in substantially the same form as presented to the Members of the Authority or with 
such changes therein as the individual executing such Purchase Contract on behalf of the Authority shall 
approve, his or her execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all changes 
and revisions therein from the form of Purchase Contract before the Members of the Authority; that when a 
Purchase Contract is executed and delivered on behalf of the Authority as hereinabove provided, such Purchase 
Contract shall be binding upon the Authority; that from and after the execution and delivery of the Purchase 
Contracts, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and directed 
to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply 
with the provisions of the Purchase Contracts as executed; and a copy of each Purchase Contract shall be placed 
in the official records of the Authority, and shall be available for public inspection at the office of the Authority. 

That the distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement by the Underwriters 
with respect to each series of Bonds is hereby approved, such Preliminary Official Statement and Official 
Statement to be in substantially the same form as the Preliminary Official Statement now before the Authority, 
or with such changes thereto as shall be approved by the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive 
Director of the Authority.  That the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director are, and each 
of them hereby is, authorized to execute the Official Statements. 

That the use of a POM is hereby approved in connection with any sale of Bonds at a private or direct 
sale, such POM to be in a similar form as the Preliminary Official Statement now before the Authority, or with 
such changes thereto as shall be approved by the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or the Executive Director IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 104



 
IFA State of Illinois Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds – Series 2016 Authorizing Resolution 
Page 15  August 11, 2016 

  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 

of the Authority. That the Chairperson or Executive Director are, and each of them hereby is, authorized to 
execute the POM. 

That the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson, the Executive Director, the Treasurer, the Secretary and 
any Assistant Secretary of the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized to execute and deliver such 
other documents, certificates, and undertakings of the Authority, including, without limitation, a Tax Exemption 
Agreement with respect to each series of Bonds, and to take such other actions as may be required in connection 
with the execution, delivery and performance of the Master Trust Agreement, the Supplements, the 
Undertakings, the Purchase Contracts and the Second Amendment to MOA and the distribution of the 
Preliminary Official Statements, the Official Statements and any POM, authorized by this Resolution. 

That all acts of the officers, employees and agents of the Authority which are in conformity with the 
purposes and intent of this Resolution be, and the same hereby are, in all respects, ratified, approved and 
confirmed. 

That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable and if any section, phrase or 
provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of 
the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this Resolution. 

That all resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby superseded to the extent 
of such conflict. 

That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption, as by law provided. 

 
 

 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 105



Illinois Finance Authority

Illustration of SRF Program Assets vs. Debt

Note:  Program Assets includes existing CW & DW Loans.  Does not include new loans to be funded from proposed 2016 Bonds.

$2,397,000,000 

$755,000,000 

 $-

 $500,000,000

 $1,000,000,000

 $1,500,000,000

 $2,000,000,000

 $2,500,000,000

 $3,000,000,000

 $3,500,000,000

1

SRF Program Assets

CWSRF Loans (Outstanding)

DWSRF Loans (Outstanding)

$87,415,000 

$500,000,000 

 $-

 $500,000,000

 $1,000,000,000

 $1,500,000,000

 $2,000,000,000

 $2,500,000,000

 $3,000,000,000

 $3,500,000,000

1

SRF Program Debt

2013 Bonds

Proposed 2016 Bonds

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 106



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Patrick Evans 
 
Date: August 11, 2016 
 
Re: Resolution to Consent to Deferral of Scheduled Payment and Waiver of Event of Default in 

connection with IFA Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee Loan  on behalf of Mark D. Donoho and 
Karen Donoho, each individually 

 IFA 2009 File Number: A-DR-GT-8239 
 
 
Background on the Subject Loan: 
 
The Illinois Finance Authority (“IFA” or the “Authority”) closed on an IFA Agri-Debt Restructuring 
Guarantee Loan on June 11, 2009 in favor of Peoples National Bank, N.A. (Mt. Vernon, Illinois) (the 
“Bank”) which enabled Mark Donoho and Karen Donoho (collectively, the “Borrowers”) to refinance 
$487,000 of combined existing real estate debt and equipment debt (the “IFA Guaranteed Loan”).   
 
The original loan balance was $487,000 and has been paid down to $425,472 (current outstanding balance 
as of June 11, 2016). 
 
The Authority’s 85% guarantee exposure was $413,950 at the time of closing and has been reduced to 
approximately $361,651 (current outstanding balance as of June 11, 2016).  
 
Background on the Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee Program:   
 
Under the Agri-Debt Restructuring Program, the Bank absorbs the initial 15% of any loss (while the 
Authority absorbs the remaining credit loss).    
 
Payments on the IFA Guarantees are made from the Illinois Agricultural Loan Guarantee Fund, held by the 
State Treasurer.   
 
Under the IFA Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee, in the event of default by a borrower, (1) the lender 
(bank) shall be entitled to, and (2) the Authority shall direct payment on, the State Guarantee after 90 days 
of delinquency.   
 
After payment on the State Guarantee, the lender has 14 months to sell the collateral securing the IFA 
Guaranteed Loan. 
 
Bank and Borrower’s Request: 
 
On July 14, 2016, Peoples National Bank, N.A. (Mt. Vernon, Illinois) (the “Bank”) on behalf of Mark 
D. Donoho and Karen Donoho (collectively, the “Borrowers”) submitted a written request to the Illinois 
Finance Authority (the “Authority”) to consent to defer  the Borrower’s  scheduled June 11, 2016  
payment to November 11, 2016 “to better match [the Borrowers’] cash flow”.    
 

 The Bank’s request indicated that this requested change in payment date will only affect the 
scheduled June 11, 2016 payment.   

 There will be no other changes to the existing terms of the 2009 Guaranteed Loan or pledged 
collateral.   

 The 2009 Guaranteed Loan is currently secured by two parcels of land including:  (i) a 40-acre 
parcel of farmland (with improvements including farm buildings and a home) located in Jefferson 
County, and (ii) a 120-acre parcel of farmland located in Marion County. 

 The amount of the June 11, 2016 principal and interest payment is $36,887.61 (which includes 
unpaid interest for the period June 11, 2015 to June 11, 2016 of approximately $23,000). 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 107



Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho Resolution Authorizing Consent to Payment Extension  
Page 2 and Waiver of Default 
  August 11, 2016 
  Patrick Evans 
 
Impact of Approving Resolution Consenting to Deferral of June 11th Annual Payment to November 
11th: 
 
Conditions Under Which a Lender is Entitled to Demand Payment on the IFA Guaranteed Loan:  Based 
on the Authority’s statute, in the event of default by the Borrower, the lender shall be entitled to, and the 
Authority shall direct payment on, the State Guarantee after 90 days of delinquency (which due to the 
Borrower’s past due June 11, 2016 payment would result in an event of default pursuant to the Authority’s 
statute as of September 9, 2016).  Accordingly, as of September 9, 2016, the Bank would be entitled to 
authorize its right to demand payment on the IFA Guarantee and the Authority would then be obligated to 
pay on the Guarantee within 90 days of delivery of the Bank’s written notice of demand. 
 
Key Terms of the Resolution:  Approval of the accompanying Resolution would avoid these results by (i) 
consenting to the Bank’s request (on behalf of the Borrowers) to effectuate a payment extension from June 
11, 2016 to November 11, 2016 while (ii) also providing a waiver by the Bank of the Borrowers’ failure to 
make the June 11, 2016 payment (which is an Event of Default under the Bank’s Promissory Note with the 
Borrowers) and any other Events of Default under the Promissory Note between the Bank and the 
Borrowers. 
 
Key Results Achieved by Approving the Resolution:  The Resolution would defer (and prospectively 
avoid) delivery of a Bank payment demand on the State Guarantee while providing extra time for the Bank 
and Borrower to explore other options (e.g., negotiating a forbearance agreement, refinancing, pursuing 
selective asset disposition to de-leverage, etc.).   
 
Additional Risk Associated with Approval of the Resolution:  In addition to the unpaid principal balance, 
additional risk associated with approval of this Resolution would be the exposure to cover estimated 
accrued interest for the Payment Extension Period (i.e., the five-month period from June 11, 2016 to 
November 11, 2016) of approximately $9,750.   
 
Collateral Adequacy: 
 
As noted previously, the IFA Guaranteed Loan will continue to benefit from the same First Mortgage 
security in place since this IFA Guaranteed Loan closed in 2009. 
 
The accompanying IFA Board Summary Report cites the results of appraisal reports prepared on the two 
properties as of May 25, 2016 by Iuka State Bank (a competitive bank).  As detailed further in the 
accompanying report, due to the reduction in principal balance and appreciation in land value since 2009, 
the 2016 appraised value of the pledged collateral (even after discounting the reported values) appears more 
than sufficient to cover the outstanding loan balances (and both the Bank and IFA Guarantee exposure) and 
the approximately $9,750 of estimated accrued interest from June 16, 2016 to November 11, 2016.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
I recommend approval of the accompanying Resolution providing for (i) a waiver of the Event of Default 
which occurred as a result of the Borrowers’ failure to make a scheduled payment of principal and interest 
in the amount of $36,887.62 to the Bank, and (ii) a payment extension of the scheduled June 11, 2016 
payment to November 11, 2016.   
 
The Resolution would defer a prospective Bank payment demand on the State Guarantee (which could 
occur as soon as September 9, 2016) while providing extra time for the Bank and Borrower to explore other 
options (e.g., negotiating a forbearance agreement, refinancing, pursuing selective asset disposition to de-
leverage, etc.).  These results would be beneficial to the Authority, the Bank, and the Borrower.   
 
Attachments: 
 

1. IFA Resolution 
2. IFA Board Summary Report 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 108



 
IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2016-0609-AG__ 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONSENT TO A DEFERRAL OF SCHEDULED PAYMENT 
AND WAIVER OF EVENTS OF DEFAULT FOR A LOAN SUBJECT TO AN AGRI-DEBT 

RESTRUCTURING GUARANTEE (BORROWERS: MARK D. DONOHO AND KAREN 
DONOHO, EACH INDIVIDUALLY) 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the "Authority") is a body corporate and politic duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois, particularly the Illinois Finance Authority 
Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et seq. (the “Act”); and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois, including, without limitation. the 

provisions of Sections 830-5 and 830-30 of the Act, the Authority is authorized to issue state guarantees 
of farmers’ existing debts held by a lender (each a “State Guarantee”); and  

 
WHEREAS, under Sections 830-5 and 830-30 of the Act and Title 74, Chapter VIII, Part 1100 

of the Administrative Code, the Authority has established a State Guarantee Program for Restructuring 
Agricultural Debt (the “State Guarantee Program”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the State Guarantee Program, the Authority has issued a State 

Guarantee in connection with a loan (the “Guaranteed Loan”) made pursuant to (i) that certain Business 
Loan Agreement dated as of June 11, 2009 (the “Loan Agreement”), between Mark D. Donoho and Karen 
Donoho, each an individual, as borrowers thereunder (collectively, the “Borrowers”), and Peoples 
National Bank, N.A., as lender thereunder (the “Lender”), and (ii) that certain Promissory Note dated 
June 11, 2009 in the original principal amount of $487,000, (the “Note”), executed by the Borrowers in 
favor of the Lender under and pursuant to the Loan Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Guaranteed Loan is secured by various real and personal property owned by the 

Borrower; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lender has notified the Authority that an “Event of Default” (as such term is 

defined in the Loan Agreement) has occurred and is continuing under the Loan Agreement, the Note and 
the other agreements, documents and instruments executed and delivered pursuant thereto (the Loan 
Agreement, the Note and such other agreements, documents and instruments being herein referred to, 
collectively, as the “Loan Documents’), as a result of the Borrowers’ failure to make a scheduled payment 
of principal in the amount of $36,887.61 under the Note on June 11, 2016 (the “June Payment”); and   

 
WHEREAS, the Lender has requested that the Authority consent to the extension to November 

11, 2016, of the date for payment of the June Payment (the “Payment Extension”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the Payment Extension and the waiver by the Lender of the 

failure to make the June Payment and any Events of Default existing under the Loan Documents (the 
“Waiver”), the Authority has determined that it is in the best interests of the parties to consent to the 
Payment Extension and Waiver; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the members of the Illinois Finance Authority, as follows: 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 109



Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. Approval of Consent by Authority to Payment Extension and Waiver. The consent 

by the Authority to the Payment Extension and the Waiver is hereby approved.  

Section 3. Delegation to the Executive Director. The Authority hereby delegates to the 
Executive Director of the Authority, in conjunction with the other officers and employees of the 
Authority, the power to take or cause to be taken any and all actions, and to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver any and all such agreements, instruments, certificates and other documents as may be required in 
connection with the consent by the Authority to the Payment Extension and Waiver. 
 

Section 4. Further Actions. The Executive Director is hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver all documents as may in 
his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the terms and provisions of 
this Resolution; and all of the acts and doings of the Executive Director of the Authority which are in 
conformity with the intent and purpose of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, 
shall be and the same are hereby in all respects, ratified, confirmed and approved. All prior and future acts 
and doing of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in conformity with the purposes 
and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the execution and performance of the Resolution shall 
be and the same hereby are in all respects approved and confirmed. 
 

Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to 
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Resolution. 
 

Section 6. Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 
 

Section 7. Immediate Effect. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its passage, as by law provided. 
 

Approved and effective this 11th day of August, 2016 by roll call vote as follows: 
 

Yeas: 
 
Nays: 
 
Abstain: 
 
Absent: 
 
Vacancies: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 110



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 

By ______________________________________ 
                                                                             Executive Director 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Assistant Secretary 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 111



 
 
August 11,  2016 

NON-CONDUIT
$425,472 
MARK D. DONOHO & KAREN DONOHO 
AGRI-DEBT RESTRUCTURING GUARANTEE 

 

REQUEST Purpose:  In 2009, the Illinois Finance Authority provided an 85% loan guarantee in favor of 
Peoples National Bank, N.A. (Mt. Vernon, Illinois) (the “Bank”) to facilitate a debt 
restructuring on $487,000 of existing farm debt under IFA’s Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee 
Program.  The $487,000 proceeds of the Agri-Debt Restructuring Guaranteed Loan were loaned 
to Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho, each as individuals (and collectively, the 
“Borrowers”) in order to refinance their existing debts.  The loan closed on June 11, 2009 with 
annual payments (due annually each June 11th) in the amount of $36,889.  
 
Request:  The Bank has requested a deferral of the scheduled June 11, 2016 principal and 
interest payment to November 11, 2016. The proposed IFA Resolution that would accomplish 
this payment deferral would also require the Bank to waive the payment default associated with 
the past-due June 11, 2016 payment (and any other Events of Default) under the Promissory 
Note between the Bank and Borrowers. 
 
Security:  The subject loan will remain secured by First Mortgages on two properties:  (1) 
approximately 40 acres of farmland and improvements located in Jefferson County, Illinois and 
(2) approximately 120 acres of farmland located in Marion County, Illinois.  There will be no 
changes to the pledged collateral.
   
Conditions:  By deferring the combined principal and interest payment due on June 11, 2016 to 
November 11, 2016: 1) the Bank will defer potentially delivering a demand letter on the IFA 
85% Guarantee (for which the Bank must absorb the initial 15% loss); 2) the Bank will have 
additional time to assess the situation (and, ultimately, propose a suitable forbearance,  
restructuring, or asset disposition plan); and 3) IFA will have more time to assess the situation to 
optimize the ultimate result.  
 

State Treasurer Reserve Funds at Risk:  $361,651 (as of 6/11/2016) 
BOARD ACTIONS Resolution to (i) defer scheduled annual principal and interest payment due as of June 11, 2016 (the  

“June Payment”) to November 11, 2016 and (ii) to require the Bank to waive the payment default  
and any other Events of Default in effect. (One-time consideration)  
 

This is the first time this request has been considered by the IFA Board of Directors 

MATERIAL 

CHANGES 
None. 

JOB DATA N/A Current jobs 
 N/A Retained jobs 

BORROWER  ● Type of entity: Individuals 
DESCRIPTION ● Location: Bluford, IL (properties are in Jefferson and Marion Counties) 
 ● What does the entity do: Grain and Pumpkin Farming 
 ● What will Resolution request would facilitate: (i) Defer Borrowers’ June 11, 2016 payment 

 until November 11, 2016 and (ii) waive any Events of Default associated with the June Payment 
PROPOSED 

STRUCTURE 
Collateral:   160 acres of Farmland and Improvements (two properties:  (i) 40 acres of farmland with  
improvements (Jefferson County), and (ii) 120 acres of farmland (Marion County) 
Collateral Position:  1st Mortgage Position on both properties 

 
Maturity:  June 11, 2034 (original 2009 Loan Terms) 
Interest Rate:  5.50% (See Confidential Section)           

 
Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee: 85% Loan Guarantee – Request to Defer June 11, 2016  
payment until November 11, 2016 and for Bank to waive any Events of Default  

SOURCES AND USES Not Applicable (no disbursement of funds would occur in connection with this request)   
 
The outstanding loan balance (of which 85% is IFA-guaranteed) is currently $425,472.  The current 
exposure to the State Treasurer’s Reserve Fund is $361,651 (plus unpaid interest). 

RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval of the Resolution as presented. 
 IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 112



Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho Resolution to Defer Payment and for Bank 
to Waive Events of Default 

Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee August 11, 2016 
Page 2 Patrick Evans 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
August 11, 2016 

 
Project:  Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho 

STATISTICS 

Project Number:  2009-DR0501 (Existing Loan) Amount:   $425,472 
Type:                   Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee IFA Staff:   Patrick Evans  
Location:   Jefferson and Marion Counties County/Region: Jefferson and Marion Counties 
  Southern and Southeast Regions 
  

BOARD ACTION 

Final Resolution - 85% Loan Guarantee Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 
State Treasurer’s Reserve Funds currently at risk: $361,651 (plus 85% of unpaid interest)  
 
Request:  Modification and deferral of Principal and Interest Payment Date from June 11, 2016 to December 11, 
2016 and waiver of Event of Default on the Borrower’s delinquent June 11, 2016 payment. 

VOTING RECORD   

This is the first time this project has been presented to the Board of Directors.   

PURPOSE 

The Bank is requesting a change in payment date from June 11, 2016 to November 11, 2016. The November 11, 
2016 will be the principal and accrued interest that was due on June 11, 2016. The collateral on the loan will remain 
the same. 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

The Authority’s Agriculture Guarantee Programs guarantee up to 85% of a Bank’s loans to Illinois farmers and 
agribusiness owners.  The State Guarantee Program for Restructuring Agricultural Debt is available to assist farmers 
in refinancing and restructuring their debts.  The guarantees are not transferable without the Authority’s written 
consent.  The Authority’s agricultural guarantee obligations are backed by an IFA reserve capitalized for this 
program (and from other available funds).  These guarantees are also full faith and credit obligations of the State of 
Illinois.  IFA’s issuance of guarantees helps IFA borrowers obtain debt financing at reduced rates of interest and 
improved terms.   

VOLUME CAP 

N/A 

JOBS 

Current employment: N/A Projected new jobs: N/A  
Jobs retained:             N/A Construction jobs: N/A 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Non Applicable as no transaction action of funds will take place.  This request is for deferment of June 11, 2016 
payment to November 11, 2016.  Total outstanding balance is $425,472 (plus unpaid interest). 

FINANCING SUMMARY/STRUCTURE 

Security: 1st Mortgage of 160 acres of farmland and improvements 
Structure: 25 year term and amortization (Note: original 2009 loan terms). 
Interest Mode:  Adjustable Every 3 years at Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, with a floor of 5.50% 
Credit Enhancement:  IFA 85% Loan Restructuring Guarantee 
Personal Guarantees: N/A (both individuals have signed the Bank’s Promissory Note as individuals) 
Maturity: June 11, 2034 (Note:  original 2009 loan maturity date) 
Payment 
Deferral Period:    From June 11, 2016 through November 11, 2016 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 113



Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho Resolution to Defer Payment and for Bank 
to Waive Events of Default 

Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee August 11, 2016 
Page 3 Patrick Evans 

 
PROJECT/BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Character: Mark Donoho is a full time farmer.  His wife Karen is employed as a part-time teacher/instructor 
at Frontier College in Fairfield.  They are in their late 50’s.  Mark farms approximately 1,740 acres 
composed of: corn (790 acres), soybeans (691 acres), wheat (82.5 acres), pumpkins (95 acres), and 
Double Crop acres (82.5 acres).  He has 1,527 full share acres.   

 
Due to poor commodity prices and average yields, the Borrowers have suffered cash flow 
problems. 

 
The Bank, on behalf of the Borrowers, is seeking a deferral of the Borrowers’ past-due June 11, 
2016 loan payment of $36,889 to November 11, 2016.   
 
Rationale:  The Borrowers’ deteriorating cash position (the result of inadequate cash flows from 
farming operations) has led to the current situation and the request to amend the 2016 payment 
schedule.  The Bank expects the Borrowers to derive sufficient funds from the sale of grains to 
make the June Payment (i.e., $36,889 principal and interest payment) on November 11, 2016.  The 
Bank has noted the requested payment deferral is only being requested for the Borrowers’ annual 
calendar 2016 payment – the Bank is not requesting amended terms on any subsequent payment.   

 
Capital: See the Confidential Section for specific details. 
 
Capacity: See the Confidential Section for specific details. 
 
Collateral: This loan is secured by 160 acres of farmland, with improvements (personal residence; machine 

shed and shed; grain bins; grain leg; and, grain dryer), and, more specifically, composed of a 40 
acre parcel (including a personal residence and building improvements) in Jefferson County and a 
120 acre parcel (farmland only) in Marion County.   

 
Updated Appraisal Reports dated as of May 25, 2016: 
 
The May 25, 2016 appraisals reported the following values for the two pledged properties securing 
the IFA Guaranteed Loan: 
 

1. 40 acres (Jefferson County) at $2,900/acre = $116,000;  plus Improvements, 
including:  Residence ($113,760), Machine Shed ($40,325), 4 Grain Bins ($53,098), 
Hopper Bottom ($3,717) Transfer Shed ($5,1410, Grain Leg ($12,500), and Grain Dryer 
($15,480) – Total Improvements = $244,000 
Total – 40 Acres of Land + Improvements (Jefferson County) = $360,000  

2. 120 acres at $3,800/acres  (Marion County) = $456,000  
 

Total collateral value $816,000, creating a loan-to-value of 52.2% with Loan-to-IFA exposure of 
44.3%.   
 
A more comprehensive assessment of the pledged collateral is presented in the Confidential 
Section of this report (see pages 9-10). 

   
Review of 
Title Policies 
On the Subject 
Properties: Copies of Mortgages reflect a Jefferson County mortgage (40 acres) filed June 18, 2009 and a 

Marion County mortgage (120 acres) filed June 25, 2009. Copy of a Title Policy dated June 18, 
2009 and June 25, 2009 for $487,000 identifies Peoples National Bank as the sole lienholder (i.e., 
the Bank is secured by a First Mortgage on the subject properties).  

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 114



Mark D. Donoho and Karen Donoho Resolution to Defer Payment and for Bank 
to Waive Events of Default 

Agri-Debt Restructuring Guarantee August 11, 2016 
Page 4 Patrick Evans 

 
OWNERSHIP / ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Borrowers: Mark D. Donoho & Karen Donoho 
Project Location: 23399 N. Heritage 
  Bluford, IL 62814 
Collateral 1st Mortgage on 160 acres of farmland (comprised of a 40-acre parcel (with improvements) in 

Jefferson County and a 120-acre parcel of farmland in Marion County) 
Manager: Mark D. Donoho (manages farming operation) 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel: N/A 
Accountant:  N/A     
Appraiser:  W. G. Kleeman   Centralia, IL 
Originating Bank: Peoples National Bank Mt. Vernon, IL    Jim Flagg and Kevin Young  
Bank Counsel:  N/A 
IFA Advisors:  N/A   
IFA Counsel:  To be determined  

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 

Congressional:     12   
State Senate:    58   
State House:  115 
. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 115



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: August 11, 2016 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to 

the Loan Agreement which Amends Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement Dated as of 
March 1, 2004 under which the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2004 (Community Action Partnership of Lake County Project) (the “Bonds) 
were Issued and the Proceeds of the Bonds were Lent to Community Action Partnership of 
Lake County 

 IFA Series 2004 File Number: N-NP-TE-CD-403 or 11337 
 
 
Request: 
 
Community Action Partnership of Lake County, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the 
“Borrower”) and U.S. Bank, N.A. (the “Trustee”) are requesting approval of a Resolution to 
authorize execution and delivery of a First Amendment to the Loan Agreement to amend Exhibit A to 
the Loan Agreement in connection with the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Community Action Partnership of Lake County Project) (the “Series 
2004 Bonds”).   
 
Proceeds of the Series 2004 Bonds were lent to the Borrower to (i) finance the construction of an 
approximately 31,200 square foot Early Childhood Development Center located at 1200 Glen Flora in 
Waukegan, Illinois, (ii) acquire equipment and fixtures for use therein, (iii) finance permissible 
capitalized interest (collectively, the “Project”), and pay a portion of the costs of issuance of the 
Series 2004 Bonds. 
 
Initially, the Early Childhood Development Center was leased by the Borrower to the Lake County 
Head Start Program as defined in Exhibit A to the Loan Agreement.  However, as of May 5, 2016, the 
Borrower entered into a lease with Lawndale Educational and Regional Network Charter School, 
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“LERN” or the “Lessee”).  LERN began utilizing the Early 
Childhood Development Center as of July 1, 2016.  Accordingly, Exhibit A to the Loan Agreement 
for the Series 2004 Bonds must be amended (thereby enabling the new tenant to also be a “principal 
user” of the Project). 
 
Impact: 
 
While there will be no impact on the outstanding Series 2004 Bonds, approval of this Resolution will 
enable the Borrower to properly identify the new Lessee of the facility constructed with proceeds of 
the Series 2004 Bonds.  There will be no administrative fee payable to IFA for this technical 
amendment. 
 
Background: 
 
All payments relating to the IFA Series 2004 Bonds, initially issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $6,250,000, are current and have been paid as scheduled.  The principal amount of the Series 2004 
Bonds outstanding as of 7/31/2016 was $4,950,000.  The Series 2004 Bonds are secured by a Letter of 
Credit from Citibank, N.A. that is otherwise set to expire 7/31/2017. 
 
Community Action Partnership of Lake County also issued its $3,000,000 Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A and its taxable $625,000 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 116



Community Action Partnership of Lake County  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                   to Bond and Loan Agreement 
Page 2  August 11, 2016 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Series 2008B through the Illinois Finance Authority in March 2008.  All payments are current and 
have been paid as scheduled.  The cumulative outstanding par amount of the Series 2008A and Series 
2008B Bonds as of 7/31/2016 was $3,210,000.  Both the Series 2008A and taxable Series 2008B 
Bonds are secured by Letter of Credit from BMO Harris Bank, N.A. that is otherwise set to expire 
3/14/2017. 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 

Bond Counsel:   Ice Miller LLP   Chicago, IL  Jim Snyder 
       Lisle, IL   Laurie Miller 
Borrower’s Advisor: Longhouse Capital Advisors La Grange Park, IL Lindsay Wall 
Series 2004 Bonds Letter  
  of Credit Provider:  Citibank, N.A.   San Francisco, CA Amy Coffin 
          Kevin Kleen  
LOC Provider Counsel:  Holland & Knight LLP  Chicago, IL  Kristen Smith 
Trustee:   U.S. Bank, N.A.   St. Paul, MN 
IFA Financial Advisor: Sycamore Advisors  Chicago, IL  Melanie Shaker 
    
 

IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2016-0811-AD__ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE LOAN AGREEMENT WHICH 

AMENDS CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS 

OF MARCH 1, 2004 UNDER WHICH THE VARIABLE RATE DEMAND 

REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2004 (COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF 

LAKE COUNTY PROJECT), OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE 

“BONDS”) WERE ISSUED AND THE PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS WERE LENT 

TO COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF LAKE COUNTY. 

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) a body politic and 
corporate duly organized and validly existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois 
(the “State”), including, without limitation the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, as 
supplement and amended (the “Act”), is authorized by the laws of the State, including, without 
limitation, the Act, to issue its bonds for the purpose set forth in the Act and to permit the expenditure 
of the proceeds thereof to defray, among other things, the cost of the acquisition and improvement of 
“industrial projects” as defined in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF LAKE COUNTY, an 
Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Borrower”), has requested that the Authority amend the Bonds. 
The Bonds financed the costs of (i) constructing an approximately 31,000 square foot Early Childhood 
Development Center located at 1200 Glen Flora in Waukegan, Illinois, (ii) acquiring equipment and 
fixtures for use therein, (iii) financing permissible capitalized interest, and (iv) issuance of the Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds were issued under the terms of an Indenture of Trust dated as of 
March 1, 2004 between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee; and 

WHEREAS, a draft of the following document is hereby presented to the Authority at this 
meeting and attached to this Resolution (the “Authority Document”): 

Loan Agreement between the Authority and the Borrower dated as of March 1, 2004 
shall be amended by that certain First Amendment to Loan Agreement, substantially 
in a form approved by the Authority in similar transactions and on file with the 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 117



Community Action Partnership of Lake County  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                   to Bond and Loan Agreement 
Page 3  August 11, 2016 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 

Authority, under which parties agreed to amend the description of the Project, all as 
more fully described in the Authority Document. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

Section 1. Findings.  Based solely on the representations made by the Borrower, the 
Authority hereby makes the following finds and determinations with respect to the Borrower, the 
Authority Document to be executed by the Authority and the facilities financed with the proceeds of 
the Bonds: 

(a) The Borrower is an Illinois not for profit corporation organized under the 
laws of the State of Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois; 

(b) The Borrower has previously properly filed with the Authority its request for 
assistance in providing funds to the Borrower which the Borrower will use for the purposes 
aforesaid; 

(c) The Project as amended does not include any property used or to be used for 
sectarian instruction or as a place of religious worship nor any facility which is used or to be 
used primarily in connection with any part of the program of a school or department of 
divinity for any religious denomination or the training of ministers, priests, rabbis or other 
professional persons in the field of religion; and 

(d) The Bonds were issued for a valid purpose under and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

Section 2. Bonds.  The Bonds and the interest thereon shall continue to be a limited 
obligation of the Authority, payable solely out of the revenue and receipts derived by the Authority 
pursuant thereto as described in the Loan Agreement, as amended. The Bonds shall not in any respect 
be a general obligation of the Authority, nor shall they be payable in any manner from funds raised by 
taxation. No holder of the Bonds has the right to compel the exercise of the taxing power of the State 
or any political subdivision thereof to pay the Bonds, the interest or premium, if any, thereon. The 
Bonds do not constitute in any respect an indebtedness of the Authority or a loan of credit thereof 
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision. 

Section 3. Authority Document.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve 
the execution by its Executive Director, or any person authorized by a Resolution of the Authority 
(each an “Authorized Officer”) and the delivery and use of the Authority Document. The Authority 
Document shall be substantially in a form previously approved by the Authority in similar 
transactions, which form is on file with the Authority, or with such changes therein as shall be 
approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such execution to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of any changes 
or revisions therein from the form of such Authority Document attached hereto, and to constitute 
conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the terms of the Bonds 
and the purchase thereof. 

Section 4. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts 
and things and to execute or accept all such documents (including without limitation the execution and 
delivery of a document setting forth the agreement and certification of the parties thereto relating to 
certain federal tax matters) as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of these 
resolutions, the Authority Document, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents, 
and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of these 
resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, 
confirmed and approved. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 118



Community Action Partnership of Lake County  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                   to Bond and Loan Agreement 
Page 4  August 11, 2016 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 

Section 5. Approval of Acts.  All acts of the officials of the Authority which are in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and the same hereby are, in all respects, 
approved and confirmed. 

Section 6. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such 
declaration shall not affect the validity of remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions. 

Section 7. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.  All resolutions and parts thereof in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 8. Full Force and Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage, as by law provided. 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 119



SwedishAmerican Hospital Memorandum and Resolution.docx 

1125624 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Pam Lenane, Vice President 
 
Date: August 11, 2016 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing the Reissuance of the SwedishAmerican Hospital Series 2010 Bonds. 
 IFA Series 2010 Bonds File Number: H-HO-TE-CD-8323 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The IFA previously issued its Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 Bonds for the benefit of 
SwedishAmerican Hospital, Rockford, Illinois, an Illinois not for profit corporation, pursuant to 
that certain Loan Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 among SwedishAmerican Hospital, the 
Authority and Riverside Community Bank (as predecessor to Illinois Bank & Trust), as 
purchaser of the Series 2010 Bonds. 
 
Currently, approximately $17,500,000 remains outstanding. The Series 2010 Bonds were 
purchased in a direct placement by Illinois Bank & Trust (successor to Riverside Community 
Bank). The Series 2010 Bonds are “bank qualified.” The Bank has agreed to reduce the interest 
rate on the Series 2010 Bonds (from 4.05% to 1.80%) in exchange for a guaranty issued by the 
Obligated Group of SwedishAmerican’s new parent organizations, which comprises the 
University of Wisconsin Hospital and Clinics Authority and the University of Wisconsin 
Medical Foundation, Inc. This interest rate reduction will cause a “deemed” reissuance for 
federal income tax purposes. 
 
To maintain the bank qualification of the Series 2010 Bonds, bond counsel has advised that we 
will need to split the Series 2010 Bonds into two subseries, with each subseries being $10 
million or less and we will have to separate the interest rate reduction for each subseries by 15 
days. 
 
SwedishAmerican Hospital has requested the Illinois Finance Authority to amend and restate the 
Loan Agreement pursuant to which the Series 2010 Bonds were issued and to further supplement 
the Loan Agreement 15 days later and deliver two replacement bonds. 
 
Note that the Series 2010 Bonds are not being refunded nor is the weighted average maturity of 
the Series 2010 Bonds being extended. 

 

 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 120



IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2016-0811-AD06 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and 
exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its Illinois Finance Authority Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 (SwedishAmerican Hospital) (the “Series 2010 Bonds”) for the benefit of 
SwedishAmerican Hospital, an Illinois not for profit corporation, pursuant to that certain Loan 
Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “Loan Agreement”) among SwedishAmerican Hospital 
(the “Borrower”), the Authority and Riverside Community Bank (as predecessor to Illinois 
Bank & Trust) (the “Lender”), as purchaser of the Series 2010 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, at the Borrower’s request, the Lender has agreed to reduce the interest rate 
borne by the Series 2010 Bonds (the “Interest Rate Reduction”) in exchange for the delivery of a 
guaranty of the Borrower’s obligations under the Loan Agreement by the University of 
Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority and the University of Wisconsin Medical Foundation, 
Inc., which Interest Rate Reduction will result in a “deemed” reissuance of the Series 2010 
Bonds for federal income tax purposes (the “Reissuance”); and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish the Interest Rate Reduction and in connection with the 
Reissuance, it is necessary to (a) divide the Series 2010 Bonds into two sub-series, Subseries 
2010A and Subseries 2010B, (b) amend, restate and supplement the Loan Agreement, and (c) 
deliver a new Subseries 2010A Bond and a new Subseries 2010B Bond in replacement of the 
existing Series 2010 Bond; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Authority execute an Amended and 
Restated Loan Agreement among the Authority, the Borrower and the Lender (the “Amended 
and Restated Loan Agreement”), which Amended and Restated Loan Agreement will create two 
sub-series of Series 2010 Bonds and will implement the Interest Rate Reduction for the Subseries 
2010A Bond; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has also requested that the Authority execute a Supplement 
No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement among the Authority, SwedishAmerican 
Hospital and the Lender (the “First Supplemental Loan Agreement”), which First Supplemental 
Loan Agreement will implement the Interest Rate Reduction for the Subseries 2010B Bond; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has also requested that the Authority execute a Subseries 
2010A Bond, a Subseries 2010B Bond and any additional documents required for the Interest 
Rate Reduction and the Reissuance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1.  Approval of Documents. The Authority does  hereby  authorize  and 
approve the execution by its Chairman, Vice Chairman or Executive Director (each an 
“Authorized Officer”) of (i) the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, (ii) the First 
Supplemental Loan Agreement, (iii) the replacement Subseries 2010A Bond, and (iv) the 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 121



replacement Subseries 2010B Bond.  Such documents shall be substantially in the forms 
approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such execution to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s 
approval of the forms of such documents. 

 Section 2.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such 
acts and things and to execute or accept all such documents (including, without limitation, the 
execution and delivery of one or more tax exemption agreements and any additional documents 
that may be necessary to provide for one or more additional subseries of Series 2010 Bonds), as 
may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, and all of the 
acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in 
conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter 
taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.  Unless 
otherwise provided therein, wherever in any document executed pursuant hereto it is provided 
that an action shall be taken by the Authority, such action shall be taken by the Executive 
Director or the Treasurer of the Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, inability or 
refusal of the Executive Director and the Treasurer to act, any two Members of the Authority, 
each of whom is hereby authorized, empowered, delegated the power and duty and directed to 
take such action on behalf of the Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the 
applicable document. 

 Section 3.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 122



Adopted and effective this 11th day of August, 2016:  

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Abstain:  

Absent:  
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
By ____________________________________  

Executive Director 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 

Assistant Secretary 
 
 
[SEAL] 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 123



 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

Memorandum 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
 
Date: August 11, 2016 
 
Re: Resolution Confirming the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to Master Loan Agreement with 

the City of Chicago Providing for an Extension of a Final Principal Payment 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 
 
The Authority, as successor to the Illinois Development Finance Authority, is a party to a legacy Master Loan 
Agreement dated as of August 1, 1986 (the “Loan Agreement”) with the City of Chicago, acting through its 
Department of Housing (the “City”), as the borrower thereunder. The Loan Agreement was entered into pursuant to  
a state statute which established (and authorized subsequent appropriations to fund) the Illinois Housing Partnership 
Program (the “IHPP”), in order to permit the City to finance a series of loans used to rehabilitate multi-family 
housing for persons of low and moderate income.  The Authority’s records indicate that, although the IHPP is an 
ongoing loan program, no additional advances were made under the Loan Agreement subsequent to an initial, zero 
interest loan in what the Authority understood to be the original principal amount of $5 million. Scheduled 
amortization payments were made when and as required with the final installment in the amount of $3 million due 
August 1, 2016.   
 
Action Requested: 
 
In late July, the Authority was contacted by the City and told that, despite the fact that the City had periodically 
responded to Authority audit requests by confirming the $3 million outstanding balance, and even though a 
transaction fund appeared to be on hand to make a partial payment, there was a shortfall that they were not in a 
position to cover, since their record keeping on the matter was in  disarray after several successive computer system 
changes over the years that, quite literally, left them with no records to back up payment.  As such, the City 
requested a six month extension on the final principal payment to permit a full and complete accounting to be 
performed by the City. The extension needed to be granted effective July 31, 2016, in order to preclude the 
occurrence of the City’s default under the Loan Agreement. 
   
Action Taken: 
 
A First Amendment to Master Loan Agreement dated as of July 31, 2016, was executed and delivered by the 
Authority and the City, extending the final $3 million principal payment until February 1, 2017.   In consideration of 
such extension, the City agreed to deliver no later than November 11, 2016, a report setting forth with reasonable 
specificity an accounting for the payment history of the repayment of the loan made under the Loan Agreement and 
the use of the funds disbursed thereunder. 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 124



2016-0811-AD__ 

RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST 
AMENDMENT TO MASTER LOAN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF CHICAGO 

PROVIDING FOR AN EXTENSION OF A FINAL PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the Authority”), a body politic and corporate, has 
been created by, and exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act (20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq.) (the 
“Act”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 801-40(o) of the Act, the Authority is authorized to establish a 
Housing Partnership Program whereby the Authority provides zero-interest loans to municipalities for the 
purpose of assisting in the financing of projects for the rehabilitation of affordable multi-family housing 
for low and moderate income residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Development Finance Authority (“IDFA”), a predecessor to the 
Authority, established such a program under its authorizing legislation, by the name of the Illinois 
Housing Partnership Program (the “Program”); and  

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly appropriated funds to IDFA to be used  to make a 
loan to the City of Chicago (the “City”) under the Program and IDFA and the City entered into a Master 
Loan Agreement dated as of August 1, 1986 (the “Loan Agreement”) in connection therewith in order to 
permit the City to finance a series of loans to rehabilitate multi-family housing for persons of low and 
moderate income; and 

WHEREAS, the City has now requested a six month extension on the final principal payment 
under the Loan Agreement to permit a full and complete accounting to be made by the City of the loans 
made thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the City entered into a First Amendment to Master Loan 
Agreement dated as of July 31, 2016 (the “First Amendment”) providing, among other things,  for the 
extension of the final principal payment until February 1, 2017; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 

Section 1.  Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 

Section 2.  Approval Confirming the Execution and Delivery of the First Amendment.  The 
Executive Director or his designee is authorized to take all actions, reasonable and necessary, to execute 
and deliver the First Amendment and to provide for other matters related thereto and all prior actions 
heretofore taken are hereby confirmed and approved.  

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 125



Section 3.     Further Actions.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver all documents as may 
in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and doings of the Executive Director of the Authority 
which are in conformity with the intent and purpose of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter 
taken or done, shall be and the same are hereby in all respects, ratified, confirmed and approved.  All 
prior and future acts and doing of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the execution and 
performance of the Resolution shall be and the same hereby are in all respects approved and confirmed. 

Section 4.  Delegation to the Executive Director. The Authority hereby delegates to the 
Executive Director, in conjunction with the other officers of the Authority, the power to take or cause to 
be taken any and all actions, and to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all such agreements, 
instruments, certificates and other documents as may be required in connection with approvals set forth 
in Section 2 of this Resolution above.     
 

Section 5.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution. 
 

Section 6.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are 
hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 
 

Section 7.  Immediate Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage, as by law provided. 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 126



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 

 
 
To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
  
Date: August 11, 2016 
 
Re: Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel Recommendations of the Governance, 

Personnel, Legislation and Ethics Committee 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request: 
 
The accompanying Resolution provides for the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel 
Recommendations of the Governance, Personnel, Legislation and Ethics Committee of the Illinois 
Finance Authority, retroactive to July 1, 2016. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 127



IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2015-0709-AD__ 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS 
OF THE GOVERNANCE, PERSONNEL, LEGISLATION AND ETHICS COMMITTEE OF THE 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY  
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the "Authority") is a body corporate and politic duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois, particularly the Illinois Finance Authority 
Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et seq. (the “Act”); and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, particularly the provisions of Section 801-30 thereof, the 

Authority possesses all the powers as a body corporate necessary and convenient to accomplish the 
purposes of the Act, including, but not limited to, power “(c) to employ agents and employees and 
independent contractors necessary to carry out its purposes and to fix their compensation, benefits and 
terms and conditions of their employment;" and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore implemented certain compensation and benefit plans in 

the form of certain resolutions, including but not limited to, Resolution 2004-13, adopted on June 22, 
2004; Resolution 2004-23, adopted on October 12, 2004; Resolution 2007-02, adopted on July 11, 2006;  
a Resolution adopted on February 12, 2008; Resolution 2010-1214-AD23, adopted on December 14, 
2010; Resolution 2011-0719-AD9, adopted on July 19, 2011; Resolution 2012-1211-AD10, adopted on 
December 11, 2012; Resolution 2013-0709-AD08, adopted on July 9, 2013; and Resolution 2015-0709-
AD08 adopted on July 9, 2015 (collectively and together with any other resolutions heretofore adopted by 
the Authority relating to compensation matters for employees of the Authority, the “Prior Resolutions”); 
and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2016, the Governance, Personnel, Legislation and Ethics Committee  

of the Authority met and reviewed the Executive Director’s management and compensation 
recommendations for employees and agents of the Authority, and made revisions (the “Fiscal Year 2017 
Personnel Recommendations”) to the information contained in the Prior Resolutions (the “Prior 
Compensation Plan”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it will advance the purposes of the Act and will 

be in the best interests of the citizens of the State to adopt the Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel 
Recommendations, retroactive to July 1, 2016; 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority 
as follows: 
 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2.  Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel Recommendations.  The Fiscal Year 2017 

Personnel Recommendations as heretofore delivered to the Members of the Authority are hereby accepted 
and approved, retroactive to July 1, 2016. 

 
Section 3.  Delegation of Authority to Administer and Implement the Fiscal Year 2017 

Personnel Recommendations.  The Authority hereby authorizes, empowers and directs the Executive 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 128



Director to take the necessary actions to administer and implement the Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel 
Recommendations within the parameters established in this Resolution in the name and on behalf of the 
Authority. 

 
Section 4. Additional Actions.  The Authority hereby authorizes, empowers and directs the 

Executive Director of the Authority or his designee, including, but not limited to, the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Authority and the General Counsel of the Authority, to take or cause to be taken any and all 
such other further actions, and to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all such agreements, 
instruments, certificates and other documents, and to pay all such fees and expenses, as each, in his or her 
discretion, may deem necessary, appropriate or advisable in order to carry out the purposes and intent of 
this Resolution. 

 
Section 5. Repeal of Prior Resolutions.  All resolutions and actions in conflict with the 

provisions hereof, including, but not limited to, the Prior Resolutions, are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict. 

 
Section 6. Prior Actions.  All prior actions taken by the Executive Director, the Chief Financial 

Officer and the General Counsel of the Authority, including any designees thereof, in conformity with the 
purposes of this Resolution and the Fiscal Year 2017 Personnel Recommendations, are, in all respects, 
ratified, approved and confirmed. 

 
Section 7. Severability.  All provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separate and 

severable; if any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision 
shall not affect any of the remaining sections, paragraphs or provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 8. Enactment and Effective Date.  This Resolution is effective immediately upon its 

adoption.   
 
 Approved and effective this 11th day of August, 2016 by roll call vote as follows: 

 
Yeas:   
Nays:   
Abstain:  
Absent:   
Vacancies:  

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
By  ______________________________________  

Executive Director 
 

ATTEST: 
 
  
                  Assistant Secretary 
[SEAL] 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 3), Page 129


	AGENDA A
	AGENDA B
	AGENDA C (v2)
	ED Message 2016 August (v4clean)
	MINUTES A Cover Memo 08112016 (v1)
	MINUTES B Transcript 07142016 (v1)_Tiled
	MINUTES C Voting Record 07142016 (v1)
	FINANCIALS A Financial Analysis Updated Aug 16
	FINANCIALS B CURR VS PRIOR-INCOME STATEMENT BY FUND-GEN FUND (2)
	CURR VS PRIOR-INCOME STATEMEN-F

	FINANCIALS C JUL 16 MONTHLY FINANCIALS Board
	INC ST-GEN FUND
	INC ST-ALL FUNDS
	BAL-SHT

	FINANCIALS D State Receivables Analysis - JULY 16
	TREASURY REPORTS A - Bonds Issued Fiscal Year Three Year August 
	TREASURY REPORTS B - 02-Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book-Activity Report
	TREASURY REPORTS C - 03- Schedule of Debt July 2016
	PROCUREMENT Monthly Procurement Report-Jul 17
	jul 17

	01 Beginning Farmer Bond Summary 08 11 16 v3PUBLIC
	Memorandum

	02 DePaul University FBR 2016-08-11 (v2)
	03 The Moorings of Arlington Heights LLC Pres Homes - FBR (v1)
	04 SRF A Board Report 2016-08 (v12withfinalresoluton)
	04 SRF B Chart of Funding Sources v Debt 8-3-2016 ver2
	05 Donoho - Combined FINAL 8-4
	Donoho - Part 1 -Cover Memo Amendment (v3)
	Donoho - Part 2 - Resolution (CLEAN) (v4)
	Donoho - Part 3 - Board Summary Report (v5)

	06 Community Action Partnership of Lake County Amend 2016-08 (v2)
	07 SwedishAmerican Hospital Memorandum and Resolution
	08 IHPP Summary Description Version 5
	09 2017 Personnel Recommendations Resolution (Clean) v2



